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Delphi Financial Group, Inc. is an integrated employee benefit éervices

company. We are a leader in managing all aspects of employee absence to

enhance the productivity of our clients and we provide the related insurance

coverages:

group life, long-term and short-term disability, excess workers’

compensation for self-insured employers, travel accident and dental. Our

asset accumulation business emphasizes individual fixed annuity products.

Delphi’s co
symbol DF

mmon stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the
G.
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We achieved strong earnings growth, with operating earnings per share rising 14%
to $2.83.

Safety National’s excess workers’ compensation premiums were $152 million, up
45% from last year and more than triple the total four years ago.

Reliance Standard’s core group premiums surpassed half a billion dollars for the
first time, a 15% increase over last year.

Delphi achieved 38% growth in revenues from our unique Integrated Employee
Benefits program targeted at larger companies.

Capital gains and strong investment performance contributed to a 17% increase in
book value.

We improved our capital structure by paying oft all our bank debt; our earliest debt
maturity is more than 25 years away.

Iphi is poised to reach new heights of financ

substantial future value for our shareholde

ial

performance in coming years and bui@




Financial Highlights

DELPHI FINANCIAL GROUP, INC.

(DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA)

Years Ended December 31, 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
Income Statement Data:
Core Premium and Fee Income® $ 696,704 §$ 578,532 $471,368 $419,072 $ 374,887
Total Premium and Fee Income 719,087 627,857 507,204 466,357 485,268
Net Investment Income 186,366 162,036 157,509 184,576 180,945
Operating Earnings®” 90,645 79,373 44,747 86,438 80,850
Net Income (Loss) 98,916 60,652 6,505 (3,293) 50,285
Balance Sheet Data:
Total Assets 4,177,532 3,734,942 3,336,146 3,440,010 3,395,688
Long-Term Debt 143,750 118,139 125,675 267,770 283,938
Capital Securities of Subsidiaries 56,050 36,050 36,050 100,000 100,000
Shareholders’ Equity 798,440 681,655 581,994 538,193 501,417
Diluted Per Share-Data:
Operating Earnings® 2.83 2.49 1.41® 2.83 2.49
Net Income (Loss) 3.09 1.90 0.21 0.11) 1.55
Book Value 25.49 21.83 19.00 17.91 16.35
Weighted Average Shares Outstanding (in thousands) 32,023 31,887 31,629 30,582 32,511

(1) The non-GAAP financial measure “core premium and fee income” excludes premiums from non-core group employee benefit products which include products that have been discontinued, newer
products which have not demonstrated their financial potential, products which are not expected to comprise a significant percentage of earned premiums and products for which sales are episodic in
nature, such as loss portfolio transfers. Premiums from non-core group employee benefit products were $22,383, 549,325, $35.836, $47.285 and $110,381 in 2003, 2002, 2001, 2000 and 1999,
respectively. Total premium and fee income is the most comparable financial measure calculated in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“GAAP™).

(2) The non-GAAP financial measure “operating earnings™ excludes realized investment gains and losses (net of the related income tax expense or benefit), gains and losses on extinguishment of debt and
capital securities (net of the related income tax expense or benefit) and discontinued operations. See note 8 on page 19 of the accompanying Form 10-K for management’s explanation of the usefulness of
this non-GAAP financial measure and note 5 on page 18 for a reconciliation of operating earnings to net income (loss), the most comparable financial measure calculated in accordance with GAAP.

(3) Includes a charge of $28.8 million, net of taxes, or $0.91 per share, in 2001 for reserve strengthening primarily related to an unusually high number of large losses in the Company’s excess workers”

compensation products.

Core Premium and Fee Income™”

Book Value Per Share
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Letter to Shareholders

2 003 was a year of substantial accomplishment for Delphi as

we continued to build on the success of the deleveraging strategy we
completed in 2001. We achieved our second straight year of consistent
earnings growth, driven by the excellent performance of our insurance
businesses. These businesses capitalized on favorable market conditions that
we expect will continue for some time. We continued to bolster our strong
balance sheet and conservative capital structure to support our future growth.

Our excellent performance did not go unnoticed by the investment
community. In 2003, we began to realize tangible benefits from meeting our
objectives of making Delphi more investor-friendly, understandable and
predictable. Among these benefits, which will be highlighted later in this
annual report, are a wider following by research analysts and investors, an
expanded earnings multiple and a sharply higher share price and market
capitalization. While we are pleased with the recognition to date, Delphi is well positioned to achieve consistent
strong earnings growth for the foreseeable future, which should build substantial future value for our shareholders.

Excellent Financial Performance

Delphi’s operating earnings grew 14% in 2003, reaching $90.6 million or $2.83 per share. Core group employee
benefit premiums rose 20% to $674 million, driven by 45% growth in excess workers’ compensation premiums. Our
earnings and returns on equity exceeded the guidance we provided early in the year.

Investment income growth of 15% in 2003 was ahead of our plan as rapid growth in invested assets and strong total
return performance offset a decline in investment yields. We maintained high average credit quality in our
4 investment portfolio and ended 2003 with large net unrealized
‘s . gains in the portfolio. Boosted by our strong operating results

We continue fo exp ect and investment performance, book value per share grew 17% in

annual opemting earnings 2003, reaching $25.49 per share at year-end.

per s hare gr owth at a we improved our capital position during the year with the

. 0 completion in May of a $144 million 30-vyear retail note offering.

minimum Of ]2/0 f or the We I:t)ook advantgge of an excellent gpportunity to lock ﬁl

next several year&” attractive long-term rates and used the proceeds of the offering to

pay down all the borrowings on our revolving bank credit facility

and repay all debt maturities that came due in 2003. At the end

of 2003, our corporate debt to total capitalization ratio was 14%, less than half of what it was at the end of 2000, and

our interest coverage ratio was 11 times. Delphi’s strong balance sheet and cash flow amply support the growth
opportunities in our insurance businesses.




Ongoing Hard Market

Delphi continued to capitalize on the hard market in Safety National’s core product, excess workers’ compensation
insurance for self-insured employers, a market which shows no sign of softening. In fact, double digit rate increases
in the primary workers’ compensation market are causing more employers to self-insure their workers’ compensation
risks and hence demand our excess coverage. We believe this trend is still in
an early stage, since it often takes employers a few years to make the decision
to shift from primary coverage to self-insurance. 160

Safety Nationals Excess Workers' Compensation Premiums
{Dollars in Millians)

Our premiums from excess workers’ compensation have more than tripled in
four years, growing to $152 million in 2003 from $48 million in 1999. This $120
premium increase has come from a combination of increased rates and
sharply higher new sales. New excess workers’ compensation production -
increased 46% in 2003, with case counts up 17%. We achieved average rate 0
increases in 2003 of 15%, which were on top of 25% rate increases in 2002.
We also continued to win significant improvements in contract terms, 40 { N
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particularly in the self-insured retention (SIR) level, which is the critical point
where risk shifts from our clients to us. The average SIR increased to
$395,000, compared with an average of $315,000 two years ago.

e om0 a0l e 2003

After three years of taking in more premium dollars for less risk, we began to realize the benefit in 2003 as profit
margins improved throughout the year. We expect this improvement to continue in 2004 and beyond. Our optimism
is boosted by further rate increases and improved contract terms in the January 2004 renewal season, during which
Safety National typically writes about 30% of its excess workers’ compensation business. Safety National achieved
average price increases on renewals of 16%, along with further increases in the average SIR.

Attractive Small Case Niche

Reliance Standard Life achieved 15% growth in core group employee benefit premiums in 2003, reflecting continued
strength in our attractive small case niche of businesses with 10-500 employees. In the first quarter of 2003, we
implemented an across-the-board price increase on new long-term disability cases to adjust for lower interest rates.
We also took actions during the year to improve profit margins that cut across all aspects of our business, from
actuarial and underwriting to claims and sales.

Reliance Standard ended 2003 on a strong note, with 26% growth in core group production in the fourth quarter, as
we began to see a positive impact from our sales force expansion during the year. We ended 2003 with 99 sales reps,
up 11% from the 89 reps we had at the end of 2002 and almost double the 53 reps we had at the end of 1997. Our
new Milwaukee sales office brought our total to 25 nationwide. We expect continued robust growth in core group
premiums and production based on the strength of our small case niche and further expansion of our sales force,
which is targeted to increase by more than 15% in 2004.

Unique Larger Case Strategy

In 2003, we continued the success of our unique Integrated Employee Benefits program targeted at larger employers.
Revenues from this program (primarily insurance premiums for Reliance Standard and Safety National) grew 38%
to $101 million, more than triple the level three years ago.




Demand for Matrix’s absence management services continues to grow as more companies seek to improve
productivity by reducing days lost to employee absence. In combining Matrix’s services with disability, group life
and excess workers’ compensation insurance coverage from Reliance Standard and Safety National, Delphi continues
to be the only company providing clients nationwide with all of these capabilities on a fully integrated basis.

Investor-Friendly Profile

Delphi took several steps in 2003 to enhance the Company’s investor-friendly profile. We created a majority of
independent directors on our Board of Directors by increasing the size of our board from eight directors to nine
directors. Three highly-qualified independent directors joined our board in 2003: Van D. Greenfield, an expert in an
array of sophisticated investment strategies; James N. Meehan, former managing director of Bank of America, in
charge of insurance industry lending; and Dr. Philip R. O’Connor, formerly head of the Illinois Department of
Insurance. We will miss the counsel of Lewis S. Ranieri and Thomas L. “Dusty” Rhodes, two long-time directors
who retired during the year.

Other investor-friendly actionsf we took included expensing of stock options, increasing our cash dividend by 50%,
and splitting our stock 3-for-2. Combined with strong operating results, these actions contributed to a 42% increase
in our stock price in 2003, far outpacing both the S&P 500 Index and the S&P Insurance Index for the second year
in a Tow.

Reaching New Heights

With two full years of consistent earnings growth behind us and expected strong growth going forward, Delphi is
poised to reach new heights of financial performance in coming years and build substantial future value for our
shareholders. Our outlook is based on an expected continuation of the hard market for Safety National’s excess
workers’ compensation business, further premium and sales growth for Reliance Standard in the attractive small case
market, and continued expansion of our unique Integrated Employee Benefits program for larger employers. Based

on these trends, we continue to expect annual operating earnings

“Our €XC€Z len t pe}yforma nce  per share growth at a minimum of 12% for the next several years.

dld not 80 unnotzced by the As we work to take advantage of the upbeat trends in our

inve Stment commun lly’ ’ insgr?lnce busiqe.sses, D’elphi .will glso s;ek to capitalize on ‘Fhe
positive recognition we’ve gained in the investment community.

We will continue to build greater awareness of our investor-
friendly profile and growing track record of strong financial performance to attract expanded support for our
common stock and other securities. Delphi remains focused on building shareholder value by delivering on our
promise of consistent, stable growth.

Respectfully submitted,

Lot

Robert Rosenkranz
Chairman of the Board




Delphi at a Glance

DELPHI

Financial Group, Inc.

RELIANCE STANDARD

Life Insurance Company

SAFETY NATIONAL

Casualty Corporation

MATRIX

Absence Management, Inc.

¢ Group life insurance
# Long- and short-term

disability insurance employers

¢ Travel accident insurance
+ Dental insurance

4 Asset accumulation
(Individual fixed annuities)

# Excess workers’ compensation
insurance for self-insured services

¢ Absence management

¢ Integrated Employee
Benefits program

Through our three top-tier subsidiaries, Delphi is a leader in managing all aspects of employee

absence to help our clients’ employees get well and back to productive work. The company’s insurance

subsidiaries are leading providers of group life, disability and excess workers’ compensation coverage to

small and mid-sized employers. Our unique Integrated Employee Benefits program, targeted at larger

employers, combines disability coverage from Reliance Standard and excess workers’ compensation

coverage from Safety National with Matrix’s productivity-enhancing absence management services.

Delphi is a pioneer in providing clients nationwide with all of these capabilities on a fully integrated basis.

2003 Group Employee Benefits Premiums = $696.0 million

Excess Workers’
Compensation
22%

Group Life
35%

Travel Accident/
Dental/Other Core
7%

Group Non-Core
Products
3%

Long Term and Short
Term Disability
33%

2003 Group Employee Benefits Operating Income = $140.1 million

Excess Workers’
Compensation
42%

Group Life
28%

Travel Accident/
Long Term and Short Dental/Other Core
Term Disability 8%
22%




Review of Operations

The deleveraging strategy Delphi completed in 2001 had three major objectives: to make our story more easily
understandable to analysts and investors; to improve the consistency and predictability of our earnings; and to
highlight the underlying strength of our insurance businesses. We made the decision to emphasize our insurance
operations because we knew our subsidiaries had strong
positions in niche markets with attractive growth opportunities.

"We have strong positions in

niche markets with attractive Since then, Delphi’s shareholders have realized tangible benefits
from meeting the objectives of our deleveraging strategy —

. . ,’
8 owt h oppor funities. benefits that are highlighted in the sidebars on these pages. Our
insurance operations have clearly demonstrated our success in
capitalizing on the growth opportunities in our markets.

Safety National

Safety National is strategically positioned as the leader in its core product, excess workers’ compensation insurance
for self-insured employers. The hard market for this coverage is now in its fourth year and Safety National’s
premiums from excess workers’ compensation have more than tripled to $152 million since then. Premiums and new
production both grew around 45% in 2003.

. We expect the hard market in excess workers’ compensation to continue for
Tangible Benefit #1 some time as more employers shift to self-insurance to avoid the substantial
Increased Research Coverage ongoing price increases for primary workers’ compensation insurance.
According to a survey by the Risk and Insurance Management Society,
primary workers’ compensation rates were up 28% in the fourth quarter of
2003 after rising 35% in the fourth quarter of 2002. Rating agencies and
national insurance brokers say they expect primary carriers to continue
raising rates for several more years in order to restore their financial health.

Delphi’s more understandable
investment story has helped widen
our following in the investment
community. The number of analysts
writing research on Delphi has

- tripled in two years, with new
research coverage coming from Wall
Street firms, regional brokers and
boutique firms following the
insurance industry. -

Based on its long experience with previous market cycles, Safety National
believes the shift toward self-insurance is at an early stage. There is
typically a lag as employers absorb a few years of increased primary rates
before finally taking action to save money by setting up a self-insured
program that includes excess workers’ compensation coverage. In 2003,
Safety National saw clear signs that the shift is gaining momentum, as case
counts increased by 17% and premiums from self-insured association
groups grew 37%, reflecting higher participation by association members.
7 / Safety National’s sales growth also benefited from proactive steps we took
to build deeper relationships with large national brokerage firms.

Number of Analysts

9

8

Large deductible workers’ compensation insurance premiums were up 52%
last year. This product, which has substantially the same economics for
, 1‘ Safety National as excess coverage, is often used by employers as a
Y i e stepping-stone toward setting up a self-insured program and has generally
‘ been a reliable indicator of future demand for excess workers’
compensation.

3/31/04 3/31/02 3/31/83 3131704




Safety National continued to capitalize on the extremely favorable market environment by raising prices and
improving contract terms. The most important contract term is the self-insured retention (SIR) level — the point at
which the risk of an individual claim shifts from the employer to us. We were able to raise prices by 25% in 2002;
by another 15% in 2003, and by a further 16% in the important January 2004 renewal season. The cumulative effect
is a price increase of 67%. At the same time, we increased average SIRs from about $300,000 in 2001 to about
$400,000 in January 2004. In effect, every claim we pay now costs us $100,000 less than it did a few years ago. We
are taking in more premiums for less risk — a dynamic that should

lead to higher profit margins. Very little of that has been “B ased on its lon g

reflected thus far since we set our reserves on new business based

primarily on past experience. But as actual results come in over experience wi th previous

the nex‘g few years, higher profits shopld emerge. This is one market cycles, Safely

factor giving us confidence in our earnings outlook. . . .
National believes the shift

Another factor is the buildup of our insurance reserves and the . .

investment income that resulI:s. Typically, the self-insured client fowar: d Seljp-lnS urance 1s at

pays out the first 12-15 years of given claims before payments are  gn ear[y Ky [age_ »

made by Safety National, so we benefit from the investment -

income on these premium dollars for an exceptionally long

period. Because of this combination of high premiums, reduced risks, and increasing levels of reserves and

investment income, excess workers’ compensation was our most profitable line of business. It accounted for 22% of
Delphi’s group employee benefit premiums last year and 42% of operating profits from this segment.

These enhanced profit levels, combined with Delphi’s improved capital position, enabled us to purchase less
reinsurance in a market which has grown very costly. We raised our risk retention in excess workers’ compensation
from $3 million to $5 million per event. Such occurrences are extremely rare and we can afford to take them in stride.
At the same time, we increased the layers of reinsurance that protect us from truly catastrophic events.

Reliance Standard Life

Reliance Standard has significantly expanded its market position since the completion of our deleveraging strategy
and is now one of the leading group employee benefits providers in its attractive smaller case market. In 2003,
Reliance Standard had more than half a billion dollars of core

--group premiums for the first time in its history, as core premiums RSL Sales Force Producion per
1: Number of Sales Rep
rose 15% to $522 million. Sales Reps il

120 $20
Our success is the result of a well-executed plan to increase the
size, geographic reach and productivity of our sales force. Since 100
1997, we have opened four new sales offices, almost doubled our ‘
sales force, and simultaneously increased production per sales i n 16
rep from $1.3 million to $1.8 million per year. The compounding !
effect brought new core production from $69 million in 1997 to
$175 million in 2003 — an annual growth rate of 17%.

P i_

1997 198 1999 2000 200) 2003

This major achievement is directly attributable to our i

investments in sales management, enhanced training and

improved systems. In the next two years, we expect to

implement the second and third phases of our major technology initiative at Reliance Standard. The first phase,
which was successfully implemented in 2002, increased automation of sales and underwriting, and the next phases
will tie in claims, finance and administration to provide complete integration and increased efficiency.




Reliance Standard’s growth is also due to our intense focus on small and mid-sized companies with 10-500
employees, which have generated almost all of the job growth in the U.S. over the past decade. Despite overall
uncertainty in the economy and employment, we continued to have payroll growth in our client base and increased
proposal activity in 2003.

We continued to get about 20% of our new sales from virgin accounts, which are typically companies under 100
employees that have never before provided group disability or life coverage. These accounts tend to be less price
sensitive, and the benefits offered by these employers tend to be less generous. By establishing these relationships
early on, we have the opportunity to grow with our clients as their payrolls increase and they add more benefits.

Our persistency ratios remained strong at Reliance Standard in 2003, with 87% persistency in disability and 84% in
group life. Our counter-cyclical travel accident business, which benefits from reduced business travel in difficult
economic conditions, continued to make a strong contribution to profits. The slow economy did have a modest

adverse impact on long-term disability claims patterns. It also

“Relia nce Stan da rd en de d drove interest rates down, reducing our investment yields on new

. . premium dollars. As a result, we implemented an across-the-
2003 with pPos I11Ve  board price increase on new long-term disability cases, as well

as some significant renewal price increases where necessary to
momentum as core group achieve our profit targets for existing group life and long-term

productio nrose 26% in disability cases. These actions underscored our commitment to

,, Maintaining our pricing and underwriting discipline, but the

l‘he f our th quar fer. predictable result was a slowing of new production, particularly

in the first three quarters of the year. Reliance Standard ended

2003 with positive momentum as core group production rose 26% in the fourth quarter. We began to see a

contribution from the expansion of our sales force during the year. In 2004, we expect further strong growth based

on our plan to continue expanding our sales force by more than 15%, with a year-end goal of 114 reps. We also

expect a growing contribution from our expanded voluntary product portfolio, which we introduced in 2003 to meet
growing demand from our customer base.

Reliance Standard was also faced with higher prices for reinsurance in 2003, most notably in our long-term disability
product. As a result, we increased our risk retention level for long-term disability policies from $2,500 to $7,500 in
monthly benefits paid per individual. This change will reduce our reinsurance costs for this product but does increase
our risk. Anticipating this, we took a series of concrete steps to make sure that our profit margins will not be
impacted by the higher retentions. These actions, which cut across all aspects of our business — from actuarial and
underwriting to claims and sales — should help us achieve an increased profit contribution from long-term disability
going forward.

Forward F/E Muliiple

14 langible Benefit #2

b r vl mr s ez s T e e o e gD ez

/" Expanded Price/Earnings Multiple

12
b /\/

T The valuation of Delphi’s stock has improved steadily over the past three years,
/ T i "1 as measured by our forward price/earnings (P/E) multiple — the ratio of share
seeme - smmle s oo o price to analysts’ estimated earnings per share. Our earnings multiple expanded
as analysts and investors become more aware of our success in achieving more

" stable, predictable earnings growth. T D

8

6 [
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Matrix/Integrated Employee Benefits

In the past three years, Delphi’s unique Integrated Employee Benefits program has become a meaningful contributor
to our premium growth. Total revenues from the program, which are primarily insurance premiums at Reliance
Standard and Safety National, rose 38% in 2003 to $101 million, which is more than three times higher than 2000
revenues of $29 million. The Integrated Employee Benefits program has

proven to be an effective strategy to sell our insurance products to larger Integrated Employee Benefit Program Revenues
employers i Premiums and Fees

{Dollars in Milions)
The strategic concept melds our insurance coverages with value-added 100 =
services provided by Matrix Absence Management. Matrix is the national
leader in providing return-to-work services that help leading companies 40 -

achieve meaningful productivity gains. Matrix, part of Delphi since 1998,
has expanded rapidly from its original base in California and now offers its
services nationwide. Demand for return-to-work services continues to
grow in corporate America, along with expansion in outsourcing of Family
Medical Leave Act administration and integration of all insurance
coverages related to employee absence.

$60

S40

520

B~ h

Delphi brings under a single corporate umbrella the services required to get VTR e am i an
injured, disabled or otherwise absent employees back to work quickly, to

handle the myriad of legal and administrative requirements, and to provide the insurance coverages to replace their
lost incomes. There is growing market demand for our unique offering. For Delphi, it helps us achieve attractive
margins for our insurance products in the larger case market by stressing the value-added features of our program
and avoiding purely price-driven competition.

Asset Accumulation

Reliance Standard’s asset accumulation business, which is focused on selling fixed annuities to individuals, achieved
strong bottom line growth in 2003. Operating income rose 64% to $16.6 million, driven by wider spreads and
growth in assets under management. Assets under management, which

totaled $930 million at the end of 2003, have grown 10% annually over the Anmity Funds Under Management
past four years. We manage this business in a disciplined way to meet (Dl i Wil

target spreads of 150-250 basis points, which are well above average for 1,000

the industry. In 2003, our spreads were at the low end of this range, but _ =

our profitability was boosted by good persistency in our older, more
seasoned book of business that remains more profitable.

We sell our fixed annuities primarily to retirees through a network of
independent wholesalers. This approach keeps overhead low and enables
us to adjust crediting rates quickly in response to changing marketplace
conditions. With interest rates generally falling throughout 2003, we saw
fewer opportunities to earn attractive spreads on new sales. As a result,
our sales of new annuities were $101 million in 2003 compared with $135
million in 2002, We remain cautious in our outlook for annuity sales in
2004, due to the uncertain interest rate environment. At the same time, we expect continued growth in profitability
from further expansion of assets under management and disciplined management of our cost of funds.

2000 2001 2002 2003




Investments and Capital Structure

We are very pleased with our 2003 investment performance. Investment income, up 15%, was ahead of plan, driven
by a 14% increase in invested assets. Total return on the portfolio was well in excess of our benchmark, the Lehman
Aggregate Index of investment-grade bonds. We realized some $12.7

Tnvestment Portfolio

" than $100 million of unrealized profits in our portfolio.
December 31, 2003 - 83.2 billion

These results were achieved with a very conservative portfolio. The

Corporates & Other Fixed - ; . i ' ‘ b
Maturity Securities major risks all fixed income investors must consider are credit risks,
Municipal Bonds o interest rate risks and liquidity risks. Delphi scores well on all these

15% dimensions. Our average credit quality is AA; less-than-investment-
Eq““yls‘;m‘ies grade bonds are only 6% of our portfolio; and credit losses (other-
US, Treasury & ' than-temporary impairments) were $13.0 million, down 70% from
Other Government > Short-Term 2002. Our interest rate risk is low, as we maintained unusually high
Gunenteed Seurites Mortgage-Backed mveme%izn 10 Short-term investment balances during the year. This was intended
12 Seg‘(’]f)'/“es partly to pre-refund our 10-year note maturity in October and partly

' because of our reluctance to make long-term bond commitments at

historic low interest rates at the beginning of an economic recovery.

And our portfolio is unusually liquid, with no material balances in private placements, direct mortgages, owned real

estate, or similar illiquid and difficult-to-value assets typically found in insurance company portfolios.

Book value per share grew 17% during the year to reach $25.49, driven by our strong operating results, investment
performance and $0.26 per share in after-tax net realized investment gains. Going forward, we expect to continue
meeting our investment income targets through further growth in
invested assets and our ongoing focus on strong total returns.

Tangible Benefit #3

Higher Market Capitalization Our deleveraging strategy resulted in a more conservative capital
structure, which we continued to improve in 2003. An important
achievement was the completion in May of a $144 million offering of 30-
year Senior Notes, which were sold primarily to retail investors and listed
on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol DFY. We took
advantage of an excellent opportunity to lock in attractive long-term rates
and extend our debt maturities by 30 years. The proceeds of the offering
were used to pay down all the borrowings on our revolving bank credit
facility and to repay all of the Company’s outstanding 2003 debt
maturities.

Boosted by a 42% increase in our share
price in 2003, Delphi’s market
capitalization — the dollar value of all
shares outstanding — has more than
“doubled in three years. "With a market -
capitalization of $1.3 billion, most
" investors now see us as a mid-cap stock
rather than a small-cap stock, which
should further widen our following.

Market Cop (i willions) There are many quantitative indicators of Delphi’s financial strength:

s1400 L , debt is only 14% of capital; we earn our interest expense more than 10
Losdviiia s L / times over; we hold some $60 million in financial assets at the holding
vm’mﬂw_” N N /~ ] company level; and our insurance companies increased their statutory
§1,000 capital by some 15% last year, to levels consistent with AA ratings. We
ss00l e are working diligently to get the upgrades we deserve from the rating
senol” | ’ ‘ agencies, but, more important, we feel we have the strategic position,

';i ‘ S L business momentum, financial flexibility, and managerial skill and
: energy to reach new heights of financial performance.

$400 .
3/31/61 3/31/02 3/31/03 3/31/04

million of net investment gains during the year, and ended with more -
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This document contains certain forward-looking statements as defined in the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, some of
which may be identified by the use of terms such as “expects,” “believes,” “anticipates,” “intends,” “judgment” or other
similar expressions. These statements are subject to various uncertainties and contingencies, which could cause actual
results to differ materially from those expressed in such statements. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results- of Operations — Forward-Looking Statements and Cautionary Statements Regarding

Certain Factors That May Affect Future Results.”

PART 1
Item 1. Business

Delphi Financial Group, Inc. (the “Company,” which term includes the Company and its consolidated subsidiaries unless
the context indicates otherwise), is a holding company whose subsidiaries provide integrated employee benefit services.
The Company was organized as a Delaware corporation in 1987 and completed the initial public offering of its Class A
commoen stock in 1990. The Company manages all aspects of employee absence to enhance the productivity of its clients
and provides the related insurance coverages: long-term and short-term disability, excess and primary workers™
compensation, group life, travel accident and dental. The Company’s asset accumulation business emphasizes individual
fixed annuity products. The Company offers its products and services in all fifty states and the District of Columbia. The
Company’s two reportable segments are group employee benefit products and asset accumulation products. See Notes A
and R to the Consolidated Financial Statements included in this Form 10-K for additional information regarding the
Company’s segments.

The Company makes available free of charge on its website at www.delphifin.com its annual reports on Form 10-K,
quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and all amendments to these reports as soon as reasonably
possible after such material has been filed with or furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Operating Strategy

The Company’s operating strategy is to offer financial products and services which have the potential for significant
growth, which require specialized expertise to meet the individual needs of its customers and which provide the Company
the opportunity to achieve superior operating earnings growth and returns on its shareholders’ capital.

The Company has concentrated its efforts within certain niche insurance markets, primarily group employee benefits for
small to mid-sized employers, where nearly all of the employment growth in the American economy has occurred in recent
years. The Company also markets its group employee benefit products and services to large employers, emphasizing
unique programs that integrate both employee benefit insurance coverages and absence management services. The
Company also operates an asset accumulation business that focuses primarily on offering fixed annuities to individuals
planning for retirement.

The Company’s primary operating subsidiaries are as follows:

Reliance Standard Life Insurance Company (“RSLIC”), founded in 1907 and having administrative offices in
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, and its subsidiary, First Reliance Standard Life Insurance Company (“FRSLIC”), underwrite a
diverse portfolio of group life, disability and accident insurance products targeted principally to the employee benefits
market. RSLIC also markets asset accumulation products, primarily fixed annuities, to individuals and groups. The
financial strength rating of RSLIC as of February-2004 as rated-by- A-M:-Best was-A--(Excellent): -The-Company, through - —— -
Reliance Standard Life Insurance Company of Texas (“RSLIC-Texas”), acquired RSLIC and FRSLIC in November 1987.

Safety National Casualty Corporation (“SNCC”) focuses primarily on providing excess workers’ compensation insurance
to the self-insured market. Founded in 1942 and located in St. Louis, Missouri, SNCC is one of the oldest continuous
writers of excess workers’ compensation insurance in the United States. The financial strength rating of SNCC as of
February 2004 as rated by A.M. Best was A (Excellent). The Company, through SIG Holdings, Inc. (“SIG™), acquired
SNCC in March 1996. In 2001, SNCC formed an insurance subsidiary, Safety First Insurance Company, which also
focuses on selling excess workers’ compensation products to the self-insured market.

Matrix Absence Management, Inc. (“Matrix”), founded in 1987, provides integrated disability and absence management
services to the employee benefits market across the United States. Headquartered in San Jose, California, Matrix was
acquired by the Company in June 1998. See “Other Transactions” and Note B to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Group Employee Benefit Products

The Company is a leading provider of group life, disability and excess workers’ compensation insurance products to small
and mid-sized employers, with more than 20,000 policies in force. The Company also offers travel accident, voluntary
accidental death and dismemberment and group dental insurance. The Company markets its group products to employer-
employee groups and associations in a variety of industries. The Company insures groups ranging from 2 to more than
5,000 individuals, although the size of an insured group generally ranges from 10 to 1,000 individuals. The Company
markets unbundled employee benefit products and absence management services as well as an Integrated Employee
Benefit program that combines both employee benefit insurance coverages and absence management services. The
Integrated Employee Benefit program, which the Company believes helps to differentiate from competitors by offering
clients improved productivity from reduced employee absence, has enhanced the Company’s ability to market its group
employee benefit products to large employers. In 2003, the Company introduced a suite of voluntary group life, disability
and accidental death and dismemberment products that are sold to employees at their worksite. This suite of voluntary
benefits allows the employees of the Company’s clients to choose the type and amount of benefit. In underwriting its
group employee benefit products, the Company attempts to avoid concentrations of business in any industry segment or
geographic area.

The Company’s group employee benefit products are sold to employer groups primarily through independent brokers and
agents. The Company’s products are marketed to brokers and agents by 114 sales representatives and managers. RSLIC
had 99 sales representatives and managers located in 25 sales offices nationwide at December 31, 2003, up 41% from 70
sales representatives and managers at the end of 2000. At December 31, 2003, SNCC had 12 sales representatives and
managers and Matrix had 3 sales representatives and managers. The Company’s three administrative offices and 25 sales
offices also service existing business.

The following table sets forth for the periods indicated selected financial data concerning the Company’s group employee

benefit products:
Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001

(dollars in thousands)

Insurance premiums:
Core Products:

Life oottt $241,902 35.9% $210,030 37.6% $ 170,772 37.8%
Disability income .........cccocenivnininnncne 233,437 347 195,052 349 162,602 36.0
Excess workers’ compensation .............. 151,522 22.5 104,170 18.6 73,404 16.2
Travel accident, dental and other ........... 46,792 6.9 49.922 8.9 45.380 10.0

$673.653 _100.0% $559.174 _100.0%  $452.158 _100.0%

Non-Core Products:.......ccccoeevieiivrnvneeeeeenens

Loss portfolio transfers ...........ccocevvevenne - 26,830 4,340
Reinsurance facilities .........c.ooeeevveveneeene 344 771 7,872
1071 51-) U SSOTOON 22,039 21,724 23.624
22,383 49,325 35.836
Total insurance premiums .................. $ 696,036 $ 608,499 $ 487,994
Sales (new annualized gross premiums):
Core Products:
Lif€. et $ 68,200 31.0% $ 70,900 352% $ 55,606 34.9%
Disability income .........c.coooverereereeenenne. 84,920 38.6 75,996 37.8 60,628 38.1
Excess workers’ compensation .............. 45,058 20.5 30,796 15.3 18,110 114
Travel accident, dental and other ........... 21,933 9.9 23.454 11.7 24.774 15.6

$220,111 _100.0% $201.146 _1000%  $159,118 _100.0%

Non-Core Products:

Loss portfolio transfers ...........cccccvevenenn - 26,830 4,340
OthET ..oovviricreceeeeecee e 14,513 13,171 28,765
14,513 40,001 33.105

Total sales.......ccocevecrennninnnninnens $234.624 $241,147 $192223




The profitability of group employee benefit products is affected by, among other things, differences between actual and
projected claims experience, the retention of existing customers and the Company’s ability to attract new customers,
change premium rates and contract terms and control administrative expenses. The Company transfers its exposure to
some group employee benefit risks through reinsurance ceded arrangements with other insurance and reinsurance
companies. Under these arrangements, another insurer assumes a specified portion of the Company’s losses and loss
adjustment expenses in exchange for a specified portion of policy premiums. See “Reinsurance.” Therefore, the
profitability of group employee benefit products is affected by the amount, cost and terms of reinsurance obtained by the
Company. Profitability of certain group employee benefit products is also affected by the difference between the yield
achieved on invested assets and the discount rate used to calculate the related reserves.

The table below shows the loss and expense ratios as a percent of premium income for the Company’s group employee
benefit products for the periods indicated.

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
LLOSS TALO oo eereeersesasseeseseeeeesseseeereeesesesssesesesesesesmnmsere st eneerasees 68.2% 69.2% 75.0%M
EXPENSE TALI0....c.viveeiireririeceieieeeiee et e b st e e 26.1 254 27.0
COMBINEA TR0 1.t reeere e erereeeeeerenasesereesereneeees 94.3% 94.6% 102.0%"

(1) The loss ratio and combined ratio for 2001 excluding the reserve strengthening discussed in the following paragraph are 65.9% and 92.9%,
respectively.

The loss ratio for 2001 reflects a reserve strengthening charge which was primarily related to an unusually high number of
large losses in the Company’s excess workers’ compensation business. Prior to 2001, SNCC’s historical average for
losses exceeding $2.0 million in its excess workers’ compensation products was one to two per year. In 2001, however,
the Company experienced seven such losses, including two losses as a result of the terrorist attacks on the World Trade
Center. The case reserves for these seven losses totaled $15.3 million, including $6.3 million attributable to the World
Trade Center attacks. Though the Company believed that the high number of large losses was unlikely to recur, the
Company added $24.0 million to its reserve for incurred but not reported (“IBNR”) losses since its method of estimating
IBNR reserves is based on past experience. In the years subsequent to 2001, the number of large losses experienced by
the Company returned to the Company’s pre-2001 historical average. The Company also added $5.0 million to its long-
term disability IBNR reserves in 2001 for potential mental and nervous disabilities related to the World Trade Center
attacks. The reserve strengthening charge reduced 2001 net income by $28.8 million, or $0.91 per diluted share. The loss
and expense ratios are also affected by, among other things, claims development related to prior years and the results with
respect to the Company’s non-core group employee benefit products. Such ratios can also be affected by changes in the
Company’s mix of products, such as the level of premium from loss portfolio transfers (“LPTs”), from year to year. LPTs,
which are classified as a non-core product due to the episodic nature of sales, carry a higher loss ratio and a significantly
lower expense ratio as compared to the Company’s other group employee benefit products.

The Company’s group life insurance products provide for the payment of a stated amount upon the death of a member of
the insured group. Policy terms are generally one year. Accidental death and dismemberment insurance, which provides
for the payment of a stated amount upon the accidental death or dismemberment of a member of the insured group, is
frequently sold in conjunction with group life policies and is included in premiums charged for group life insurance. The
Company reinsures risks in excess of $150,000 per individual and type of coverage for employer-provided group life
insurance policies and $100,000 per individual for voluntary group term life policies. See “Reinsurance.”

Group disability products offered by the Company, principally long-term disability insurance, generally provide a
specified level of periodic benefits for a specified period to persons who, because of sickness or injury, are unable to
work. The Company’s group long-term disability coverages are spread across many industries. Long-term disability
benefits generally are paid monthly and typically are limited for any one employee to two-thirds of the employee’s earned
income up to a specified maximum benefit. Long-term disability benefits are usually offset by income the claimant
receives from other sources, primarily Social Security disability benefits. The Company actively manages its disability
claims, working with claimants to help them return to work as quickly as possible. When claimants’ disabilities prevent
them from returning to their original occupations, the Company, in appropriate cases, may provide assistance in
developing new productive skills for an alternative career. Premiums are generally determined annually for disability
insurance and are based upon expected morbidity and the insured group’s emerging experience, as well as assumptions
regarding operating expenses and future interest rates. Effective October 1, 2003 for new policies and, for existing
policies, the earlier of the next policy anniversary date or October 1, 2004, the Company will reinsure risks in excess of
$7,500 (compared to $2,500 previously) in long-term disability benefits per individual per month. See “Reinsurance” and
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Liquidity and Capital
Resources — Reinsurance.”
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Excess workers’ compensation insurance products provide coverage to employers and groups who self-insure their
workers’ compensation risks. The coverage applies to losses in excess of the applicable self-insured retentions (“SIRs” or
deductibles) of employers and groups, whose workers’ compensation claims are generally handled by third-party
administrators (“TPAs”). These products are principally targeted to mid-sized companies and other groups, particularly
small municipalities, hospitals and schools. These employers and groups are believed to be less prone to catastrophic
workers’ compensation exposures and less price sensitive than larger account business. Because excess workers’
compensation claim payments do not begin until after the self-insured’s total loss payments equali the SIR, the period from
when the claim is incurred to the time claim payments begin averages 15 years. At that point, the payments are primarily
for wage replacement, similar to the benefit provided under long-term disability coverage, and any medical payments tend
to be stable and predictable. This family of products also includes large deductible workers’ compensation insurance,
which provides coverage similar to excess workers’ compensation insurance, and a complementary product, workers’
compensation self-insurance bonds.

The pricing environment and demand for excess workers’ compensation insurance has improved substantially since 2000
due to higher primary workers’ compensation rates and disruption in the excess workers’ compensation marketplace due
to difficulties experienced by some competitors, particularly during 2000. These trends accelerated during the second half
0f 2001 as sharply higher primary workers’ compensation rates and rising reinsurance costs due to the terrorist attacks on
the World Trade Center increased the demand for alternatives to primary workers’ compensation. As a result, the demand
for excess workers’ compensation products and the rates for such products continued to increase. SNCC was able to
obtain significant price increases in connection with its renewals of insurance coverage during 2002 and 2003, with
increases exceeding 25% and 15%, respectively, on a substantial portion of such renewals. SNCC has also been obtaining
significant improvements in contract terms, in particular higher SIR levels, in these renewals. On average, SIRs increased
10% in 2002 and 13% in 2003. SNCC has continued to obtain price increases averaging 16% on its 2004 renewals and
SIR levels on average are up 7%. New business production for excess workers’ compensation products increased 70% in
2002 and 46% in 2003 and the retention of existing customers was consistent with SNCC’s goals. During 2003, the
Company replaced certain of its existing reinsurance arrangements for its excess workers’ compensation products. Under
the replacement arrangements, the Company reinsures excess workers’ compensation risks between $5.0 million
(compared to $3.0 million previously) and $50.0 million, and a majority in proportionate amount of the risks between
$50.0 million and $100.0 million, per policy per occurrence. See “Reinsurance” and “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Liquidity and Capital Resources — Reinsurance.”

As a result of the terrorist attacks on the World Trade Center, a number of the Company's reinsurers have excluded
coverage for losses resulting from terrorism. In November 2002, the Terrorism Risk Insurance Act of 2002 (the
“Terrorism Act”) was enacted. The Terrorism Act establishes a program under which the federal government will share
with the insurance industry the risk of loss from covered acts of international terrorism. The program terminates on
December 31, 20035, and the U.S. Secretary of the Treasury (the “Secretary”) has the option to extend it through December
31, 2006. The Terrorism Act applies to all direct lines of property and casualty insurance written by SNCC, including
excess workers’ compensation. The federal government would pay 90% of each covered loss and the insurer would pay
the remaining 10%. Each insurer has a separate deductible before federal assistance becomes available in the event of an
act of terrorism. The deductible is based on a percentage of the insurer’s direct earned premiums from the previous
calendar year. The deductible is 7%, 10% and 15% of direct earned premiums in 2003, 2004 and 2005, respectively. The
maximum after-tax loss to the Company for 2004 within the Terrorism Act deductible from property and casualty products
is approximately 1.4% of the Company’s shareholders’ equity as of December 31, 2003. Any payments made by the
government under the Terrorism Act would be subject to recoupment via surcharges to policyholders when future
premiums are billed. The Terrorism Act does not apply to the lines of insurance written by the Company’s life insurance
subsidiaries.

Business travel accident as well as voluntary accidental death and dismemberment insurance policies pay a stated amount
based on a predetermined schedule in the event of the accidental death or dismemberment of a member of the insured
group. The Company reinsures risks in excess of $150,000 per individual and type of coverage. Group dental insurance
provides coverage for preventive, restorative and specialized dentistry up to a stated maximum benefit per individual per
year. The Company ceded 50% of its risk under dental policies with effective dates prior to 2003 under a reinsurance
arrangement and cedes 100% of its risk under dental policies with effective dates in 2003 or later under such arrangement.

See “Reinsurance.”

Non-core group employee benefit products include products that have been discontinued, such as reinsurance facilities
and excess casualty insurance, newer products which have not demonstrated their financial potential, products which are
not expected to comprise a significant percentage of earned premiums and products for which sales are episodic in nature,
such as LPTs. Pursuant to an LPT, the Company, in exchange for a specified one-time payment, assumes responsibility
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for an existing block of disability or self-insured workers’ compensation claims. These products are typically marketed to
the same types of clients who have historically purchased the Company’s disability and excess workers’ compensation
products. Non-core group employee benefit products also include primary workers’ compensation for which the Company
primarily receives fee income since a significant portion of the risk is reinsured. Excess casualty insurance consists of a
discontinued excess umbrella liability program. This program entails exposure to excess of loss liability claims from past
years, including environmental and asbestos-related claims. Net incurred losses and loss adjustment expenses relating to
this program totaled $4.4 million in 2003. In addition, non-core group employee benefit products include bail bond
insurance and workers’ compensation and property catastrophe reinsurance. See “Reinsurance.”

Asset Accumulation Products

The Company’s asset accumulation products consist of fixed annuities, primarily single premium deferred annuities
(“SPDAs”) and flexible premium annuities (“FPAs™). An SPDA provides for a single payment by an annuity holder to the
Company and the crediting of interest by the Company on the annuity contract at the applicable crediting rate. An FPA
provides for periodic payments by an annuity holder to the Company, the timing and amount of which are at the discretion
of the annuity holder, and the crediting of interest by the Company on the annuity contract at the applicable crediting rate.
Interest credited on SPDAs and FPAs is not paid currently to the annuity holder but instead accumulates and is added to
the annuity contract’s account value. This accumulation is tax deferred. The crediting rate may be increased or decreased
by the Company subject to specified guaranteed minimum crediting rates, which currently range from 3.0% to 5.5%. For
most of the Company’s annuity products, the crediting rate may be reset by the Company annually, typically on the policy
anniversary. The Company’s annuity products also include multi-year interest guarantee products, in which the crediting
rate is fixed at a stated rate for a specified period of years, such periods ranging from three to eight years. At December
31, 2003, the weighted average crediting rate on the Company’s annuity products as a group was 4.86%, which includes
the effects of the first year crediting rate bonus on certain newly issued products. Withdrawals may be made by the
annuity holder at any time, but some withdrawals may result in the assessment of surrender charges, taxes, and/or tax
penalties on the withdrawn amount. In addition, the accumulated value of the annuity may be increased or decreased under
a market value adjustment (“MVA”) provision if it is surrendered during the surrender charge period. The Company does
__not market variable annuity products.

These fixed annuity products are sold predominantly to individuals through networks of independent agents. In 2003, the
Company’s SPDA products accounted for $85.8 million of asset accumulation product deposits, of which $77.0 million
was attributable to the MV A annuity product, and $13.1 million was attributable to FPA products, of which $11.6 million
had an MVA feature. Four networks of independent agents accounted for approximately 70% of the deposits from these
SPDA and FPA products during 2003, with no other network of independent agents accounting for more than 10% of
these deposits. The Company believes that it has a good relationship with these networks.

The following table sets forth for the periods indicated selected financial data concerning the Company’s asset
accumulation products:

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
(dollars in thousands)
Asset accumulation product deposits (5ales) .........ccovevveeverieieicriireeeneane. $ 100,636 $ 135,046 $ 90,159
Funds under management (at period end) ........co.eoveerrecnnenecennenerennas 929,922 878,820 786,214

At December 31, 2003, funds under management consisted of $829.3 million of SPDA liabilities and $100.6 million of
FPA liabilities. Of these liabilities, $621.4 million were subject to surrender charges averaging 6.58% at December 31,
2003. Annuity liabilities not subject to surrender charges have been in force, on average, for 20 years.

The Company prices its annuity products based on assumptions concerning prevailing and expected interest rates and
other factors to achieve a positive spread between its expected return on investments and the crediting rate. The Company
achieves this spread by active portfolio management focusing on matching invested assets and related liabilities to
minimize the exposure to fluctuations in market interest rates and by the adjustment of the crediting rate on its annuity
products. In response to changes in interest rates, the Company increases or decreases the crediting rates on its annuity
products.




In light of the annuity holder’s ability to withdraw funds and the volatility of market interest rates, it is difficult to predict
the timing of the Company’s payment obligations under its SPDAs and FPAs. Consequently, the Company maintains a
portfolio of investments which are readily marketable and expected to be sufficient to satisfy liquidity requirements. See
“Investments.”

Other Products and Services

The Company provides integrated disability and absence management services on a nationwide basis through Matrix,
which was acquired in June 1998. See “Other Transactions” and Note B to the Consolidated Financial Statements. The
Company’s comprehensive disability and absence management services are designed to assist clients in identifying and
minimizing lost productivity and benefit payment costs resulting from employee absence due to illness, injury or personal
leave. The Company offers services including event reporting, leave of absence management, claims and case
management and return to work management. These services’ goal is to enhance employee productivity and provide more
efficient benefit delivery and enhanced cost containment. The Company provides these services on an unbundled basis or
in a unique Integrated Employee Benefit program that combines these services with various group employee benefit
insurance coverages. The Company believes that these integrated disability and absence management services
complement the Company’s core group employee benefit products, enhancing the Company’s ability to market these core
products and providing the Company with a competitive advantage in the market for these products.

In 1991, the Company introduced a variable flexible premium universal life insurance policy under which the related
assets are segregated in a separate account not subject to claims of general creditors of the Company. Policyholders may
elect to deposit amounts in the account from time to time, subject to underwriting limits and a minimum initial deposit of
$1.0 million. Both the cash values and death benefits of these policies fluctuate according to the investment experience of
the assets in the separate account; accordingly, the investment risk with respect to these assets is borne by the
policyholders. The Company earns fee income from the separate account in the form of charges for management and
other administrative fees. The Company is not presently actively marketing this product. The Company reinsures risks in
excess of $200,000 per individual under indemnity reinsurance arrangements with various reinsurance companies. See
“Reinsurance.”

Underwriting Procedures

Premiums charged on insurance products are based in part on assumptions about the incidence, severity and timing of
insurance claims. The Company has adopted and follows detailed underwriting procedures designed to assess and qualify
insurance risks before issuing its policies. To implement these procedures, the Company employs a professional
underwriting staff.

In underwriting group coverage, the Company focuses on the overall risk characteristics of the group to be insured and the
geographic concentration of its new and renewal business. A prospective group client is evaluated with particular
attention paid to the claims experience of the group with prior carriers, the occupations of the insureds, the nature of the
business of the client, the current economic outlook of the client in relation to others in its industry and of the industry as a
whole, the appropriateness of the benefits or SIR applied for and income from other sources during disability. The
Company’s products generally afford it the flexibility to adjust premiums charged annually to its policyholders in order to
reflect emerging mortality or morbidity experience.

Investments

The Company’s management of its investment portfolio is an important component of its profitability since a substantial
portion of its operating income is generated from the difference between the yield achieved on invested assets and, in the
case of asset accumulation products, the interest credited on policyholder funds and, in the case of certain of the
Company’s other products, the discount rate used to calculate the related reserves. The Company’s overall investment
strategy to achieve its objectives of safety and liquidity, while seeking the best available return, focuses on, among other
things, matching of the Company’s interest-sensitive assets and liabilities and seeking to minimize the Company’s
exposure to fluctuations in interest rates.




For information regarding the composition and diversification of the Company’s investment portfolio and asset/liability
management, see “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations - Liquidity
and Capital Resources” and Notes A, C and J to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The following table sets forth for the periods indicated the Company’s pretax investment results:

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
(dollars in thousands)
Average invested assets M $ 2,948,135 $ 2,556,076 $ 2,312,975
Net investment income @ . 186,366 162,036 157,509
Tax equivalent weighted average annual yield ) 6.5% 6.6% 7.0%

(1) Average invested assets are computed by dividing the total of invested assets as reported on the balance sheet at the beginning of each year plus
the individual quarter-end balances by five and deducting one-half of net investment income.

(2) Consists principally of interest and dividend income less investment expenses.

(3) The tax equivalent weighted average annual yield on the Company’s investment portfolio for each period is computed by dividing net
investment income, increased to reflect tax exempt interest income and similar tax savings, by average invested assets for the period. See
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations - Results of Operations.”

Reinsurance

The Company participates in various reinsurance arrangements both as the ceding insurer and as the assuming insurer.
Arrangements in which the Company is the ceding insurer afford various levels of protection against excessive loss by
assisting the Company in diversifying its risks and by limiting its maximum loss on risks that exceed retention limits.
Under indemnity reinsurance transactions in which the Company is the ceding insurer, the Company remains liable for
policy claims if the assuming company fails to meet its obligations. To limit this risk, the Company monitors the financial
position of its reinsurers, including, among other things, the companies’ financial ratings, and in certain cases receives
collateral security from the reinsurer. Also, certain of the Company’s reinsurance agreements require the reinsurer to set
up security arrangements for the Company’s benefit in the event of certain ratings downgrades. In addition, the U.S.
federal government presently provides certain protections for insurers who issue certain property and casualty insurance
coverages. See “Business — Group Employee Benefit Products.”

The Company cedes portions of the risks relating to its group employee benefit and variable life insurance products under
indemnity reinsurance agreements with various unaffiliated reinsurers. The terms of these agreements, which are typical
for agreements of this type, provide, among other things, for the automatic acceptance by the reinsurer of ceded risks in
excess of the Company’s retention limits stated in the agreements. The Company pays reinsurance premiums to these
reinsurers which are, in general, based upon percentages of premiums received by the Company on the business reinsured
less, in certain cases, ceding commissions and experience refunds paid by the reinsurer to the Company. These
agreements are generally terminable as to new risks by either the Company or the reinsurer on appropriate notice;
however, termination does not affect risks ceded during the term of the agreement, which generally remain with the
reinsurer. See “Business — Group Employee Benefit Products” and Note Q to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

In January 1998, an offering was completed whereby shareholders and optionholders of the Company received, at no cost,
rights to purchase shares of Delphi International Ltd. (“Delphi International”), a newly-formed, independent Bermuda
insurance holding company. During 1998, the Company entered into various reinsurance agreements with Oracle
Reinsurance Company Ltd. (“Oracle Re”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Delphi International. Pursuant to these
agreements, approximately $101.5 million of group employee benefit reserves ($35.0 million of long-term disability
insurance reserves and $66.5 million of net excess workers’ compensation and casualty insurance reserves) were ceded to
Oracle Re. The Company received collateral security from Oracle Re in an amount sufficient to support the ceded
reserves. During 2000 and 1999, Oracle Re and the Company effected the partial recaptures of approximately $4.6
million and $10.0 million, respectively, of the group long-term disability liabilities ceded to Oracle Re. In October 2001,
Oracle Re and the Company effected the commutation of their reinsurance agreements, pursuant to which Oracle Re paid
approximately $84.0 million to the Company (net of $11.5 million which had been held by the Company) related to the
reserves ceded to Oracle Re under such agreements. These transactions did not have a material impact on the Company’s
consolidated financial position, liquidity or net income. In furtherance of the commutation of the reinsurance agreements,
the Company agreed to waive a portion of the amounts due to the Company under certain subordinated notes issued by
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Delphi International. As a result of this waiver, the Company recognized a pre-tax loss of $7.5 million in 2001 for the
other than temporary decline in the value of these notes. In March 2002, Delphi International repaid the adjusted amounts
due under the subordinated notes and the Company did not realize any significant additional loss in connection with such

repayment.

The Company assumes certain workers’ compensation and property risks through reinsurance. In these arrangements, the
Company provides coverage for losses in excess of specified amounts, subject to specified maximums. Coverage for
losses as a result of terrorism is generally excluded from these reinsurance treaties. The attachment points for workers’
compensation reinsurance range from $1 million to $50 million. Aggregate exposures assumed under individual workers’
compensation treaties generally range from $1 million to $3 million, with the highest net exposure pursuant to any such
treaty equal to $5 million. The Company underwrites workers’ compensation reinsurance assumed pursuant to procedures
similar to those utilized in connection with its excess workers’ compensation product. The majority of the Company’s
property reinsurance provides coverage in the event of a catastrophe, generally excluding losses resulting from terrorism.
The Company underwrites its property reinsurance to mitigate its risk by diversifying geographicaily and limiting its
exposure on any one treaty. On property reinsurance, the Company’s risk attachment points range from $1 million to $20
billion, with an average attachment point of $2.75 billion. The Company’s aggregate exposure under a single property
treaty generally ranges from $1 million to $2 million. The highest net exposure under a single property treaty is $2
million. The probable maximum loss on property reinsurance is estimated to be approximately $6.6 million, net of
reinstatement premium and taxes, or less than 1% of the Company’s shareholders’ equity.

The Company had in the past participated as an assuming insurer in a number of reinsurance facilities. These reinsurance
facilities generally are administered by TPAs or managing underwriters who underwrite risks, coordinate premiums
charged and process claims. During 1999 and 2000, the Company terminated, on a prospective basis, its participations in
all of the reinsurance facilities in which the Company had participated. However, the terms of such facilities provide for
the continued assumption of risks by, and payments of premiums to, facility participants with respect to business written in
the periods during which they formerly participated in such facilities. The Company is currently a party to certain
arbitration proceedings arising out of two such facilities. See “Legal Proceedings.” Premium income from all reinsurance
facilities was $0.3 million, $0.8 million and $7.9 million in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively, and incurred losses from
these facilities were $5.1 million, $4.7 million and $10.6 million in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The reinsurance
facilities did not constitute a significant part of the Company’s operations; accordingly, the Company’s withdrawals from
these facilities has not had a material impact on its consolidated financial position, liquidity or results of operations.

Life, Annuity, Disability and Accident Reserves

The Company carries as liabilities actuarially determined reserves for its life, annuity, disability and accident policy and
contract obligations. These reserves, together with premiums to be received on policies in force and interest thereon at
certain assumed rates, are calculated and established at levels believed to be sufficient to satisfy policy and contract
obligations. The Company performs periodic studies to compare current experience for mortality, morbidity, interest and
lapse rates with the experience reflected in the reserve assumptions to determine future policy benefit reserves for these
products. Reserves for future policy benefits and unpaid claims and claim expenses are estimated based on individual loss
data, historical loss data and industry averages and indices and include amounts determined on the basis of individual and
actuarially determined estimates of future losses. Therefore, the ultimate liability could deviate from the amounts
currently reflected in the Consolidated Financial Statements. Differences between actua! and expected claims experience
are reflected currently in earnings for each period. The Company has not experienced significant adverse deviations from
its assumptions. In the fourth quarter of 2001, the Company added $5.0 million to its long-term disability IBNR reserves
for potential mental and nervous disability claims related to the World Trade Center attacks.

The life, annuity, disability and accident reserves carried in the Consolidated Financial Statements are calculated based on
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (“GAAP”) and differ from those reported by the Company
for statutory financial statement purposes. These differences arise from the use of different mortality and morbidity tables
and interest assumptions, the introduction of lapse assumptions into the reserve calculation and the use of the net level
method on all insurance business. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations — Critical Accounting Policies” and Note A to the Consolidated Financial Statements for certain additional
information regarding reserve assumptions under GAAP.




Excess Workers’ Compensation Insurance Reserves

The Company carries as liabilities actuarially determined reserves for anticipated claims and claim expenses for its excess
workers’ compensation insurance and other casualty insurance products. Reserves for claim expenses represent the
estimated probable costs of investigating those claims and, when necessary, defending lawsuits in connection with those
claims. Reserves for claims and claim expenses are estimated based on individual loss data, historical loss data and
industry averages and indices and include amounts determined on the basis of individual and actuarially determined
estimates of future losses. Therefore, the ultimate liability could deviate from the amounts currently reflected in the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Reserving practices under GAAP allow discounting of claim reserves related to excess workers’ compensation losses to
reflect the time value of money. Reserve discounting for these types of claims is common industry practice, and the
discount factors used are less than the annual tax-equivalent investment yield earned by the Company on its invested
assets. The discount factors are based on the expected duration and payment pattern of the claims at the time the claims
are settled and the risk-free rate of return for U.S. government securities with a comparable duration. Reserves for claim
expenses are not discounted.

The following table provides a reconciliation of beginning and ending unpaid claims and claim expenses for the periods
indicated:
Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
(dollars in thousands)

Unpaid claims and claim expenses, net of reinsurance,
beginning of period.............. U VOOV VPR USUSRTSTSTRRRTOP $ 439,147 % 413950 § 302,514

Add provision for claims and claim expenses incurred, net
of reinsurance, occurring during:

Current year 82,372 82,197 73,782
PO YEars @ ...t 20.541 15.869 13.896
Incurred claims and claim expenses, net of reinsurance,
during the current year..........c.ccovviniicnicinnninin, 102,913 98.066 87.678
Deduct claims and claim expenses paid, net of reinsurance,
occurring during:
CUITENE YEAT......eiiieeieererraereeaeireeneeerneseeseeeeeeeseeesanessaessassnnesnnesss 5,165 10,915 6,014
PHOT YEArS @) ..ot 57.235 61,954 (29.772)
Total paid......c.oovereeeirerecrcre e 62.400 72.869 (23.758)
Unpaid claims and claim expenses, net of reinsurance, end of period ... 479,660 439,147 413,950
Reinsurance receivables, end of period..........coccoevemeiciminnnccneinenenns 93.030 95,709 52,828
Unpaid claims and claim expenses, gross of reinsurance,
end Of PETIOQ......cceiereec e e $ 572690 $ 534856 § 506,778

(1) The provision for claims and claim expenses incurred in 2001 includes a reserve strengthening charge of $39.3 million primarily related to an
unusually high number of large losses in the Company’s excess workers’ compensation business. Prior to 2001, SNCC’s historical average
for losses exceeding $2.0 million in its excess workers” compensation products was one to two per year. In 2001, however, the Company
experienced seven such losses, including two losses as a result of the terrorist attacks on the World Trade Center. The case reserves for these
seven losses totaled $15.3 million, including $6.3 million attributable to the World Trade Center attacks. Though the Company believed that
the high number of large losses was unlikely to recur, the Company added $24.0 million to its reserve for IBNR losses since its method of
estimating IBNR reserves is based on past experience. In the years subsequent to 2001, the number of large losses experienced by the
Company returned to the Company’s pre-2001 historical average.

(2) In 2003 and 2002, the claims and claim expenses incurred related to prior years reflect accretion of discounted reserves offset by favorable
claims development. In 2001, the claims and claim expenses incurred related to prior years reflect the accretion of discounted reserves and

unfavorable claims development.

~

(3) In 2001, the payments of claims and claim expenses occurring in prior years reflect the Company’s receipt of $74.3 million related to the
commutation of the reinsurance agreements with Oracle Re. See “Business — Reinsurance.”




The effects of the discount to reflect the time value of money have been removed from the amounts set forth in the loss
development table which follows in order to present the gross loss development, net of reinsurance. During 2003, 2002
and 2001, $21.5 million, $17.2 million and $9.5 million, respectively, of discount was amortized, and $44.9 million, $34.6
million and $32.1 million, respectively, was accrued. The loss development table below illustrates the development of
reserves from March 5, 1996 to December 31, 2003 and is net of reinsurance.

March 5, December 31,
19960 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003
(dollars in thousands)

Reserve for unpaid
claims and claim
expenses, net of
reinsurance........... $520,370 $532,923 $541,280 $422,159 $434,513 $444,061 $638,191 $680,835 $744,760
Cumulative amount of
liability paid:
One year later..... 23,467 28,162 98,365 40,815 40,660 (29,990) ® 61,954 = 57,235
Two years later... 50,713 125,020 127,481 74,571 4,020 26,398 112,639
Three years later. 140,943 152,842 156,119 33,429 54846 71,938
Four years later.. 167,811 179,705 111,253 ® 78981 94,899
Five years later... 193,363 133,228 @ 150,772 114,295
7 'Six years later..... 153,504 @170,405 182,281
Seven years later 188,719 197,318
Eight years later... 214,715
Liability reestimated as of:
One year later...... 507,375 513,402 523,430 410,875 424,187 442,624 636,125 678,535
Two years later... 487,830 500,964 511,602 404,559 420,420 442,807 634,578
Three years later. 476,854 488432 503,906 401,475 417,869 446,948
Four years later.. 476,600 487,195 500,514 396,403 423,426
Five years later... 476,890 478,206 492,280 399,311
Six years later..... 470,283 468,142 493,586
Seven years later 460,670 472,492
Eight years later... 463,015

Cumulative redundancy
(deficiency).......... $ 57,355 $60,431 $47,694 $22,848 $11,087 $ (2,887) § 3,613 § 2,300

(1) Amounts are as of or for the periods subsequent to March 5, 1996, the date the Company acquired its workers’ compensation business.

(2) The cumulative amount of liability paid tﬁrough December 31, 2001 reflects the Company’s receipt of $74.3 million related to the
commutation of the reinsurance agreements with Oracle Re in 2001.

The “Reserve for unpaid claims and claim expenses, net of reinsurance” line in the table above shows the estimated reserve
for unpaid claims and claim expenses recorded at the end of each of the periods indicated. These net liabilities represent
the estimated amount of losses and expenses for claims arising in the current year and all prior years that are unpaid at the
end of each period. The “Cumulative amount of liability paid” lines of the table represent the cumulative amounts paid
with respect to the liability previously recorded as of the end of each succeeding period. The “Liability reestimated” lines
of the table show the reestimated amount relating to the previously recorded liability and is based upon experience as of the
end of each succeeding period. This estimate is either increased or decreased as additional information about the
frequency and severity of claims for each period becomes available and is reviewed. The Company periodically reviews
the estimated reserves for claims and claim expenses and any changes are reflected currently in earnings for each period.
The Company has not experienced significant adverse deviations from its assumptions, except for the unusually high
number of large losses in the Company’s excess workers’ compensation business in 2001. The “Cumulative redundancy
(deficiency)” line in the table represents the aggregate change in the net estimated claim reserve liabilities from the dates

indicated through December 31, 2003.
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The table below illustrates the effects of the discount to reflect the time value of money that was removed from the
amounts set forth in the loss development table above.

March 5, December 31,
1996 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003
(dollars in thousands)

Reserve for unpaid claims and
claim expenses before
discount:
Gross of reinsurance $ 533,871  $549,653 $564,734 $586,984 $ 613,693 $650,765 $731,019 $776,544  $837,790
Deduct reinsurance
recoverable ........ 13.501 16,730 23.454 _164.825 _ 179,180 _206.704 92.828 95,709 93.030
Net of reinsurance.. 520,370 532,923 541,280 422,159 434,513 444,061 638,191 680,835 744,760

Deduct discount for time
value of money .......... 164.000 168.827 176.683 113.507 127.357 141,547 224,241 241,688 _265.100

Unpaid claims and claim
expenses as reported
on balance sheets, net

of discount and net of
reinsurance ................ 356,370 _364.096 _364.597 _308.652 _307.156 _302514 _413.950 _439.147 $479,660

Reestimated unpaid claims

and claim expenses, net of

discount, as of December

31, 2003:
Gross of reinsurance 430,211, 429,803 442,112, 463,270... 498,572 534,903 _ 574962 _ 571,861
Deduct reinsurance .

recoverable .... 41,054 42.355 48.416 118.553 145.487 178,003 125,038 112.173

Net of reinsurance.. _389,157 _ 387.448 393.696 _ 344717 _353.085 356,900 449,924  459.688

Discounted cumulative
(deficiency)...cccoreeene. (32,787)  (23,352) (29,099) (36,065) (45,929) (54,386) (35,974) (20,541)

Add accretion of discount__ 90,142 83.783 76.793 58.913 57.016 51,499 39.587 22.841

Cumulative redundancy
(deficiency) before
discount ........ccoccneueen. $ 57355 $ 60431 $ 47,694 § 22,848 § 11,087 § (2,887) § 3,613 $§ 2300

(1) Amounts are as of or for the periods subsequent to March §, 1996, the date the Company acquired its workers’ compensation business.

The excess workers’ compensation insurance reserves carried in the Consolidated Financial Statements are calculated in
accordance with GAAP and, net of reinsurance, are approximately $111.6 million less than those reported by the
Company for statutory financial statement purposes at December 31, 2003. This difference is primarily due to the use of
different discount factors as between GAAP and statutory accounting principles and differences in the bases against which
such discount factors are applied. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resuits of
Operations — Critical Accounting Policies” and Note A to the Consolidated Financial Statements for certain additional
information regarding reserve assumptions under GAAP.

Competition

The financial services industry is highly competitive. The Company competes with numerous other insurance and
financial services companies both in connection with sales of insurance and asset accumulation products and integrated
disability and absence management services and in acquiring blocks of business and companies. Many of these
organizations have substantially greater asset bases, higher ratings from ratings agencies, larger and more diversified
portfolios of insurance products and larger sales operations. Competition in asset accumulation product markets is also
encountered from the expanding number of banks, securities brokerage firms and other financial intermediaries marketing
alternative savings products, such as mutual funds, traditional bank investments and retirement funding alternatives.

-11-




The Company believes that its reputation in the marketplace, quality of service, unique programs which integrate
employee benefit products and absence management services and investment returns have enabled it to compete
effectively for new business in its targeted markets. The Company reacts to changes in the marketplace generally by
focusing on products with adequate margins and attempting to avoid those with low margins. The Company believes that
its smaller size, relative to some of its competitors, enables it to more easily tailor its products to the demands of
customers.

Regulation

The Company’s insurance subsidiaries are regulated by state insurance authorities in the states in which they are domiciled
and the states in which they conduct business. These regulations, among other things, limit the amount of dividends and
other payments that can be made by the Company’s insurance subsidiaries without prior regulatory approval and impose
restrictions on the amount and type of investments these subsidiaries may have. These regulations also affect many other
aspects of the Company’s insurance subsidiaries’ business, including, for example, risk-based capital (“RBC”)
requirements, various reserve requirements, the terms, conditions and manner of sale and marketing of insurance products
and the form and content of required financial statements. These regulations are intended to protect policyholders rather
than investors. The Company’s insurance subsidiaries are required under these regulations to file detailed annual financial
reports with the supervisory agencies in the various states in which they do business, and their business and accounts are
subject to examination at any time by these agencies. To date, no examinations have produced any significant adverse
findings or adjustments. The ability of the Company’s insurance subsidiaries to continue to conduct their businesses is
dependent upon the maintenance of their licenses in these various states.

From time to time, increased scrutiny has been placed upon the insurance regulatory framework, and a number of state
legislatures have considered or enacted legislative measures that alter, and in many cases increase, state authority to
regulate insurance companies. In addition to legislative initiatives of this type, the National Association of Insurance
Commissioners (the “NAIC”) and insurance regulators are continuously involved in a process of reexamining existing
laws and regulations and their application to insurance companies. Furthermore, while the federal government currently
does not directly regulate the insurance business, federal legislation and admiinistrative policies in a number of areas, such
as employee benefits regulation, age, sex and disability-based discrimination, financial services regulation and federal
taxation, can significantly affect the insurance business. It is not possible to predict the future impact of changing
regulation on the operations of the Company and its insurance subsidiaries.

The NAIC’s RBC requirements for insurance companies take into account asset risks, insurance risks, interest rate risks -
and other relevant risks with respect to the insurer’s business and specify varying degrees of regulatory action to occur to
the extent that an insurer does not meet the specified RBC thresholds, with increasing degrees of regulatory scrutiny or
intervention provided for companies in categories of lesser RBC compliance. The Company believes that its insurance
subsidiaries are adequately capitalized under the RBC requirements and that the thresholds will not have any significant
regulatory effect on the Company. However, were the insurance subsidiaries’ RBC position to materially decline in the
future, the insurance subsidiaries’ continued ability to pay dividends and the degree of regulatory supervision or control to
which they are subjected may be affected.

The Company’s insurance subsidiaries can also be required, under solvency or guaranty laws of most states in which they
do business, to pay assessments to fund policyholder losses or liabilities of insurance companies that become insolvent.
These assessments may be deferred or forgiven under most solvency or guaranty laws if they would threaten an insurer’s
financial strength and, in most instances, may be offset against future state premium taxes. SNCC recognized expenses of
$1.6 million, $1.3 million and $1.2 million in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively, for these types of assessments. None of
the Company’s life insurance subsidiaries has ever incurred any significant costs of this nature.

Employees

The Company and its subsidiaries employed approximately 1,045 persons at December 31, 2003. The Company believes
that it enjoys good relations with its employees.
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QOther Subsidiaries

The Company conducts certain of its investment management activities through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Delphi
Capital Management, Inc. (“DCM”), and makes certain investments through other wholly-owned non-insurance
subsidiaries.

Other Transactions

On June 30, 1998, the Company acquired Matrix, a provider of integrated disability and absence management services to
the employee benefits market. The purchase price of $33.8 million consisted of 614,136 shares of the Company’s Class A
Common Stock, $7.9 million of cash and $5.7 million of 8% subordinated notes which matured in June 2003 (the
“Subordinated Notes™). Under the terms of the purchase agreement, additional consideration of up to $5.2 million in cash
was payable if Matrix’s earnings met specified targets over the four-year period subsequent to the acquisition. Because
Matrix met all of the specified targets, the Company paid the $5.2 million of contingent consideration in two equal
installments of $2.6 million during 2000 and 2001. See Note B to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

In April 1999, the Company completed the disposition of its Unicover Managers, Inc. subsidiary and a related company
{collectively, “Unicover”), which were acquired in the fourth quarter of 1998, to certain of the former owners of Unicover.
In January 2000, the Company received from Unicover’s pool and facility members and the retrocessionaires of
Unicover’s facilities legal releases relating to, among other things, the Company’s former ownership of Unicover. The
releases were obtained in connection with a global Unicover-related settlement involving Reliance Insurance Company, its
retrocessionaires and a group of ceding companies and brokers. The Company contributed to this settlement by agreeing
to rescind a quota share reinsurance contract with Reliance Insurance Company.

In the fourth quarter of 2000, the Company liquidated a substantial majority of the investments of its investment
subsidiaries. The proceeds from these sales were used in 2001 to repay $150.0 million of outstanding borrowings under
its revolving credit facilities, to repurchase $64.0 million liquidation amount of the Capital Securities of its subsidiary,
Delphi Funding L.L.C. (the “Capital Securities”), and to repurchase $8.0 million principal amount of its % Senior Notes
which matured in October 2003 (the “Matured Senior Notes”).

In May 2003, the Company issued $143.8 million of 8.00% Senior Notes due 2033 (the “2033 Senior Notes™) in a public
offering. The proceeds from the 2033 Senior Notes were used to repay the outstanding borrowings under the Company’s
revolving credit facility and to repay in full the principal amount of $66.5 million of the Matured Senior Notes. The 2033
Senior Notes, which were issued at par value, will mature on May 15, 2033 and are redeemable at par at the option of the
Company, in whole or in part, at any time on or after May 15, 2008. The 2033 Senior Notes are not redeemable at the
option of any holder of the notes prior to maturity nor are they entitled to any sinking fund redemptions. Interest on the
2033 Senior Notes is payable quarterly on February 15, May 15, August 15 and November 15 of each year. The 2033
Senior Notes are senior unsecured obligations of the Company and, as such, are effectively subordinated to all claims of
secured creditors of the Company and its subsidiaries and to claims of unsecured creditors of the Company’s subsidiaries,
including the insurance subsidiaries’ obligations to policyholders. As a result of the issuance of the 2033 Senior Notes,
under the terms of the Company’s revolving credit facility, the maximum amount of borrowings available to the Company
thereunder was reduced from $150 million to $100 million and the facility was converted to an unsecured facility, with
collateral being released to the Company. The 2033 Senior Notes were issued in denominations of $25 and multiples of
$25 and are listed on the New York Stock Exchange. See Note E 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements.

In May 2003, Delphi Financial Statutory Trust I (the “Trust™), a recently—created Connecticut statutory trust and wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, issued $20.0 million liquidation amount of Floating Rate Capital Securities (the “2003
Capital Securities”) in a private placement. In connection with the issuance of the 2003 Capital Securities and the related
purchase by the Company of all of the common securities of the Trust (the “2003 Common Securities” and, collectively
with the 2003 Capital Securities, the “Trust Securities”), the Company issued $20.6 million principal amount of floating
rate junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures, due 2033 (the “2003 Junior Debentures”). Interest on the 2003
Junior Debentures is payable quarterly on February 15, May 15, August 15 and November 15 of each year. The interest
rate on the 2003 Junior Debentures resets quarterly to a rate equal to the London interbank offered interest rate for three-
month U.S. dollar deposits, plus 4.10% (not to exceed 12.50%). The interest rate was 5.41% for the period from May 15,
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2003 through August 15, 2003, 5.23% for the period from August 16, 2003 through November 15, 2003, and 5.28% for
the period from November 16, 2003 through February 15, 2004. The distribution and other payment dates on the Trust
Securities correspond to the interest and other payment dates on the 2003 Junior Debentures. The 2003 Junior Debentures
are unsecured and subordinated in right of payment to all of the Company’s existing and future senior indebtedness.
Beginning in May 2008, the Company will have the right to redeem the 2003 Junior Debentures, in whole or in part, at a
price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the debentures, plus accrued and unpaid interest to the date of redemption.

On November 21, 2003, the Company’s Board of Directors declared a 3-for-2 common stock split effected in the form of
a 50% stock dividend, which was distributed on December 22, 2003 to stockholders of record on December 8, 2003. A
total of 11,211,435 shares of common stock were issued in connection with the split, and the aggregate amount of $0.1
million, equal to the par value of the common stock issued, was reclassified from additional paid-in capital to common
stock. The stated par value of each share remained at $0.01. Results per share and applicable share amounts for prior
periods have been restated to reflect the stock split.

Item 2. Properties

The Company leases its principal executive office at 1105 North Market Street, Suite 1230, Wilmington, Delaware under
an operating lease expiring in October 2009. RSLIC leases its administrative office at 2001 Market Street, Suite 1500,
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, under an operating lease expiring in June 2009. SNCC owns its home office building at 2043
Woodland Parkway, Suite 200, St. Louis, Missouri, which consists of approximately 58,000 square feet. SNCC also owns
a neighboring office building located at 2029 Woodland Parkway, St. Louis, Missouri. The building consists of
approximately 17,000 square feet and is intended for lease to third parties. DCM and FRSLIC lease their offices at 153
East 53™ Street, 49” Floor, New York, New York under an operating lease expiring in July 2008. Matrix leases its
principal office at 5225 Hellyer Avenue, Suite 210, San Jose, California under an operating lease expiring in December
2006. The Company also maintains sales and administrative offices throughout the country to provide nationwide sales
support and service existing business.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

In the course of its business, the Company is a party to litigation and other proceedings, primarily involving its insurance
operations. In some cases, these proceedings entail claims against the Company for punitive damages and similar types of
relief. The ultimate disposition of such pending litigation and proceedings is not expected to have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position. In addition, incident to its discontinued products, the Company
is currently a party to two separate arbitrations arising out of two accident and health reinsurance arrangements in which it
and other companies formerly were participating reinsurers. At issue in both arbitrations, among other things, is whether
certain reinsurance risks were validly ceded to the Company. The hearings in these arbitrations are scheduled to be held
in the current year. While management believes that in both cases the Company has substantial legal grounds for avoiding
the reinsurance risks at issue, it is not at this time possible to predict the ultimate outcome of these arbitrations, nor is it
feasible to provide reasonable ranges of potential losses. In the opinion of management, such arbitrations, when
ultimately resolved, will not individually or collectively have a material adverse effect on the Company's consolidated

financial position.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

None.
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Item 4A. Executive Officers of the Company

The table below presents certain information concerning each of the executive officers of the Company:

Name Age Position

Robert Rosenkranz 61 Director of the Company; Chairman of the Board, President and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company; Chairman of the Board of RSLIC

Robert M. Smith, Jr. 52 Director and Executive Vice President of the Company

Chad W. Coulter 41 Vice President, Secretary and General Counsel of the Company; Vice
President, General Counsel and Assistant Secretary of RSLIC

Thomas W. Burghart 45 Vice President and Treasurer of the Company and RSLIC

Lawrence E. Daurelle 52 Director of the Company and President and Chief Executive Officer of RSLIC

Harold F. Ilg 56 Director of the Company and Chairman of the Board of SNCC

Mr. Rosenkranz has served as the President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company since May 1987 and has served
as Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company since April 1989. He also serves as Chairman of the Board or as a
Director of the Company’s principal subsidiaries. Mr. Rosenkranz, by means of beneficial ownership of the corporate
general partner of Rosenkranz & Company and direct or beneficial ownership, has the power to vote all of the outstanding
shares of Class B Common Stock, which represent 49.9% of the voting power of the Company’s common stock as of
March 1, 2004.

Mr. Smith has served as Executive Vice President of the Company and DCM since November 1999 and as a Director of
the Company since January 1995. He has also served as the Chief Investment Officer of RSLIC and FRSLIC since April
2001. From July 1994 to November 1999, he served as Vice President of the Company and DCM. Mr. Smith also serves
as a Director of the Company’s principal subsidiaries.

Mr. Coulter has served as Vice President and General Counsel of the Company and as Vice President, General Counsel
and Assistant Secretary of RSLIC, FRSLIC and RSLIC-Texas since January 1998, and has served as Secretary of the
Company since May 2003. He also served for RSLIC in similar capacities from February 1994 to August 1997, and in
various capacities from January 1991 to February 1994. From August 1997 to December 1997, Mr. Coulter was Vice
President and General Counsel of National Life of Vermont.

Mr. Burghart has served as Vice President and Treasurer of the Company since April 2001 and as Vice President and
Treasurer of RSLIC, FRSLIC and RSLIC-Texas since October 2000. From March 1992 to September 2000, he served as
the Second Vice President, Actuarial Statements, of RSLIC.

Mr. Daurelle has served as a Director of the Company since August 2002. He also has served as President and Chief
Executive Officer of RSLIC, FRSLIC and RSLIC-Texas since October 2000. He served as Vice President and Treasurer
of the Company from August 1998 to April 2001. He also serves on the Board of Directors of RSLIC, FRSLIC and
RSLIC-Texas. From May 1995 to October 2000, Mr. Daurelle was Vice President and Treasurer of RSLIC, FRSLIC and
RSLIC-Texas.

Mr. llg has served as a Director of the Company since August 2002. He also has served as Chairman of the Board of
SNCC since January 1999. He serves on the Board of Directors of RSLIC and FRSLIC. From April 1999 until October
2000, he served as President and Chief Executive Officer of RSLIC, FRSLIC, and RSLIC-Texas. Prior to January 1999,
he served as Vice Chairman of the Board of SNCC, where he has been employed in various capacities since 1978.
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PART Ii
Item 5. Market for the Company’s Common Stock and Related Shareholder Matters

The closing price of the Company’s Class A Common Stock was $39.25 on March 1, 2004. There were approximately
3,000 holders of record of the Company’s Class A Common Stock as of March 1, 2004,

The Company’s Class A Common Stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol DFG. The
following table sets forth the high and low sales prices for the Company’s Class A Common Stock and the cash dividends
paid per share for the Company’s Class A and Class B Common Stock. Prior pertods have been restated to reflect the 3-
for-2 common stock split distributed in the form of a stock dividend on December 22, 2003.

High Low Dividends
2002:  First Quarter $ 2645 $ 21.87 $ 005
Second Quarter 30.08 25.67 0.05
Third Quarter 29.00 22.57 0.05
Fourth Quarter 27.42 21.94 0.05
2003:  First Quarter $ 26.46 $ 21.73 $ o0.05
Second Quarter 31.77 25.67 0.05
Third Quarter 33.63 30.33 0.05
Fourth Quarter 36.88 31.08 0.08

In 2001, the Company’s Board of Directors approved the initiation of a quarterly cash dividend payable on the Company’s
Class A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock. The quarterly cash dividend was $0.05 per share during 2002 and
the first three quarters of 2003. In the fourth quarter of 2003, the Company’s Board of Directors increased the cash
. dividend by 50%.to $0.08 per share. In the first quarter of 2004, the Company’s Board of Directors declared a cash
dividend of $0.08 per share, which was paid on the Company’s Class A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock on
March 10, 2004. The Company intends to continue to pay a quarterly dividend at this level. However, the declaration and
payment of such dividends, including the amount and frequency of such dividends, is at the discretion of the Board and
depends upon many factors, including the Company’s consolidated financial position, liquidity requirements, operating
results and such other factors as the Board may deem relevant. Cash dividend payments are permitted under the
respective terms of the Company’s $100.0 million revolving credit facility subject to certain restrictions and covenants
and the 2033 Senior Notes. See Note L to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

In addition, dividend payments by the Company’s insurance subsidiaries to the Company are subject to certain regulatory

restrictions. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations - Liquidity
and Capital Resources” and “Business - Regulation.”
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The selected financial data below should be read in conjunction with Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations and the Consolidated Financial Statements and related notes.

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
Income Statement Data: (dollars and shares in thousands, except per share data)

Insurance premiums and fee income:
Core group employee benefit products........ $673,653 $559,174  $452,158  $400,405  $357,54}

Non-core group employee benefit products” 22,383 49,325 35,836 47,285 110,381
Asset accumulation products ...........cc........ 4,158 2,645 3,088 2,551 2,126
07317 OO 18.893 16.713 16,122 16,116 15.220
719,087 627,857 507,204 466,357 485,268
Net investment income® .........coo.vvvevverevenenn. 186,366 162,036 157,509 184,576 180,945
Net realized investment gains (losses)® ......... 12,724 (28,469) (70,289)  (138,047) (25,720)
(Loss) gain on extinguishment of debt and
capital securities™.........co..coevverrierrrnniinnnnnns - (332) 11,456 - -
TOtal FEVENUE ...t 918,177 761,092 605,880 512,886 640,493
Income (loss) from continuing operations® ... 98,916 60,652 6,505 (3,293) 64,132
Net income (10s8)™® ... 98,916 60,652 6,505 (3,293) 50,285

Basic Results Per Share®:
Income (loss) from continuing operations....... $ 317 $ 195 $ 021 $§ (@©11) § 2.04
Net income (10SS) ..ecovvveerrvereieniiirereeeernnnnee 3.17 1.95 0.21 (0.11) 1.60
Weighted average shares outstanding.............. 31,208 31,139 30,848 30,582 31,469

Diluted Results Per Share'¥®:
Income (loss) from continuing operations....... $§  3.09 $ 190 § 021 § (©11) $ 197

Net income (10SS) ....oceeveermrrenrerininnenenrernrenenns 3.09 1.90 0.21 0.11) 1.55

Weighted average shares outstanding.............. 32,023 31,887 31,629 30,582 32,511
Cash Dividends Paid Per Share®”: ... . $ 023 $ 020 $ 020 § - 3 -
Other Data®: '

Operating earnings®™ .........cc..co.coocvceiverrvrenens $ 90,645 $ 79373 $ 44747 $ 86438 $ 80,850

Diluted book value per share®® ... $ 2549 $ 218 § 1900 $ 1791 $ 1635

Return on beginning shareholders’ equity
excluding net realized investment gains
(losses), (loss) gain on extinguishment
debt and capital securities and

discontinued operations " ..........c.cccoo..u.... 13.3% 13.6% 8.3% 17.2% 14.3%
December 31,
2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
Balance Sheet Data: (dollars in thousands)

Total INVeStMENtS ..cc.ovvvvveecieierinicrie s $3,202,754 82,816,051 $2,427,214 $2,475945 $2,527,763
Total @SSEtS......c.oererecirrere et 4,177,532 3,734,942 3,336,146 3,440,010 3,395,688
Corporate debt® ™ ..o, 143,750 118,139 125,675 267,770 283,938
Company obligated mandatorily redeemable

capital securities of subsidiaries®®? ... 56,050 36,050 36,050 100,000 100,000
Shareholders’ equity........cocceveeererierniirnrenns 798,440 681,655 581,994 538,193 501,417
Corporate debt to total capitalization ratio""> 14.4% 14.1% 16.9% 29.6% 32.1%
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The Company in 1999 terminated its participations in the reinsurance facilities in which it had historically participated, resulting in lower
premiums_from non-core group employee benefit products in 2000, 2001, 2002 and 2003. Premiums from non-core group employee benefit
products also include premiums from LPTs, which are episodic in nature, of $44.0 million, $13.9 million, $4.3 miliion, $26.8 million and 30, in
1999, 2000, 2001, 2002 and 2003, respectively. See “Business — Group Employee Benefit Products” and “Business — Reinsurance.”

Net investment income declined in 2001 and 2002 primarily due to the Company’s liquidation during the fourth quarter of 2000 of a substantial
majority of the investments of its investment subsidiaries. In 2001, the Company used the proceeds from these sales to repay $150.0 million of
outstanding borrowings under its revolving credit facilities, to repurchase $64.0 million liquidation amount of the Capital Securities and to
repurchase $8.0 million principal amount of the Matured Senior Notes. The Company recognized a gain on extinguishment of debt and capital
securities of $11.5 million in connection with these repurchases. In the second quarter of 2002, the Company repurchased $10.5 million
aggregate principal amount of the Matured Senior Notes and recognized a loss on extinguishment of debt of $0.3 million in connection with this
repurchase.

In 2003, 2002 and 2001, the Company recognized pre-tax losses of $13.0 million, $54.1 million, and $79.3 million, respectively, due to the other
than temporary declines in the market values of certain securities, which are reported as net realized investment losses. In 2000, the Company
realized losses of $72.5 million, related to the liquidation of a substantial majority of the investments of its investment subsidiaries, and $58.5
million, on closed U.S. Treasury futures and option contracts.

Results for 2001 include a charge of $0.91 per diluted share or $28.8 million, net of an income tax benefit of $15.5 million and reinsurance
coverages of $21.8 million, for reserve strengthening primarily related to an unusually high number of large losses in the Company’s excess
workers’ compensation business. Included in this charge, on a pre-tax basis, are additions to excess workers’ compensation case reserves of $9.0
million and IBNR reserves of $24.0 million. This charge also includes reported workers’ compensation losses of $6.3 million and a $5.0 million
addition to long-term disability IBNR reserves attributable to the terrorist attacks on the World Trade Center. In the years subsequent to 2001, the
number of large losses experienced by the Company returned to the Company’s pre-2001 historical average.

As of January 1, 2003, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 145, “Rescission of FASB Statements
No. 4, 44, and 62, Amendment of FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections.” SFAS No. 145 rescinded SFAS No. 4, which required all
gains and losses from extinguishment of debt and capital securities to be aggregated and classified as an extraordinary item, net of the related
income tax effect. Under SFAS No. 145, gains or losses from extinguishment of debt and capital securities are classified as income or loss from
operations in the income statement. In 2002 and 2001, the Company had an extraordinary (loss) gain, net of the related income tax effect, of
$(0.2) million, or $(0.01) per diluted share, and $7.4 million, or $0.24 per diluted share, respectively, that was reclassified to ongoing operations
upon the adoption of SFAS No. 145. In addition, in computing the diluted earnings per share amounts for 2001, equivalent shares attributable to
in-the-money stock options, which totaled 0.8 million, were considered in the calculation of these per share amounts since the reclassification of
the gain on extinguishment of debt and capital securities resulted in income from continuing operations.

Income (loss) from continuing operations and net income (loss) include realized investment gains (losses), net of federal income tax expense
(benefit) and the (loss) gain on extinguishment of debt and capital securities, net of federal income tax (benefit) expense, as follows:

Year Ended December 31
2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
(dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Realized investment gains (losses), net of income tax

expense (benefit).........covmcmciiiiiinicnnncerrccnne $ 8271 $(18,505) §$ (45,688) $ (89,731) $ (16,718)
Basic per share amount..........ccooeenveeiennnecnnennne 0.26 (0.59) (1.48) (2.94) (0.53)
Diluted per share amount........cc...ccoeveriorciernerenene 0.26 (0.58) (1.44) (2.94) (0.52)
(Loss) gain on extinguishment of debt and capital

securities, net of income tax (benefit) expense...... - (216) 7.446 - -
Basic per share amount....... - (0.01) 0.24 - -

Diluted per share amount - (0.01) 0.24 - -

In 1999, the Company disposed of Unicover and recognized an after-tax loss of $13.8 million on the disposition. See “Business — Other
Transactions.”

Net income is reconciled to the non-GAAP financial measure “operating earnings” as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
{dolars in thousands, except per share data)
Net income (loss)......... ettt en s $ 98916 § 60652 § 6505 3 (3.293) § 50,285
Realized investment (gains) losses..........c.cccove... (12,724) 28,469 70,289 138,047 25,720
_.Income tax expense (benefit).........ccvvcrnciniien 4453 (9.964) (24.601) - _ (48.316) (9.002)
Realized investment (gains) losses, net of the
related income tax effect ........coooericnenne (8.271) 18,505 45,688 89.731 16,718
Loss (gain) on extinguishment of debt and
capital SECUrities .....cocoevvevrrericeeereres - 332 (11,456) - -
Income tax expense (benefit)............ccooernniienne - (116) 4.010 - -
Loss (gain) on extinguishment of debt
and capital securities, net of the related
income tax effect.........coovvrveirrnicnnncceerinens - 216 (7.446) - -
Loss from discontinued operations, net of related
income tax effect ..o - - - - 13.847
Operating €arnings ............ccoccvevvinrecerercreneenoanens $ 90645 $ 79373 § 44747 § 86438 3 80,850
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See Note 8 for a discussion of why management believes the presentation of this non-GAAP financial measure provides useful information for
investors.

Prior periods have been restated to reflect the 3-for-2 common stock split effected in the form of a 50% stock dividend distributed on December
22,2003. In computing the earnings per share amount for 2000, equivalent shares attributable to in-the-money stock options, which totaled 1.0
million, were not considered in the calculation of these per share amounts since the inclusion of these equivalent shares would have diluted the
loss from continuing operations.

In 2001, the Company’s Board of Directors approved the initiation of a quarterly cash dividend payable on the Company’s outstanding Class A
and Class B Common Stock. The quarterly cash dividend was $0.05 per share during 2001 and 2002. In the fourth quarter of 2003, the
Company’s Board of Directors increased the cash dividend to $0.08 per share. During 2003, 2002 and 2001, the Company paid cash dividends
on its capital stock in the amount of $7.4 million, $6.0 million and $5.7 million, respectively. See Note L to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

In addition to financial measures presented in the consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with GAAP, the Company also uses
certain non-GAAP financial measures to analyze and report its financial results. Management believes these non-GAAP financial measures are
informative when analyzing the trends relating to the Company’s insurance operations. These measures exclude realized investment gains and
losses, gains and losses on extinguishment of debt and capital securities and discontinued operations because these items arise from events that, to
a significant extent, are within management’s discretion and can fluctuate significantly, thus distorting comparisons between periods. Investment
gains and losses may be realized based on management’s decision to dispose of an investment or management’s judgment that a decline in the
market value of an investment is other than temporary. Gains and losses on extinguishment of debt and capital securities may be realized based
on management’s decision to repay or repurchase debt. Thus, realized investment gains and losses and gains and losses on extinguishment of
debt and capital securities are not reflective of the Company’s ongoing earings capacity, and trends in the earnings of the Company’s underlying
insurance operations can be more clearly identified without the effects of these gains and losses. For these reasons, management uses these
measures to assess performance and make operating decisions, and the Company understands that analysts and investors typically utilize
measures of this type when evaluating the financial performance of insurers. However, gains and losses of these types, particularly as to
investments, are likely to occur periodically and should not be considered nonrecurring items. Further, these non-GAAP financial measures
should not be considered a substitute for GAAP measures as an indication of the Company’s overall performance and may not be calculated in the
same manner as similarly titled captions in other companies’ financial statements.

Diluted book value per share is calculated by dividing shareholders’ equity (as determined in accordance with GAAP), as increased by the
proceeds and tax benefit from the assumed exercise of outstanding in-the-money stock options, by total shares outstanding, also increased by
shares issued upon the assumed exercise of the options and deferred shares.

Return on beginning shareholders’ equity, excluding net realized investment gains (losses), (loss) gain on extinguishment of debt and capital
securities and discontinued operations is calculated by dividing operating eamings by beginning shareholders’ equity, as determined as of the
beginning of each year. Return on beginning shareholders’ equity, excluding net realized investment gains (losses), (loss) gain on extinguishment
of debt and capital securities and discontinued operations for 2001 excluding losses related to the reserve strengthening was 13.7%. GAAP-basis
return on beginning equity is as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
Return on beginning shareholders’ equity.................. 14.5% 10.4% 1.2% N/A 8.9%

See Note 8 for a discussion of why management believes the presentation of this non-GAAP financial measure provides useful information for
investors.

In May 2003, the Company issued $143.8 million of the 2033 Senior Notes. See “Business — Other Transactions” and Note E to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

In May 2003, the Trust issued $20.0 million liquidation amount of Floating Rate Capital Securities in a private placement. See “Business — Other
Transactions” and Note K to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The corporate debt to total capitalization ratio is calculated by dividing long-term corporate debt by the sum of the Company’s long-term
corporate debt, Company-obligated mandatorily redeemable capital securities of subsidiaries and shareholders’ equity.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Introduction

The Company, through its subsidiaries, underwrites a diverse portfolio of group employee benefit products, primarily
group life, disability, and excess workers’ compensation insurance. Revenues from this group of products are primarily
comprised of earned premiums and investment income. The profitability of group employee benefit products is affected
by, among other things, differences between actual and projected claims experience, the retention of existing customers
and the Company’s ability to attract new customers, change premium rates and contract terms and control administrative
expenses. The Company transfers its exposure to some group employee benefit risks through reinsurance ceded
arrangements with other insurance and reinsurance companies. Therefore, the profitability of group employee benefit
products is affected by the amount, cost and terms of reinsurance obtained by the Company. Profitability of certain group
employee benefit products is also affected by the difference between the yield achieved on invested assets and the
discount rate used to calculate the related reserves. The Company is currently experiencing particularly favorable market
conditions for its excess workers’ compensation products, and believes that this trend will continue for some time, due to
the growing shift among employers toward self-insuring their workers’ compensation risks in light of higher primary
workers’ compensation rates. For its other group employee benefit products, the Company is maintaining its underwriting
discipline under competitive market conditions, and is increasing the size of its sales force in order to enhance its focus on
the small case niche (insured groups of 10 to 500 individuals), including employers which are first-time providers of these
employee benefits, which it believes to offer opportunities for superior profitability.

The Company also operates an asset accumulation business that focuses primarily on offering fixed annuities to
individuals. Deposits from the Company’s asset accumulation business consist of new annuity sales, which are recorded
as liabilities rather than as premiums. Revenues from the Company’s asset accumulation business are primarily comprised
of investment income eamed on the funds under management. The profitability of asset accumulation products is
primarily dependent on the spread achieved between the return on investments and the interest credited to annuity holders.
The Company is disciplined in setting the crediting rates offered on its asset accumulation products in order to achieve its
targeted interest rate spreads on these products, and is willing to accept lower levels of sales on these products when
market conditions make these targeted spreads more difficult to achieve.

The following discussion and analysis of the results of operations and financial condition of the Company should be read
in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and related notes. The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with GAAP requires management, in some instances, to make judgments about the application of these
principles. The amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period could differ materially from the amounts reported if different
conditions existed or different judgments were utilized. A discussion of how management applies certain critical
accounting policies is presented below under the caption “Critical Accounting Policies” and should be read in conjunction
with the following discussion and analysis of results of operations and financial condition of the Company. In addition, a
discussion of uncertainties and contingencies which can affect actual results and could cause actual results to ultimately
differ materially from those described below can be found under the caption “Forward-Looking Statements And
Cautionary Statements Regarding Certain Factors That May Affect Future Results.”

Results of Operations

2003 Compared to 2002

Summary of Results. Net income was $98.9 million, or $3.09 per diluted share, in 2003 as compared to $60.7 million, or
$1.90 per diluted share, in 2002. Net income in 2003 and 2002 included realized investment gains (losses) (net of the
related income tax effects) of $8.3 million, or $0.26 per diluted share, and $(18.5) million, or $(0.58) per diluted share,
respectively. -Net income in 2002 also included a loss on extinguishment of debt (net of an income tax benefit) of $0.2
million, or $0.01 per diluted share. The increase in net income in 2003 is also attributable to growth in income from
group employee benefit products and net investment income partially offset by an increase in interest expense. Premiums
from the Company’s core group employee benefit products increased 20% in 2003 and the combined ratio (loss ratio plus
expense ratio) remained at the same level as 2002. Net investment income increased 15% in 2003 primarily due to a 15%
increase in average invested assets. The increase in interest expense resulted from the Company’s issuance of the 2033
Senior Notes and the 2003 Capital Securities.
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Management believes the non-GAAP financial measure of “operating earnings” is informative when analyzing the trends
relating to the Company’s insurance operations. Operating earnings exclude realized investment gains and losses and
gains and losses on extinguishment of debt, because these items arise from events that, to a significant extent, are within
* management’s discretion and can fluctuate significantly, thus distorting comparisons between periods. Investment gains
and losses may be realized based on management’s decision to dispose of an investment or management’s judgment that a
decline in the market value of an investment is other than temporary. Gains and losses on extinguishment of debt may be
realized based on management’s decision to repay or repurchase debt. Thus, realized investment gains and losses and
gains and losses on extinguishment of debt are not reflective of the Company’s ongoing earnings capacity, and trends in
the eamings of the Company’s underlying insurance operations can be more clearly identified without the effects of these
gains and losses. For these reasons, management uses the measure of operating earnings to assess performance and make
operating decisions, and the Company understands that analysts and investors typically utilize measures of this type when
evaluating the financial performance of insurers. However, gains and losses of these types, particularly as to investments,
are likely to occur periodically and should not be considered as nonrecurring items. Further, operating earnings should
not be considered a substitute for net income as an indication of the Company’s overall performance and may not be
calculated in the same manner as similarly titled captions in other companies’ financial statements.

Operating earnings for the Company, consisting of net income adjusted to exclude realized investment gains (losses) and a
loss on extinguishment of debt (both net of the related income tax effects), were $90.6 million, or $2.83 per diluted share,
in 2003 as compared to $79.4 million, or $2.49 per diluted share, in 2002. The increase in operating earnings in the
current period is primarily attributabie to the growth in income from group employee benefit products and net investment
income partially offset by the increase in interest expense.

Premium and Fee Income. Premium and fee income in 2003 was $719.1 million as compared to $627.9 million in 2002,
an increase of 15%. Premiums from core group employee benefit products increased 20% to $673.7 million in 2003 from
$559.2 million in 2002. This increase reflects normal growth in employment and salary levels for the Company’s existing
customer base, price increases, and strong production of new business. Core group employee benefit products include
group life, disability, excess workers’ compensation, travel accident and dental insurance. See “Business — Group
Employee Benefit Products.” Premiums from excess workers’ compensation insurance for self-insured employers
increased 45% to $151.5 million in 2003 from $104.2 million in 2002. This increase was primarily due to the favorable
pricing environment and strong demand for this product driven by a growing shift among employers toward self-insuring
their workers’ compensation risks due to higher primary workers’ compensation rates. SNCC obtained average price
increases above 15% in connection with its renewals of insurance.coverage during 2003, and has continued to obtain
significant improvements in contract terms, in particular higher SIR levels, in these renewals. On average, SIRs increased
13% in 2003. SNCC has continued to obtain average price increases of 16% on its 2004 renewals and SIR levels on
average are up 7%. New business production, which represents the amount of new annualized premium sold, for excess
workers’ compensation products increased 46% to $45.1 million in 2003 from $30.8 million in 2002. In addition,
retention of existing customers for excess workers’ compensation products in 2003 was higher than in 2002. Premiums
from the Company’s other core group employee benefit products increased 15% to $522.1 million in 2003 from $455.0
million in 2002, reflecting an improvement in the retention of existing customers and strong production growth in 2002.
New business production for the Company’s other core group employee benefit products was $175.1 million in 2003 and
$170.4 million in 2002. The level of production achieved in 2003 reflects the Company’s maintaining its underwriting
discipline under competitive market conditions for these products and across-the-board price increases on new long-term
disability business to reflect the lower discount rates on reserves implemented in 2003. The Company continues to
implement price increases for certain existing disability and group life customers.

Non-core group employee benefit products include LPTs, primary workers’ compensation, bail bond insurance, workers’
compensation and property catastrophe reinsurance, and reinsurance facilities. See “Business — Group Employee Benefit
Products” and “Business — Reinsurance.” Premiums from non-core group employee benefit products were $22.4 million
in 2003 as compared to $49.3 million in 2002. Premiums from non-core group employee benefit products in 2002
included a high level of premiums from LPTs, which are episodic in nature. The 2003 period did not include any
premiums from LPTs.

Deposits from the Company’s asset accumulation products were $100.6 million in 2003 as compared to $135.0 million in
2002. These déposits consist of néw annuity sales, which are recorded as liabilities rather than as premiums. The
Company continues to maintain its discipline in setting the crediting rates offered on its asset accumulation products, since
the interest rate spreads available on these products remained below average throughout 2002 and 2003. The decrease in
deposits from the Company’s asset accumulation products in 2003 was primarily due to strong equity market performance
during the second half of 2003 and the continuing low interest rate environment which reduced demand for fixed annuity
products. The Company anticipates that the level of deposits attainable for 2004 will be similar to the level of deposits
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achieved in 2003 since the Company continues to add new networks and independent agents to its distribution channel.
The Company plans to maintain its discipline in setting the crediting rates offered on its asset accumulation products in
2004 in order to achieve its targeted interest rate spreads on these products.

Net Investment Income. Net investment income in 2003 was $186.4 million as compared to $162.0 million in 2002, an
increase of 15%. This increase reflects an increase in average invested assets in 2003. The tax equivalent weighted
average annual yield on invested assets was 6.5% on average invested assets of $2,948.1 million in 2003 and 6.6% on
average invested assets of $2,556.1 million in 2002.

Net Realized Investment Gains (Losses). Net realized investment gains were $12.7 million in 2003 as compared to net
realized investment losses of $28.5 million in 2002. The Company’s investment strategy results in periodic sales of
securities and, therefore, the recognition of realized investment gains and losses. During 2003 and 2002, the Company
recognized $25.7 million and $26.4 million, respectively, of net gains on the sales of securities. The Company monitors
its investments on an ongoing basis. When the market value of a security declines below its cost, and management judges
the decline to be other than temporary, the security is written down to fair value, and the decline is reported as a realized
investment loss. In 2003 and 2002, the Company recognized $13.0 million and $54.1 million, respectively, of losses due
to the other than temporary declines in the market values of certain fixed maturity and equity securities.

The losses of this type in 2003 ($8.5 million on an after-tax basis) resulted primarily from credit quality-related
deterioration in the corporate debt markets and the impact of sustained low interest rates on certain interest only securities,
and the Company may recognize additional losses of this type in the future. The Company anticipates that if certain other
existing declines in security values are determined to be other than temporary, it may recognize additional investment
losses in the range of $5 million to $10 million, on an after-tax basis, with respect to the relevant securities. However, the
extent of any such losses will depend on future market developments and changes in security values, and such losses may
be outside this range. The Company continuously monitors the affected securities pursuant to its procedures for
evaluation for other than temporary impairment in valuation. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations — Critical Accounting Policies” for a description of these procedures, which take into
account a number of factors. It is not possible to predict the extent of any future changes in value, positive or negative, or
the results of the future application of these procedures, with respect to these securities. There can be no assurance that
the Company will realize investment gains in the future in an amount sufficient to offset any such losses.

Benefits and Expenses. Policyholder benefits and expenses were $756.6 million as compared to $662.4 million in 2002,
an increase of 14%. This increase primarily reflects the increase in premiums from the Company’s group employee
benefit products discussed above. The combined ratio (loss ratio plus expense ratio) for the Company’s group employee
benefits segment was 94.3% in 2003 and 94.6% in 2002.

Interest Expense. Interest expense was $18.1 million in 2003 as compared to $12.4 million in 2002, an increase of $5.7
million. This increase primarily resulted from the Company’s issuance of the 2033 Senior Notes and the 2003 Capital
Securities in May 2003 and the fact that the 2033 Senior Notes and the Matured Senior Notes were simultaneously
outstanding until the Matured Senior Notes could be repaid at their maturity in October 2003.

Income Tax Expense. Income tax expense was $44.6 million in 2003 as compared to $25.6 million in 2002. The income
tax expense (benefit) attributable to net realized investment gains (losses) was $4.5 million and $(10.0) million in 2003
and 2002, respectively. The Company’s effective tax rate excluding net realized investment gains and losses and the loss
on extinguishment of debt was 30.7% in 2003 and 31.0% in 2002.

2002 Compared to 2001

Summary of Results. Net income was $60.7 million, or $1.90 per diluted share, in 2002 as compared to $6.5 million, or
$0.21 per diluted share, in 2001. Net income in 2002 and 2001 included realized investment losses (net of the related
income tax benefit) of $18.5 million, or $0.58 per diluted share, and $45.7 million, or $1.44 per diluted share,
respectively. Net income in 2002 and 2001 alse included a (loss) gain on extinguishment of debt and capital securities
(net of the related income tax effects) of $(0.2) million, or $(0.01) per diluted share, and $7.4 million, or $0.24 per diluted
share. The increase in net income in 2002 was also attributable to a decrease in interest expense ($3.3 million after taxes),
and charges in the 2001 period for goodwill amortization ($3.2 million after taxes) and reserve strengthening ($28.8
million after taxes). Excluding the effects of the reserve strengthening and goodwill amortization in 2001, income from
group employee benefit products increased in 2002 as compared to 2001.

Management believes the non-GAAP financial measure of “operating earnings” is informative when analyzing the trends
relating to the Company’s insurance operations. Operating earnings exclude realized investment gains and losses and
gains and losses on extinguishment of debt and capital securities, because these items arise from events that, to a
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significant extent, are within management’s discretion and can fluctuate significantly, thus distorting comparison between
periods. Investment gains and losses may be realized based on management’s decision to dispose of an investment or
management’s judgment that a decline in the market value of an investment is other than temporary. Gains and losses on
extinguishment of debt and capital securities may be realized based on management’s decision to repay or repurchase
debt. Thus, realized investment gains and losses and gains and losses on extinguishment of debt and capital securities are
not reflective of the Company’s ongoing earnings capacity, and trends in the Company’s underlying insurance operations
can be more clearly identified without the effects of these gains and losses. For these reasons, management uses the
measure of operating earnings to assess performance and make operating decisions, and the Company understands that
analysts and investors typically utilize measures of this type when evaluating the financial performance of insurers,
However, gains and losses of these types, particularly as to investments, are likely to recur periodically and should not be
considered as nonrecurring items. Further, operating earnings should not be considered a substitute for net income as an
indication of the Company’s overall performance and may not be calculated in the same manner as similarly titled
captions in other companies’ financial statements.

Operating earnings for the Company, consisting of net income adjusted to exclude realized investment losses and a loss
(gain) on extinguishment of debt and capital securities (net of the related income tax effects), were $79.4 million, or $2.49
per diluted share, in 2002 as compared to $44.7 million, or $1.41 per diluted share, in 2001. The increase in operating
earnings in 2002 was attributable to a decrease in interest expense ($3.3 million after taxes), and charges in the 2001
period for goodwill amortization ($3.2 million after taxes) and reserve strengthening ($28.8 million after taxes).
Excluding the effects of the reserve strengthening and goodwill amortization in 2001, income from group employee
benefit products increased in 2002 as compared to 2001.

Premium and Fee Income. Premium and fee income in 2002 was $627.9 million as compared to $507.2 million in 2001,
an increase of 24%. Premiums from core group employee benefit products increased 24% to $559.2 million in 2002 from
$452.2 million in 2001. This increase reflects normal growth in employment and salary levels for the Company’s existing
customer base, price increases, and strong production of new business. Core group employee benefit products include
group life, disability, excess workers’ compensation, travel accident and dental insurance. Premiums from excess
workers’ compensation insurance for self-insured employers increased 42% to $104.2 million in 2002 from $73.4 million
in 2001 primarily due to improvements in the pricing environment and demand for this product as a result of higher
primary workers’ compensation rates. SNCC was able to obtain significant price increases in connection with its renewals
of insurance coverage during 2002, with increases exceeding 25% on a substantial portion of such renewals. SNCC also
obtained significant improvements in contract terms, in particular higher SIR levels, in these renewals. On average, SIRs
increased 10% in 2002. New business production, which represents the amount of new annualized premium sold, for
excess workers’ compensation products increased 70% to $30.8 million in 2002 from $18.1 million in 2001 and the
retention of existing customers was consistent with SNCC’s goals. Premiums from the Company’s other core group
employee benefit products increased 20% to $455.0 million in 2002 from $378.8 million in 2001, reflecting strong
production growth in 2001. New business production for the Company’s other core group employee benefit products
increased 21% to $170.4 million in 2002 from $141.0 million in 2001 primarily due to the expansion of the Company’s
sales force during 2001 and 2002, and the opening of three new sales offices in 2002. The Company also implemented
price increases for certain disability customers.

Non-core group employee benefit products include LPTs, primary workers’ compensation, bail bond insurance, workers’
compensation and property catastrophe reinsurance, and reinsurance facilities. Premiums from non-core group employee
benefit products increased 38% to $49.3 million in 2002 from $35.8 million in 2001 primarily due to a higher level of
premium from LPTs, which are episodic in nature.

Deposits from the Company’s asset accumulation products were $135.0 million in 2002 as compared to $90.2 million in
2001. These deposits consist of new annuity sales, which are recorded as liabilities rather than as premiums. The
Company maintained its disciplined approach to setting the crediting rates offered on its asset accumulation products since
market interest rates and the resulting interest rate spreads available to the Company on these products remained less
favorable throughout 2001 and 2002. The increase in deposits from the Company’s asset accumulation products in 2002
was higher than expected due to the pullback of certain fixed annuity providers from the wholesale distribution chain and
heightened demand for fixed annuity products as a result of adverse conditions in the equity markets.

Net Investment Income. Net investment income in 2002 was $162.0 million as compared to $157.5 million in 2001, an
increase of 3%. This increase primarily reflects an increase in average invested assets in 2002, partially offset by a
decrease in the tax equivalent weighted average annual yield. The tax equivalent weighted average annual yield on
invested assets was 6.6% on average invested assets of $2,556.1 million in 2002 and 7.0% on average invested assets of
$2,313.0 million in 2001.
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Net Realized Investment Losses. Net realized investment losses were $28.5 million in 2002 as compared to $70.3 million
in 2001. The Company’s investment strategy results in periodic sales of securities and, therefore, the recognition of
realized investment gains and losses. The Company monitors its investments on an ongoing basis. When the market value
of a security declines below its cost, and management judges the decline to be other than temporary, the security is written
down to fair value, and the decline is reported as a realized investment loss. In 2002 and 2001, the Company recognized
$54.1 million and $79.3 million, respectively, of losses due to the other than temporary declines in the market values of
certain fixed maturity and equity securities. During the same periods, the Company recognized $26.4 million and $10.9
million, respectively, of net gains on sales of securities.

(Loss) Gain on Extinguishment of Debt and Capital Securities. In the second quarter of 2002, the Company repurchased
$10.5 million aggregate principal amount of the Matured Senior Notes, resulting in a loss on extinguishment of debt of
$0.3 million. During 2001, the Company repurchased $64.0 million liquidation amount of the Capital Securities in the
open market. In June 2001, the Company also repurchased $8.0 million aggregate principal amount of the Matured Senior
Notes. In 2001, the Company recognized a gain on extinguishment of debt and capital securities of $11.5 million in
connection with the repurchases of the Capital Securities and Matured Senior Notes.

Benefits and Expenses. Policyholder benefits and expenses were $662.4 million as compared to $583.1 million in 2001,
an increase of 14%. This increase primarily reflects the increase in premiums from the Company’s group employee
benefit products discussed above. Benefits and expenses in 2001 include a pre-tax charge of $44.3 million for reserve
strengthening primarily related to an unusually high number of large losses in the Company’s excess workers’
compensation business. Prior to 2001, SNCC’s historical average for losses exceeding $2.0 million in its workers’
compensation products was one to two per year. In 2001, however, the Company experienced seven such losses,
including two losses as a result of the terrorist attacks on the World Trade Center. The case reserves for these seven
losses totaled $15.3 million, including $6.3 million attributable to the World Trade Center attacks. Though the Company
believed that the high number of large losses in 2001 was unlikely to recur, the Company added $24.0 million to its
reserve for IBNR losses since its method of estimating IBNR reserves is based on past experience. In the years
subsequent to 2001, the number of large losses experienced by the Company returned to the Company’s pre-2001
historical average. The Company also added $5.0 million to its long-term disability IBNR reserves for potential mental
and nervous disability claims related to the World Trade Center attacks. This reserve strengthening charge reduced net
income by $28.8 million, or $0.91 per diluted share. The combined ratio (loss ratio plus expense ratio) for the Company’s
group employee benefits segment was 94.6% in 2002 and 102.0% (92.9% excluding the reserve strengthening) in 2001,
The combined ratio in 2002 reflects the higher levels of reserves which were established for the Company’s excess
workers’ compensation products due to the high number of large losses in 2001. This combined ratio also reflects the
large amount of new business production from the Company’s other core group employee benefit products, for which
initial reserves have been set at higher levels until actual loss experience emerges. The higher level of premium from
LPTs, which carry a higher loss ratio, also contributed to the higher combined ratio in 2002.

Interest Expense. Interest expense was $12.4 million in 2002 as compared to $17.4 million in 2001, a decrease of $5.0
million. This decrease was primarily a result of the Company’s repurchase of $64.0 million liquidation amount of the
Capital Securities in the open market, which occurred on various dates during the first nine months of 2001, and a lower
weighted average borrowing rate under the Company’s revolving credit facilities. In addition, the Company had a lower
amount of borrowings outstanding during the year ended 2002 under its Matured Senior Notes and SIG’s 8.5% Senior
Notes (the “SIG Senior Notes™) due May 2003.

Income Tax Expense (Benefit). Income tax expense was $25.6 million in 2002 as compared to an income tax benefit of
$1.1 million in 2001. The income tax benefits attributable to net realized investment losses were $10.0 million and $24.6
million in 2002 and 2001, respectively. The income tax (benefit) expense related to the (loss) gain on extinguishment of
debt and capital securities was $(0.1) million and $4.0 million, respectively. The income tax benefit in 2001 was also
attributable to the reserve strengthening charge. The Company’s effective tax rate excluding net realized investment
losses, the (loss) gain on extinguishment of debt and capital securities and the reserve strengthening was 31.0% in 2002
and 32.2% in 2001.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

General. The Company had approximately $59.0 million of financial resources available at the holding company level at
December 31, 2003, which was primarily comprised of short-term investments, investments in the common stock of its
investment subsidiaries, and fixed maturity securities. The assets of the investment subsidiaries are primarily invested in
balances with independent investment managers. A shelf registration statement is also in effect under which securities
yielding proceeds of up to $106.2 million may be issued by the Company.
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On May 20, 2003, the Company issued $143.8 million of the 2033 Senior Notes in a public offering pursuant to the
Company’s existing shelf registration. The proceeds from this issuance were used to repay all of the then outstanding
borrowings under the Company’s revolving credit facility and to repay at maturity the Matured Senior Notes. See
“Business — Other Transactions” and Note E to the Consolidated Financial Statements. As a result of the issuance of the
2033 Senior Notes, under the terms of the Company’s revolving credit facility, the maximum amount of borrowings
available to the Company thereunder was reduced from $150 million to $100 million and the facility was converted to an
unsecured facility, with collateral being released to the Company. The Company did not have any borrowings outstanding
under the revolving credit facility at December 31, 2003.

To mitigate the risk of interest rates rising before the issuance of the 2033 Senior Notes could be completed, the Company
entered into a treasury rate lock agreement in September 2002, with a notional amount of $150.0 million and an
anticipated debt term of 10 years. The Company paid $13.8 million upon the issuance of the 2033 Senior Notes in May
2003 to settle the treasury rate lock agreement. See “Business — Other Transactions” and Note E to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

In May 2003, the Company also issued $20.0 million liquidation amount of 2003 Capital Securities in a private placement.
See Note K to the Consolidated Financial Statements. The Company also made the final $9.0 million principal payment
on the SIG Senior Notes in May 2003 and repaid in full the $5.7 million principal amount due on the Subordinated Notes
in June 2003.

In December 2003, the Company-and its existing lenders agreed to amend certain terms of the Company’s revolving credit
facility, primarily the maturity date of the Company’s revolving credit facility, which was extended from December 16,
2005 to December 16, 2006.

Other sources of liquidity at the holding company level include dividends paid from subsidiaries, primarily generated from
operating cash flows and investments. During 2004, the Company’s insurance subsidiaries wiil be permitted, without
prior regulatory approval, to make dividend payments totaling $54.0 million. The life insurance subsidiaries and SNCC
may also pay additional dividends with the requisite regulatory approvals. See “Business - Regulation.” In general,
dividends from the Company’s non-insurance subsidiaries are not subject to regulatory or other restrictions. At December
31, 2003, the Company had $100.0 million of borrowings available to it under its revolving credit facility.

The Company’s current liquidity needs, in addition to funding its operating expenses, include principal and interest
payments on outstanding borrowings under its revolving credit facility, interest payments on the 2033 Senior Notes, and
dividends on the Capital Securities and the 2003 Capital Securities. The 2033 Senior Notes mature in their entirety in
May 2033 and are not subject to any sinking fund requirements but are redeemable by the Company at par at any time on
or after May 15, 2008. The junior subordinated debentures underlying the Capital Securities are not redeemable prior to
March 25, 2007. The junior subordinated debentures underlying the 2003 Capital Securities are redeemable, in whole or
in part, beginning May 15, 2008. See Notes E and K to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The following table summarizes the Company’s significant contractual obligations at December 31, 2003 and the future
periods in which such obligations are expected to be settled in cash. The 2033 Senior Notes and the junior subordinated
debentures underlying the capital securities are assumed to be repaid on their respective maturity dates. Additional details
regarding these obligations are provided in the notes to the consolidated financial statements, as referenced in the table:

Contractual Obligations

Payments Due by Period

Less than 1-3 3-5 More than
Total 1 Year Years Years S Years
(dollars in thousands)
Corporate debt (Note E).......ooovevevireceecariiicererenenns $ 143,750 % - 5 -8 - $ 143,750
Interest on corporate debt (Note E) " _..................... 340,517 11,950 23,881 23,000 281,686
Advances from Federal Home Loan Bank (Note F). 150,000 95,000 - - 55,000
Interest on advances from Federal
Home Loan Bank (Note F).....ccooveveeenicvevinnene. 72,233 8,593 8,212 8,212 47,216
Company-obligated mandatorily redeemable
capital securities of subsidiaries (Note K)......... 56,050 - - - 56,050
Dividends on capital securities (Note K) @ ............ 110,477 4,430 8,854 8,857 88,336
Operating lease obligations (Note N).........cccovveuenene. 54,626 _ 12,002 21.921 18,323 2,380
Total contractual obligations...........cccoceveerenene $ 927,653 $131975 $ 62868 $ 58392 $§ 674.418
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(1) Primarily includes interest on the 2033 Senior Notes.

(2) Includes dividends on the outstanding Capital Securities and the 2003 Capital Securities. Interest on the 2003 Capital Securities was computed
using the indexed rate in effect at December 31, 2003 of 5.28%.

Sources of liquidity available to the Company on a parent company-only basis, including the undistributed earnings of its
subsidiaries and additional borrowings available under the Company’s revolving credit facility, are expected to exceed the
Company’s current and long-term cash requirements. The Company from time to time engages in discussions with respect
to acquiring blocks of business and insurance and financial services companies, any of which could, if consummated, be
material to the Company’s operations.

The principal liquidity requirements of the Company’s insurance subsidiaries are their contractual obligations to
policyholders and other financing sources. The primary sources of funding for these obligations, in addition to operating
earnings, are the marketable investments included in the investment portfolios of these subsidiaries. The Company
actively manages its investment portfolio to match its invested assets and related liabilities. The Company regularly
analyzes the results of its asset/liability matching through cash flow analysis and duration matching under multiple interest
rate scenarios. See “Asset/Liability Management and Market Risk.” Therefore, the Company believes that these sources
of funding will be adequate for its insurance subsidiaries to satisfy on both a short-term and long-term basis these
contractual obligations throughout their estimated or stated period.

Cash Flows. Operating activities increased cash by $237.5 million and $208.5 million in 2003 and 2002, respectively.
Operating activities in 2001, which include $30.1 million of cash provided by the liquidation of trading account securities
and $84.0 million of funds received from Oracle Re for the commutation of various reinsurance agreements that the
Company had entered into with Oracle Re in 1998, increased cash by $228.7 million. See Note Q to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Share Repurchase Program. The Company’s board of directors has authorized a share repurchase program. Share
repurchases are effected by the Company in the open market or in negotiated transactions in compliance with the safe
harbor provisicns of Rule 10b-18 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Execution of the share repurchase program
is based on management’s assessment of market conditions for its common stock and other potential uses of capital.
During the first quarter of 2003, the Company repurchased 302,100 shares of its Class A Common Stock at a total cost of
$7.5 million, for a volume-weighted average price of $24.75. The Company did not repurchase any shares in the second,
third or fourth quarters of 2003. At December 31, 2003, the repurchase of approximately 1.1 million shares remained
authorized under this program.

Investments. The Company’s overall investment strategy emphasizes safety and liquidity, while seeking the best available
return, by focusing on, among other things, managing the Company’s interest-sensitive assets and liabilities and seeking to
minimize the Company’s exposure to fluctuations in interest rates. The Company’s investment portfolio, which totaled
$3,202.7 million at December 31, 2003, primarily consists of investments in fixed maturity securities and short-term
investments. The market value of the Company’s investment portfolio, in relation to its amortized cost, improved by
$46.1 million during 2003, before related changes in the cost of business acquired of $5.5 million and the income tax
provision of $14.2 million. In addition, the Company recognized pre-tax net investment gains of $12.7 million in 2003.
The weighted average credit rating of the Company’s fixed maturity portfolio as rated by Standard & Poor’s Corporation
was “AA” at December 31, 2003. While the investment grade rating of the Company’s fixed maturity portfolio addresses
credit risk, it does not address other risks, such as prepayment and extension risks, which are discussed below.

At December 31, 2003, approximately 42% of the Company’s total invested assets were comprised of corporate fixed
maturity securities. Eighty-seven percent of the Company’s corporate fixed maturity portfolio, based on fair values, has
been rated investment grade by nationally recognized statistical rating organizations. Investment grade corporate fixed
maturity securities are distributed among the various rating categories as follows: AAA — 6%, AA — 9%, A — 34%, and
BBB — 38%. Corporate fixed maturity securities subject the Company to credit risk and, to a lesser extent, interest rate
risk. To reduce its exposure to corporate credit risk, the Company diversifies its investments across economic sectors,
industry classes and issuers.

Mortgage-backed securities comprised 20% of the Company’s total invested assets at December 31, 2003. Ninety-five
percent of the Company’s mortgage-backed securities portfolio, based on fair values, has been rated as investment grade
by nationally recognized statistical rating organizations. Mortgage-backed securities subject the Company to a degree of
interest rate risk, including prepayment and extension risk, which is generally a function of the sensitivity of each
security’s underlying collateral to prepayments under varying interest rate environments and the repayment priority of the

-26-




securities in the particular securitization structure. The Company seeks to limit the extent of this risk by emphasizing the
more predictable payment classes and securities with stable collateral.

The Company, through its insurance subsidiaries, maintains a program in which investments are financed using advances
from various Federal Home Loan Banks. The Company has utilized this program to manage the duration of its liabilities
and to earn spread income, which is the difference between the financing cost and the earnings from the investments
purchased with those funds. At December 31, 2003, the Company had outstanding advances of $150.0 million. The
advances were obtained at a fixed rate and have a weighted average term to maturity of 6.4 years. A total of $95.0 million
of these advances will mature at various times during 2004. In addition, the Company has utilized reverse repurchase
agreements, futures and option contracts and interest rate swap contracts from time to time in connection with its
investment strategy. These transactions require the Company to maintain securities or cash on deposit with the applicable
counterparty as collateral. As the market value of the collateral or contracts changes, the Company may be required to
deposit additional collateral or be entitled to have a portion of the collateral returned to it.

The types and amounts of investments made by the Company’s insurance subsidiaries are subject to the insurance laws
and regulations of their respective states of domicile. Each of these states has comprehensive investment regulations. In
addition, the Company’s revolving credit facility also contains limitations, with which the Company is currently in
compliance in all material respects, on the composition of the Company’s investment portfolio. The Company also
continually monitors its investment portfolio and attempts to ensure that the risks associated with concentrations of
investments in either a particular sector of the market or a single entity are limited.

Asset/Liability Management and Market Risk. Because the Company’s primary assets and liabilities are financial in
nature, the Company’s consolidated financial position and earnings are subject to risks resulting from changes in interest
rates. The Company manages this risk by active portfolio management focusing on minimizing its exposure to
fluctuations in interest rates by matching its invested assets and related liabilities and by periodically adjusting the
crediting rates on its annuity products and the discount rate used to calculate reserves on the Company’s other products.
In addition, the Company, at times, has utilized exchange-traded futures and option contracts and interest rate swap
agreements to reduce the risk associated with changes in the value of its fixed maturity portfolio due to changes in the
interest rate environment and to reduce the risk associated with changes in interest rates in connection with anticipated
securities purchases and debt refinancing. At December 31, 2003, the Company had no outstanding futures or option
contracts or interest rate swap agreements. The Company, at times, may also invest in non-dollar denominated fixed
maturity securities that expose it to fluctuations in foreign currency rates, and therefore, may hedge such exposure by
using currency forward contracts. The Company’s investment in non-dollar denominated fixed maturity securities during
2003 was less than 0.1% of total invested assets.

The Company regularly analyzes the results of its asset/liability matching through cash flow analysis and duration
matching under multiple interest rate scenarios. These analyses enable the Company to measure the potential gain or loss
in fair value of its interest-rate sensitive financial instruments due to hypothetical changes in interest rates. Based on these
analyses, if interest rates were to immediately increase by 10% from their year-end levels, the fair value of the Company’s
interest-sensitive assets, net of corresponding changes in the fair value of cost of business acquired and insurance and
investment-related liabilities, would decline by approximately $29.2 million at December 31, 2003 as compared to a
decline of approximately $30.9 million at December 31, 2002. These analyses incorporate numerous assumptions and
estimates and assume no changes in the composition of the Company’s investment portfolio in reaction to such interest
rate changes. Consequently, the results of this analysis will likely be materially different from the actual changes
experienced under given interest rate scenarios.

The Company manages the composition of its borrowed capital by considering factors such as the ratio of borrowed
capital to total capital, future debt requirements, the interest rate environment and other market conditions. The
Company’s outstanding corporate debt at December 31, 2003 was issued at a fixed interest rate. At December 31, 2003, a
hypothetical 10% decrease in market interest rates would cause a corresponding $13.5 million increase in the fair value of
the Company’s fixed-rate corporate debt which matures in 2033. At December 31, 2002, a hypothetical 10% decrease in
market interest rates would cause a corresponding $0.! million increase in the fair value of the Company’s fixed-rate
corporate debt which matured in 2003. In May 2003, the Company paid $13.8 million upon the issuance of the 2033
Senior Notes to settle the treasury rate lock agreement. At December 31, 2002, a hypothetical 10% decrease in market
interest rates would cause a corresponding $5.6 million increase in the fair value of the treasury rate lock agreement.
Because interest expense on the Company’s floating-rate corporate debt that was outstanding at December 31, 2002 would
have fluctuated as prevailing interest rates changed, changes in market interest rates would not have materially affected its
fair value.
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Reinsurance. The Company cedes portions of the risks relating to its group employee benefit products under indemnity
reinsurance agreements with various unaffiliated reinsurers. The Company pays reinsurance premiums generally based
upon percentages of the Company’s premiums on the business reinsured. These agreements expire at various intervals as
to new risks, and replacement agreements are negotiated on terms believed appropriate in light of current market
conditions. During 2003, the Company replaced certain of its existing reinsurance arrangements for its excess workers’
compensation and long-term disability products. Under the replacement arrangements for excess workers’ compensation
products, the Company reinsures excess workers’ compensation risks between $5.0 million (compared to $3.0 million
previously) and $50.0 million, and a majority in proportionate amount of the risks between $50.0 million and $100.0
million, per policy per occurrence. For long-term disability products, effective October 1, 2003 for new policies and, for
existing policies, the earlier of the next policy anniversary date or October 1, 2004, the Company will reinsure risks in
excess of $7,500 (compared to $2,500 previously) in benefits per individual per month. These changes will reduce the
reinsurance premiums paid by the Company for these products. However, in the case of long-term disability products,
management does not believe that this reduction is sufficient to compensate for the anticipated level of losses in the
$2,500 to $7,500 layer of monthly benefits for which the Company retains the risk under the new reinsurance arrangement.
The Company is implementing a variety of initiatives, including pricing and underwriting initiatives, for these products;
however, there can be no assurance that such initiatives wiil be successful. If such initiatives are not successful, the
Company’s results of operations could be adversely affected. See “Forward-Looking Statements And Cautionary
Statements Regarding Certain Factors That May Affect Future Results.”

SNCC Performance-Contingent Options. In May 2003, the Company granted performance-contingent incentive options
to purchase 225,000 shares of the Company’s Class A Common Stock to each of the five members of executive
management of SNCC, for a total of 1,125,000 options. The options, which have a ten-year term and whose exercise price
is equal to the fair market value of a share of such stock on the grant date (as determined in accordance with the Company
option plan under which the options were granted), will become exercisable only to the extent that SIG, SNCC’s parent
company, meets specified cumulative financial performance targets for the three or five fiscal year periods beginning with
the current year; otherwise, such options will be forfeited. These targets, as described below, generally require that SIG’s
aggregate consolidated Pre-Tax Operating Income, as defined and computed under each of the related option agreements
(“PTOI”), increases during these periods at an annual average rate of over 15% for any of the options to become
exercisable, and at an annual average rate of at least 20% for the options to become fully exercisable.

112,500 of each executive’s options will become exercisable if SIG’s PTOI, for the three year performance period is at
least $216.7 million; otherwise, a reduced number of such options will become exercisable to the extent that PTOI for
such period exceeds $196.1 million, determined by interpolating between zero and 112,500 according to where the PTOI
amount falls in the range between $196.1 million and $216.7 million.

225,000 of each executive’s options (minus the number of any options that become exercisable for the three year
performance period) will become exercisable if SIG’s aggregate PTOI for the five year performance period is at least
$429.1 million; otherwise, a reduced number of such options will become exercisable to the extent that PTOI for such
period exceeds $380.1 million, determined by interpolating between zero and 225,000 according to where the PTOI
amount falls in the range between $380.1 million and $429.1 million.

Under the option agreements, the formula for determining PTOI incorporates various pro forma adjustments and
assumptions in order to focus on the performance of SNCC’s insurance operations; for example, the formula contains
certain assumptions relating to investment income and expenses for the relevant periods, and excludes realized investment
gains and losses. Accordingly, the PTOI amounts that would result in the applicable financial performance targets being
met will not be the same as SIG’s income before income tax expense, calculated in accordance with GAAP, for the
relevant periods.

The Company believes that these options will provide substantial incentives for these executives to contribute toward
SNCC'’s attaining the specified targets, thereby enhancing the Company’s financial performance; however, no assurance
can be given that such results will be achieved. The Company will recognize compensation expense for these options
under the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123 over the performance period. The compensation expense
associated with these options will not have a material effect on the Company’s financial position or results of operations.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

The Company has no off-balance sheet arrangements (as defined in the rules and regulations of the Securities and
Exchange Commission) that have or are reasonably likely to have a material current or future effect on its financial
condition, changes in financial condition, revenues or expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or
capital resources.
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Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires the Company’s management, in some
instances, to make judgments about the application of these principles. The amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period could differ
materially from the amounts reported if different conditions existed or different judgments were utilized. Management’s
judgment is most critical in the estimation of its liabilities for future policy benefits and unpaid claims and claim expenses
and its assets for cost of business acquired and in the valuation of its investments. A discussion of how management
applies these critical accounting policies follows.

Future Policy Benefits and Unpaid Claims and Claim Expenses. The Company establishes reserves for future policy
benefits and unpaid claims and claim expenses relating to its insurance products. These reserves, which totaled $1,495.6
million at December 31, 2003, represent management’s best estimate of future policy benefits and unpaid claims and
claim expenses. The reserves are calculated using various generally recognized actuarial methodologies and are based
upon assumptions that management believes are appropriate and which vary by type of product. Annually, external
actuarial experts also review the Company’s methodologies, assumptions and the resulting reserves. The Company’s
projected ultimate insurance liabilities and associated reserves are estimates, which are subject to variability. This
variability arises because the factors and events affecting the ultimate liability for claims have not all taken place, and thus
cannot be evaluated with certainty. The estimation process is complex and involves information obtained from company-
specific and industry-wide data, as well as general economic information.

The most significant assumptions made in the estimation process for future policy benefits relate to mortality, morbidity,
claim termination and discount rates. The reserves for unpaid claims and claim expenses are determined on an individual
basis for reported claims and estimates of IBNR losses are developed on the basis of past experience. The most
significant assumptions made in the estimation process for unpaid claims and claim expenses are the trend in loss costs,
the expected frequency and severity of claims, changes in the timing of the reporting of losses from the loss date to the
notification date, and expected costs to settle unpaid claims. The assumptions vary based on the year the claim is
incurred. At December 31, 2003, disability and excess workers’ compensation reserves for unpaid claims and claim
expenses with a carrying value of $645.6 million have been discounted at a weighted average rate of 5.4%, with the rates
ranging from 3.7% to 7.5%. Disability reserves for unpaid claims and claim expenses are discounted using interest rate
assumptions based upon projected portfolio yield rates for the assets supporting the liabilities. The assets selected to
support these liabilities produce cash flows that are intended to match the timing and amount of anticipated claim and
claim expense payments. Excess workers’ compensation claim reserves are discounted using interest rate assumptions
based on the risk-free rate of return for U.S. Government securities with a duration comparable to the expected duration
and payment pattern of the claims at the time the claims are settled. The rates used to discount reserves are determined
annually. The methods and assumptions used to establish reserves for future policy benefits and unpaid claims and claim
expenses are continually reviewed and updated based on current circumstances, and any resulting adjustments are
reflected in earnings currently. There have been no material changes in the actuarial assumptions and/or methods from
those used in the previous periods other than those resulting from the unusually high number of large losses in the
Company’s excess workers’ compensation business in 2001. If the Company’s actual loss experience from its current or
discontinued products is different from the Company’s assumptions or estimates, the Company’s reserves could be
inadequate. In such event, the Company’s results of operations, liquidity or financial condition could be materially
adversely affected.

Deferred Acquisition Costs. Costs related to the acquisition of new insurance business, such as commissions, certain costs
of policy issuance and underwriting, and certain sales office expenses, are deferred when incurred. The unamortized
balance of these deferred acquisition costs is included in cost of business acquired on the consolidated balance sheet.
Deferred acquisition costs related to group life, disability and accident products, which totaled $133.1 million at
December 31, 2003, are amortized over the anticipated premium-paying period of the related policies in proportion to the
ratio of the present value of annual expected premium income to the present value of the total expected premium income.
Deferred acquisition costs related to casualty insurance products, which totaled $9.8 million at December 31, 2003, are
amortized over the period in which the related premium is earned. Deferred acquisition costs related to annuity products,
which totaled $31.6 million at December 31, 2003, are amortized over the anticipated lives of the policies in relation to
the present value of estimated gross profits from such policies’ surrender charges and mortality, investment and expense
margins. The amortization is a constant percentage of estimated gross profits based on the ratio of the present value of
amounts deferred as compared to the present value of estimated gross profits. Adjustments are made each year to reflect
the actual gross profits to date as compared to assumed experience and any changes in the remaining expected future gross
profits. The unamortized balance of deferred policy acquisition costs related to certain asset accumulation products is
adjusted for the impact on estimated future gross profits as if net unrealized appreciation and depreciation on available for

29-




sale securities had been realized at the balance sheet date. The impact of this adjustment, net of the related income tax
expense or benefit, is included in net unrealized appreciation and depreciation as a component of other comprehensive
income in shareholders’ equity. Deferred acquisition costs are charged to current earnings to the extent that it is
determined that future premiums or estimated gross profits will not be adequate to cover the amounts deferred. The
amortization of deferred acquisition costs totaled $53.7 million, $43.2 million and $32.7 million in 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively. These amounts represented 31%, 30% and 26%, respectively, of the total amounts of the deferred
acquisition cost balances outstanding at the beginning of the respective periods.

Investments. Investments are primarily carried at fair value with unrealized appreciation and depreciation included as a
component of other comprehensive income in shareholders’ equity, net of the related income tax benefit or expense and
the related adjustment to cost of business acquired. Ninety-nine percent of the Company’s fixed maturity and equity
securities portfolio are actively traded in a liquid market or have other liquidity mechanisms. Securities acquired through
private placements, which are not actively traded in a liquid market and do not have other mechanisms for their
liquidation, totaled $19.7 million at December 31, 2003. The Company estimates the fair value for these securities
primarily by comparison to similar securities with quoted market prices. If quotes are not available on similar securities,
the Company estimates fair value based on recent purchases or sales of similar securities or other internally prepared
valuations. Key assumptions used in this process include the level of risk-free interest rates, risk premiums, and
performance of underlying collateral, if applicable. All such investments are classified as available for sale. The
Company’s ability to liquidate these investments in a timely manner, if necessary, may be adversely impacted by the lack
of an actively traded market. Historically, the Company has not realized amounts on dispositions of non-marketable
investments that varied materially from the amounts estimated by the Company under this valuation methodology. The
Company believes that its estimates reasonably reflect the fair value of these securities; however, had there been an active
market for these securities during the applicable reporting period, the market prices may have been materially different
than the amounts reported.

Declines in the fair value of investments that are considered in the judgment of management to be other than temporary
are reported as realized investment losses. The Company evaluates, among other things, the financial position and
prospects of the issuer, conditions in the issuer’s industry and geographic area, liquidity of the investment, changes in the
amount or timing of expected future cash flows from the investment, and recent downgrades of the issuer by a rating
agency to determine if and when a decline in the fair value of an investment below amortized cost is other than temporary.
The length of time and extent to which the fair value of the investment is lower than its amortized cost and the Company’s
ability and intent to retain the investment to allow for any anticipated recovery in the investment’s fair value are also
considered. In 2003, 2002 and 2001, the Company recognized losses totaling $13.0 million, $54.1 million and $79.3
million, respectively, for the other than temporary decline in the value of certain securities. These losses were recognized
as a result of events that occurred in the respective periods, such as downgrades in an issuer’s credit ratings, deteriorating
financial results of issuers, adverse changes in the amount and timing of estimated fiture cash flows from securities and
the impact of the recessionary economic environment on issuers’ financial positions. Investment grade and non-
investment grade fixed maturity securities comprised 83.1% and 6.3%, respectively, of the Company’s total investment
portfolio at December 31, 2003. Gross unrealized appreciation and gross unrealized depreciation, before the related
income tax expense or benefit and the related adjustment to cost of business acquired, attributable to investment grade
fixed maturity securities totaled $114.6 million and $10.1 million, respectively, at December 31, 2003. Gross unrealized
appreciation and gross unrealized depreciation, before the related income tax expense or benefit and the related
adjustment to cost of business acquired, attributable to non-investment grade fixed maturity securities totaled $11.3
miilion and $4.6 million, respectively, at December 31, 2003. Unrealized appreciation and depreciation, net of the related
income tax expense or benefit and the related adjustment to cost of business acquired, has been reflected on the
Company’s balance sheet as a component of other comprehensive income (loss). The Company anticipates that if certain
existing declines in security values are determined to be other than temporary, it may recognize additional investment
losses in the range of $7.5 million to $15 million pre-tax ($5 million to $10 million on an after-tax basis) with respect to
the relevant securities. However, the extent of any such losses will depend on future market developments and changes in
security values, and such losses may exceed or be lower than such range. It is not possible to predict the extent of any
future changes in value, positive or negative, or the results of the future application of the Company’s procedures for the
evaluation of other than temporary impairment in valuation. There can be no assurance that the Company will realize
investment gains in the future in an amount sufficient to offset any such losses.

The Company also invests in balances with independent investment managers, consisting primarily of investments in
limited partnerships which invest in various financial instruments. These investments are reflected in the Company’s
financial statements under the equity method; accordingly, positive or negative changes in the value of the partnerships’
underlying investments are included in net investment income. For this purpose, the Company estimates the values of its
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balances with independent investment managers based on values provided by the managers, as adjusted based on available
information concerning the underlying investment portfolios. Such adjustments resulted in reductions in value of $6.7
million and $1.8 million as of December 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002, respectively. The Company believes that its
estimates reasonably reflect the values of its balances with independent investment managers; however, there can be no
assurance that such values will ultimately be realized upon liquidation of such balances.

Forward-Looking Statements And Cautionary Statements Regarding Certain Factors That May Affect Future
Results

In connection with, and because it desires to take advantage of, the “safe harbor” provisions of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995, the Company cautions readers regarding certain forward-looking statements in the above
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and elsewhere in this Form
10-K and in any other statement made by, or on behalf of, the Company, whether in future filings with the Securities and
Exchange Commission or otherwise. Forward-looking statements are statements not based on historical information and
which relate to future operations, strategies, financial results, prospects, outlooks or other developments. Some forward-
looking statements may be identified by the use of terms such as “expects,” “believes,” “anticipates,” “intends,”
“judgment” or other similar expressions. Forward-looking statements are necessarily based upon estimates and
assumptions that are inherently subject to significant business, economic, competitive and other uncertainties and
contingencies, many of which are beyond the Company’s control and many of which, with respect to future business
decisions, are subject to change. Examples of such uncertainties and contingencies include, among other important
factors, those affecting the insurance industry generally, such as the economic and interest rate environment, federal and
state legislative and regulatory developments, including but not limited to changes in financial services and tax laws and
regulations, market pricing and competitive trends relating to insurance products and services, acts of terrorism or war,
and the availability and cost of reinsurance, and those relating specifically to the Company’s business, such as the level of
its insurance premiums and fee income, the claims experience, persistency and other factors affecting the profitability of
its insurance products, the performance of its investment portfolio and changes in the Company’s investment strategy,
acquisitions of companies or blocks of business, and ratings by major rating organizations of its insurance subsidiaries.
These uncertainties and contingencies can affect actual results and could cause actual resuits to differ materially from
those expressed in any forward-looking statements made by, or on behalf of, the Company. Certain of these uncertainties
and contingencies are described in more detail in the remainder of this section. The Company disclaims any obligation to
update forward-looking information.

Reserves established for future policy benefits and claims may prove inadequate.

The Company’s reserves for future policy benefits and unpaid claims and claim expenses are estimates. See “Critical
Accounting Policies — Future Policy Benefits and Unpaid Claims and Claim Expenses” for a description of the most
significant assumptions used in the estimation process. These estimates are subject to variability, since the factors and
events affecting the ultimate liability for claims have not all taken place, and thus cannot be evaluated with certainty.
Moreover, under the actuarial methodologies discussed previously, these estimates are subject to reevaluation based on
developing trends with respect to the Company’s loss experience. Such trends may emerge over longer periods of time,
and changes in such trends cannot necessarily be identified or predicted at any given time by reference to current claims
experience, whether favorable or unfavorable. If the Company’s actual loss experience from its current or discontinued
products is different from the Company’s assumptions or estimates, the Company’s reserves could be inadequate. In such
event, the Company’s results of operations, liquidity or financial condition could be materially adversely affected.

The market values of the Company’s investments fluctuate,

The market values of the Company’s investments vary depending on economic and market conditions, including interest
rates, and such values can decline as a result of changes in such conditions. Increasing interest rates or a widening in the
spread between interest rates available on U.S. Treasury securities and corporate debt, for example, will typically have an
adverse impact on the market values of the fixed maturity securities in the Company’s investment portfolio. If interest
rates decline, the Company generally achieves a lower overall rate of return on investments of cash generated from the
Company’s operations. In addition, in the event that investments are called or mature in a declining interest rate
environment, the Company may be unable to reinvest the proceeds in securities with comparable interest rates. The
Company may also in the future be required or determine to sell certain investments at a price and a time when the market
value of such investments is less than the book value of such investments.
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Declines in the fair value of investments that are considered in the judgment of management to be other than temporary
are reported as realized investment losses. See “Critical Accounting Policies — Investments” for a description of
management’s evaluation process. The Company has experienced and may in the future experience losses from other than
temporary declines in security values. Such losses are recorded as realized investment losses in the income statement.
See “Results of Operations - 2003 Compared to 2002.”

The Company’s investment strategy exposes the Company to defauit and other risks.

The management of the Company’s investment portfolio is an important component of the Company’s profitability since a
substantial portion of the Company’s operating income is generated from the difference between the yield achieved on
invested assets and, in the case of asset accumulation products, the interest credited on policyholder funds and, in the case
of the Company’s other products for which reserves are discounted, the discount rate used to calculate the related reserves.
See “Liquidity and Capital Resources — Investments” for a description of the Company’s investment portfolio and
strategy.

The Company is subject to the risk, among others, that the issuers of the fixed maturity securities the Company owns will
default on principal and interest payments. A major economic downturn or any of the various other factors that affect
issuers' abilities to pay could result in issuer defaults. Because the Company’s investments consist primarily of fixed
maturity securities and short-term investments, such defaults could materially adversely affect the Company’s results of
operations, liquidity or financial condition. The Company continually monitors its investment portfolio and attempts to
ensure that the risks associated with concentrations of investments in either a particular sector of the market or a single
entity are limited.

The Company’s financial position exposes the Company to interest rate risks.

Because the Company’s primary assets and liabilities are financial in nature, the Company’s consolidated financial
position and earnings are subject to risks resulting from changes in interest rates. The Company manages this risk by
active portfolio management focusing on minimizing its exposure to fluctuations in interest rates by matching its invested
assets and related liabilities and by periodically adjusting the crediting rates on its annuity products. See “Liquidity and
Capital Resources — Asset/Liability Management and Market Risk.” Profitability of certain group employee benefit
products is aiso affected by the difference between the yield achieved on invested assets and the discount rate used to
calculate the related reserves. The Company manages this risk by adjusting the prices charged for these products.

The Cempany’s ability to reduce its exposure to risks depends on the availability and cost of reinsurance.

The Company transfers its exposure to some risks through reinsurance arrangements with other insurance and reinsurance
companies. Under the Company’s reinsurance arrangements, another insurer assumes a specified portion of the
Company’s losses and loss adjustment expenses in exchange for a specified portion of policy premiums. The availability,
amount, cost and terms of reinsurance may vary significantly based on market conditions. Any decrease in the amount of
the Company’s reinsurance will increase the Company’s risk of loss and any increase in the cost of reinsurance will,
absent a decrease in the reinsurance amount, reduce the Company’s premium income. In either case, the Company’s
operating results could be adversely affected unless it is able to accordingly adjust the prices or other terms of its
insurance policies or successfully implement other operational initiatives, as to which no assurance can be given.
Furthermore, the Company is subject to credit risk with respect to reinsurance. The Company obtains reinsurance
primarily through indemnity reinsurance transactions in which the Company is still liable for the transferred risks if the
reinsurers fail to meet their financial obligations. Such failures could materially affect the Company’s results of
operations, liquidity or financial condition.

Some reinsurers experienced significant losses related to the terrorist events of September 11, 2001. As a result of this and
other market factors, higher prices and less favorable terms and conditions are presently being offered in the reinsurance
market. These market conditions are reflected in the terms of the replacement reinsurance arrangements entered into
during 2003 for the Company’s excess workers’ compensation and long-term disability products. See “Liquidity and
Capital Resources — Reinsurance.” It is likely that, in the future, the Company’s reinsurers will continue to seek price
increases, although the extent of such increases cannot currently be predicted. Also, there has been significantly reduced
availability of reinsurance covering risks such as terrorist and catastrophic events. Accordingly, substantially all of the
Company’s coverages of this nature were discontinued during 2002, which would result in the Company retaining a higher
portion of losses from such events if they occur. The Company has not been able to replace such coverages on acceptable
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terms due to present market conditions, and there can be no assurance that the Company will be able to do so in the future.
However, under the Terrorism Act, the federal government will pay 90% of the Company’s covered losses relating to acts
of international terrorism from property and casualty products directly written by SNCC above the Company’s annual
deductible. See “Business — Group Employee Benefit Products.” The occurrence of a significant catastrophic event could
have a material adverse effect on the Company’s results of operations, liquidity or financial condition.

The insurance business is a heavily regulated industry.

The Company’s insurance subsidiaries, like other insurance companies, are highly regulated by state insurance authorities
in the states in which they are domiciled and the other states in which they conduct business. Such regulations, among
other things, limit the amount of dividends and other payments that can be made by such subsidiaries without prior
regulatory approval and impose restrictions on the amount and type of investments such subsidiaries may have. These
regulations also affect many other aspects of the Company’s insurance subsidiaries’ businesses, including, for example,
RBC requirements, various reserve requirements, the terms, conditions and manner of sale and marketing of insurance
products, claims-handling practices and the form and content of required financial statements. These regulations are
intended to protect policyholders rather than investors. The ability of the Company’s insurance subsidiaries to continue to
conduct their businesses is dependent upon the maintenance of their licenses in these various states.

From time to time, increased scrutiny has been placed upon the insurance regulatory framework, and a number of state
legislatures have considered or enacted legislative measures that alter, and in many cases increase, state authority to
regulate insurance companies. In addition to legislative initiatives of this type, the NAIC and insurance regulators are
continuously involved in a process of reexamining existing laws and regulations and their application to insurance
companies. Furthermore, while the federal government currently does not directly regulate the insurance business, federal
legislation and administrative policies (and court interpretations thereof) in a number of areas, such as employee benefits
regulation, age, sex and disability-based discrimination, financial services regulation and federal taxation, can significantly
affect the insurance business. It is not possible to predict the future impact of changing regulation on the operations of the
Company and those of its insurance subsidiaries.

The Company’s insurance subsidiaries can also be required, under solvency or guaranty laws of most states in which they
do business, to pay assessments to fund policyholder losses or liabilities of insurance companies that become insolvent.

The financial services industry is highly competitive.

The Company competes with numerous other insurance and financial services companies. Many of these organizations
have substantially greater assets, higher ratings from rating agencies, larger and more diversified portfolios of insurance
products and larger agency sales operations than the Company. Competition in asset accumulation product markets is also
encountered from the expanding number of banks, securities brokerage firms and other financial intermediaries marketing
alternative savings products, such as mutual funds, traditional bank investments and retirement funding alternatives.

The Company may be adversély impacted by a decline in the ratings of the Company’s insurance subsidiaries.

Ratings with respect to claims-paying ability and financial strength have become an increasingly important factor
impacting the competitive position of insurance companies. Each of the rating agencies reviews its ratings of companies
periodically and there can be no assurance that current ratings will be maintained or improved in the future. Claims-paying
and financial strength ratings are based upon factors relevant to policyholders and are not directed toward protection of
investors. Downgrades in the ratings of the Company’s insurance subsidiaries could adversely affect sales of their
products and could have a material adverse effect on the results of the Company’s operations,

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

The information required by Item 7A is included in this Form 10-K under the heading “Liquidity and Capital Resources -
Asset/Liability Management and Market Risk” beginning on page 27 of this Form 10-K.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The information required by Item 8 is included in this Form 10-K beginning on page 39 of this Form 10-K.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

As of the end of the period covered by this report, an evaluation was performed under the supervision and with the
participation of the Company’s management, including the Company’s Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) and Vice
President and Treasurer (the individual who acts in the capacity of chief financial officer), of the effectiveness of the
design and operation of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in the rules and regulations of the
Securities and Exchange Commission). Based on that evaluation, the Company’s management, including the CEO and
Vice President and Treasurer, concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective. There
were no changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting during the fourth fiscal quarter of 2003 that
have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial

reporting.

PART III

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

The information required by Item 10 is included in the Company’s definitive Proxy Statement, to be filed pursuant to
Regulation 14A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 in connection with the Company’s 2004 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders, under the captions “Election of Directors,” “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance,”
and “Code of Ethics” and is incorporated herein by reference, and in Item 4A in Part I of this Form 10-K.

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by Item 11 is included in the Company’s definitive Proxy Statement, to be filed pursuant to
Regulation 14A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 in connection with the Company’s 2004 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders, under the caption “Executive Compensation” and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Owners and Management and Related Shareholder Matters

The information required by Item 12 is included in the Company’s definitive Proxy Statement, to be filed pursuant to
Regulation 14A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 in connection with the Company’s 2004 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders, under the captions “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” and “Equity
Compensation Plan Information” and is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

The information required by Item 13 is included in the Company’s definitive Proxy Statement, to be filed pursuant to
Regulation 14A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 in connection with the Company’s 2004 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders, under the caption “Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions” and is incorporated herein by
reference.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by Item 14 is included in the Company’s definitive Proxy Statement, to be filed pursuant to -
Regulation 14A of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 in connection with the Company’s 2004 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders, under the caption “Independent Auditors” and is incorporated herein by reference.

-34-




Part IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules, and Reports on Form 8-K

(a)

(b)

(©)
2.1

22
23
24
3.1
32

3.3
4.1

42
4.3

4.4

4.5
4.6

4.7

4.8
4.9

10.1

10.2

The financial statements and financial statement schedules filed as part of this report are listed in the Index to
Consolidated Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedules on page 40 of this Form 10-K.

The Company filed a report on Form 8-K on October 21, 2003, under Item 12, containing a press release
announcing third quarter 2003 earnings. The information in such report was furnished pursuant to Item 12 of Form
8-K and shall not be deemed to have been “filed” for purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 or otherwise subject to the liabilities of that section.

The Company filed a report on Form 8-K on November 24, 2003, under Item 9, containing a press release
announcing a cash dividend in the amount of $0.08 per share and a 3-for-2 common stock split to be paid in the
form of a stock dividend, such dividend to be distributed on December 22, 2003 to holders of record on December
8, 2003, and certain changes to the Company’s Board of Directors. The information in such report was furnished
pursuant to Item 9 of Form 8-K and shall not be deemed to have been “filed” for purposes of Section 18 of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 or otherwise subject to the liabilities of that section.

The following Exhibits are numbered in accordance with the Exhibit Table of Item 601 of Regulation S-K:

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated October 5, 1995, among the Company, SIG Holdings Acquisition Corp.,
and SIG Holdings, Inc. ©

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated June 11, 1998, by and among Delphi Financial Group, Inc., Matrix
Absence Management, Inc. and the Shareholders named therein %

Stock Purchase Agreement, dated as of October 1, 1998, by and among Delphi Financial Group, Inc., Unicover
Managers, Inc., Unicover Intermediaries, LLC and the Shareholders named therein (9

Merger, Exchange and Release Agreement, dated April 30, 1999, by and among Delphi Financial Group, Inc.,
Unicover Managers, Inc., Unicover Intermediaries, LLC, Unicover Management Partners, LLC and the Buyers
named therein "

Amendment to Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Delphi Financial Group, Inc. (Exhibit 3.2)®

Certg'}cate of Amendment of Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Delphi Financial Group, Inc. (Exhibit
3.1

Amended and Restated By-laws of Delphi Financial Group, Inc. (Exhibit 3.4) @

Indenture, dated as of October 8, 1993, between Delphi Financial Group, Inc. and State Street Bank of
Connecticut (formerly Shawmut Bank Connecticut, N.A.) as Trustee (matured 8.0% Senior Notes due 2003) )

Indenture, dated as of May 20, 2003, between Delphi Financial Group, Inc. and Wilmington Trust Company,
as Trustee (Exhibit 4(a)) "

First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of May 20, 2003, between Delphi Financial Group, Inc. and
Wilmington Trust Company, as Trustee (Exhibit 4(b)) an

Amended and Restated Limited Liability Agreement of Delphi Funding L.L.C. dated as of March 25, 1997,
among Delphi Financial Group, Inc., as Managing Member, Chestnut Investors 111, Inc., as Resigning Member,
and the Holders of Capital Securities described therein, as Members (Exhibit 4(a)®

Subordinated Indenture, dated as of March 25, 1997, between Delphi Financial Group, Inc. and Wilmington
Trust Company as Trustee (Exhibit 4(b)) ®

Guarantee Agreement dated March 25, 1997, between Delphi Financial Group, Inc., as Guarantor, and
Wilmington Trust Company, as Trustee (Exhibit 4(c)) ®

Amended and Restated Declaration of Delphi Financial Statutory Trust I, dated as of May 15, 2003, by and
among U.S. Bank National Association, as Institutional Trustee, Delphi Financial Group, Inc., as Sponsor, and
the Administrators named therein (Exhibit 4.1) ®

Indenture, dated as of May 15, 2003, between Delphi Financial Group, Inc. and U.S. Bank National
Association, as Trustee (Exhibit 4.2) (®

Guarantee Agreement, dated as of May 15, 2003, by and between Delphi Financial Group, Inc., as Guarantor,
and U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee (Exhibit 4.3) '®

First Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as of December 15, 2003, among Delphi Financial Group, Inc.,
the various financial institutions parties thereto (collectively, the “Lenders”), and Bank of America, N.A., as
Administrative Agent ®*

Credit Agreement, dated as of December 16, 2002, among the Company, Bank of America, N.A., as
Administrative Agent, and the Other Lenders Party Thereto (Exhibit 10.1) %
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Delphi Financial Group, Inc. Second Amended and Restated Nonqualified Employee Stock Option Plan, as

Delphi Financial Group, Inc. 2003 Employee Long-Term Incentive and Share Award Plan (Exhibit 10.1) !®
The Delphi Capital Management, Inc. Pension Plan for Robert Rosenkranz (Exhibit 10.4)
Second Amendment to the Delphi Capital Management, Inc. Pension Plan for Robert Rosenkranz (Exhibit

Investment Consulting Agreement, dated as of November 10, 1588, between Rosenkranz Asset Managers, LLC
(as assignee of Rosenkranz, Inc.) and the Company (Exhibit 10.8) @

Investment Consulting Agreement, dated as of November 6, 1988, between Rosenkranz Asset Managers, LL.C
(as assignee of Rosenkranz, Inc.) and Reliance Standard Life Insurance Company (Exhibit 10.9) @

Delphi Financial Group, Inc. Amended and Restated Long-Term Performance-Based Incentive Plan (Exhibit

2003 Bonus Criteria for Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer of Delphi Financial Group, Inc.

SIG Holdings, Inc. 1992 Long-Term Incentive Plan (Exhibit 10.12)®
Stockholders Agreement, dated as of October 5, 1995, among the Company and the affiliate stockholders

Reliance Standard Life Insurance Company Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Plan (Exhibit 10.14)®
Reliance Standard Life Insurance Company Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (Exhibit 10.15)©®
Reliance Standard Life Insurance Company Management Incentive Compensation Plan (Exhibit 10.4) !'®
Stock Option Award Agreement, dated July 8, 2003, for Harold F. Ilg (Exhibit 10.5) ®

Delphi Financial Group, Inc. Second Amended and Restated Directors Stock Option Plan, as amended May 28,

Employment Agreement, dated March 18, 1994, for Robert M. Smith, Jr. (Exhibit 10.31)
Employment Agreement, dated July 8, 2003, between Safety National Casualty Corporation and Harold F. Iig

SIG Holdings, Inc. Note Agreement, dated as of May 20, 1994 {8.5% Senior Secured Notes due 2003) (Exhibit
Borrower Pledge Agreement, dated as of May 20, 1994, between SIG Holdings, Inc. and the Chase Manhattan
Reinsurance Agreement, dated January 27, 1998, between Reliance Standard Life Insurance Company and
Casualty Excess of Loss Reinsurance Agreement, dated January 27, 1998, between Safety National Casualty
Corporation and Oracle Reinsurance Company Ltd. (Exhibit 10.28)®

Commutation, Prepayment and Redemption Agreement, dated September 14, 2001, between Delphi Financial

Group, Inc., Safety National Casualty Corporation, Reliance Standard Life Insurance Company, Delphi
International Ltd. and Oracle Reinsurance Company Ltd. (Exhibit 10.1) %

20)

Certification by the Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer of Periodic Report Pursuant
Certification by the Vice President and Treasurer of Periodic Report Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) or 154-

Certification of Periodic Report Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the

Incorporated herein by reference to the designated exhibit to the Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1992.
Incorporated herein by reference to the designated exhibit to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 dated March 13, 1990

Incorporated herein by reference to the designated exhibit to the Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1993,
Incorporated herein by reference to the designated exhibit to the Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1994,
Incorporated herein by reference to the designated exhibit to the Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1995,
Incorporated herein by reference to the designated exhibit to the Company’s Registration Statement on Form S-4 dated January 30, 1996

Incorporated herein by reference to the designated exhibit to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 1997.
Incorporated herein by reference to the designated exhibit to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 21, 1997.

10.3
amended May 23, 2001 (Exhibit 10.1) *?
10.4
10.5
10.6
10.2) ¥
10.7
10.8
10.9
10.3)®
10.10
(Exhibit 10.1) 9
10.11
10.12
named therein (Exhibit 10.30) ©
10.13
10.14
10.15
10.16
10.17
2003 (Exhibit 10.2) *®
10.18
10.19
(Exhibit 10.6) ®
10.20
10.25)®
10.21
Bank, N.A., as collateral agent (Exhibit 10.26) ®
10.22
Oracle Reinsurance Company Ltd. (Exhibit 10.27)®
10.23
10.24
11.1 Computation of Results per Share of Common Stock ¥
21.1 List of Subsidiaries of the Company
23.1 Consent of Emst & Young LLP ®%
24.1 Powers of Attorney
31.1
to Rule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a)*®
31.2
14(a)®”
32.1
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 @
1)
@
(Registration No. 33-32827).
©)
@
®)
(©)
(Registration No. 33-99164).
)
®)
©®

Incorporated herein by reference to the designated exhibit to the Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1997.
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(d

(10)
(11
(12)
(13)
(14)
(15)
(16)
(17)
(18)
(19)
20

Incorporated herein by reference to the designated exhibit to the Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1998.
Incorporated herein by reference to the designated exhibit to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 1999,
Incorporated herein by reference to the designated exhibit to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2001.

Incorporated herein by reference to the designated exhibit to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2001,
Incorporated herein by reference to the designated exhibit to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2002,

Incorporated herein by reference to the designated exhibit to the Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002.
Incorporated herein by reference to the designated exhibit to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2003.
Incorporated herein by reference to the designated exhibit to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated May 20, 2003.
Incorporated herein by reference to the designated exhibit to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2003.
Incorporated herein by reference to Note P to the Consolidated Financial Statements included elsewhere herein.

Filed herewith.

The financial statement schedules listed in the Index to Consolidated Financial Statements and Financial Statement
Schedules on page 40 of this Form 10-K are included under Item 8 and are presented beginning on page 69 of this
Form 10-K. All other schedules for which provision is made in the applicable accounting regulations of the
Securities and Exchange Commission are not required under the related instructions or are inapplicable, and
therefore have been omitted.
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DELPHI FINANCIAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused
this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Delphi Financial Group, Inc.

By: /s/ ROBERT ROSENKRANZ
Chairman of the Board, President and
Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, this report has been signed by the
following persons on behaif of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Name Capacity Date
/s/ ROBERT ROSENKRANZ Chairman of the Board, March 12, 2004
(Robert Rosenkranz) President and Chief Executive
Officer (Principal Executive
Officer)
* Director March 12, 2004
(Lawrence E. Daurelle)
* Director March 12, 2004
(Edward A. Fox)
* Director March 12, 2004
(Van D. Greenfield)
* Director March 12, 2004
(Harold F. Ilg)
* Director March 12, 2004
(James N. Meehan)
* Director March 12, 2004
(Philip R. O’Connor)
* ‘ Director © March 12, 2004
(Donald A. Sherman)
/s/ ROBERT M. SMITH, JR. Director and Executive March 12, 2004
(Robert M. Smith, Jr.) Vice President
* Vice President and March 12, 2004
Thomas W. Burghart Treasurer (Principal
Accounting and Financial
Officer)
*BY: /s/ ROBERT ROSENKRANZ

Attorney-in-Fact
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DELPHI FINANCIAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL RESULTS (Unaudited)
(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Data)

Year Ended December 31, 2003

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter _ Quarter Quarter
Revenues excluding realized investment gains............ $ 217,466 $ 224274 $ 227,401 $ 236,312
Realized investment gains.........cccoocvnviniiiniiininncnn, 1.215 3.464 3,170 4,875
TOtal FEVENUES ....oeveeeieeiceiree et eeetee et sie e srae e 218,681 227,738 230,571 241,187
Operating iNCOME ..........c.ecererrreeerereeereeserreresesissssssens 35,235 40,020 42,479 43,865
NELICOME c.oevieieirieec e e e re s ebe e 22,496 24,692 24,892 26,836
Basic results per share of common stock:
NEL INCOME .ooievieeiiiiciec e ereeeccneeeeee s esaeeereeersenes $ 0.72 $ 0.80 $ 0.80 $ 0.86
Diluted results per share of common stock:
NEt INCOME.....vivveiiiiteiiere e eere e eveesbeeebe s eres $ 0.71 $ 0.77 $ 0.78 $ 0.83

Year Ended December 31, 2002

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter _ Quarter Quarter
Revenues excluding realized investment gains (losses)
and loss on extinguishment of debt...............co....... $ 197,891 $ 195,453 $ 193,407 $ 203,142
Realized investment gains (10SS€S)........cceverminivinununn. 95 218 (10,825) (17,957)
Loss on extinguishment of debt............cccceveinnerenennnn. - (332) - -
Total FEVENUES .....ceveeiiiecreeeeereee et 197,986 195,339 182,582 185,185
Operating iNCOME ........cceeceeveeirrennreneneeeicniineenains 31,832 31,454 20,531 14,847
NELINCOME ..vvvrinirerictiie s e ra e s beese s 19,570 19,516 12,793 8,773
Basic results per share of common stock:
NEtINCOME....eiveieeeierecreeieeeeetee e eaneesneseesneeseeanes $ 0.63 $ 0.63 $ 0.41 $ 0.28
Diluted results per share of common stock:
NEL INCOME...cvieriviiriiiiricieeriete e e e seereans $ 062 § 0.61 $ 040 $ 0.27

Computations of results per share for each quarter are made independently of results per share for the year. Due to
transactions affecting the weighted average number of shares outstanding in each quarter, the sum of quarterly results per
share does not equal results per share for the year. Prior period results per share have been restated to reflect the 3-for-2
common stock split distributed in the form of a 50% stock dividend on December 22, 2003.

Results for the first, second, and fourth quarters of 2003 include pre-tax investment losses of $5.1 million, $7.2 million
and $0.7 miilion, respectively, due to the other than temporary declines in the market values of certain securities. Results
for the first, second, third and fourth quarters of 2002 include pre-tax investment losses of $3.6 million, $5.9 million,
$20.0 million and $24.6 million, respectively, due to the other than temporary declines in the market values of certain
securities. In the second quarter of 2002, the Company also repurchased $10.5 million aggregate principal amount of the
Matured Senior Notes. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations™
and Notes C and E to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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DELPHI FINANCIAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of Delphi Financial Group. Inc. and Subsidiaries:

Report of Independent AUItors.......c.covre ittt e sttt sbbe st st are s ene e
Consolidated Statements of Income - Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 ..........ccccovene.
Consolidated Balance Sheets - December 31, 2003 and 2002 ..ot
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity - Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001....
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows - Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001....................

Notes to Consolidated FINancial StAtEIMENTS ..........cuovvrvviiiiirreeeceeee et s e s etese s e s e sesnsaesesraneens

Financial Statement Schedules of Delphi Financial Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries:

Schedule I, Summary of Investments Other Than Investments in Related Parties........c.cccocvvcnveevncnenee.
Schedule II, Condensed Financial Information of Registrant.................coccoconvniiiniie,
Schedule 11, Supplementary Insurance Information..........c.occevoviiiennriiinecncr e
Schedule TV, REINSUIANCE ......cccvveiiicieiiieieetis ettt eteesieeesreeeneeebsseseeestbsseseeestaeetaaeeeasessnessasestannesesssessrneens
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Shareholders and Directors
Delphi Financial Group, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Delphi Financial Group, Inc. and subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the related consolidated statements of income, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2003. Our audits also included the financial statement schedules
listed in the Index to Consolidated Financial Statements and Financial Statement Schedules. These financial statements
and schedules are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements and schedules based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Delphi Financial Group, Inc. and subsidiaries at December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the
consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,
2003, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. Also, in our opinion, the related
financial statement schedules, when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole, present
fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein.

As discussed in Notes A and O to the Consolidated Financial Statements, in 2003 the Company changed its method of
accounting for stock options.

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
February 6, 2004
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DELPHI FINANCIAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Data)

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
Revenue:
Premium and fe€ INCOME. ... ...cvovirveeieeeeeecereeeiee ettt e renaen $ 719,087 $ 627,857 $ 507,204
Net investment INCOIME..........ccviiiieriieeieiree e eeer e eeereereresrbeseas s 186,366 162,036 157,509
Net realized investment gains (10SS€S) ...c..ooveereeenierenenescieecrnrenees 12,724 (28,469) (70,289)
(Loss) gain on extinguishment of debt and capital securities ............. - (332) 11,456
918.177 761,092 605,880
Benefits and expenses:
Benefits, claims and interest credited to policyholders..............c....... 530,625 471,984 416,996
COMUMUSSIONS ...c.eveeeecirereitereserrresessetesettreeessrsnresssrnresssssresssssenreesaneas 52,380 43,169 39,636
Amortization of cost of business acquired ..........cc.ooveevererecrrrenennencne 55,764 45,742 34,700
Other Operating EXPeNSES........covevrierererrerrerierereerrresersesesressesesseseons 117.809 101,533 91.729
756.578 662.428 583.061
OPerating iNCOME.........covvveririseereririenerereeescssterereereeseesessesreseseessonenness 161,599 98,664 22,819
Interest expense:
Corporate debt ........ccoiciiiiiirieiceetee e e b 14,052 9,025 11,604
Dividends on capital SECUTIES ........coervrrereiererercine e 4.035 3.356 5.808
18.087 12,381 17.412
Income before income tax expense (benefit)........ccoveevrrnirennne 143,512 86,283 5,407
Income tax expense (DeNefit) .........cceevvvreeiruirrieiiieeeeeeeeeeve e 44,596 25,631 (1,098)
NELINCOME. ...cviviieiirereseeeterteee st ste et st sbe st en e st etebens $ 98916 $_60652 § 6505
Basic results per share of common stock:
NEE INCOME L..vivieviiieiecie ittt ste ettt sae st e ebe st ansberae et e ne e $ 3.17 $ 1.95 $ 0.21
Diluted results per share of common stock:
NEL INCOME ..veciiiirereieiierereecereeresr st reae e s areasebaseeeeseassencssrnsasssnsencs h) 309 8§ 190 § 0.21
Dividends paid per share of common Stock........cccoevvirierivnciinnecninnen, A 0.23 $ 0.20 3 0.20

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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DELPHI FINANCIAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Data)

December 31,

2003 2002
Assets:

Investments:

Fixed maturity securities, available for sale .......c.c..occoeeemimnneerieninirerceeees $ 2,862,045 $ 2,495,629

ShOrt-term INVESHMENTS. ....cueieiiiierrieieeiriesieereecrecreserer e eessas s sesbeesatressreresessesenns 114,752 204,890

Oher INVESIMENES. ......cceveriireeiiereeerreesaese e ese e sae e seaasaeseeses e senasssesseseessesennns 225.957 115.532

3,202,754 2,816,051

CASN .ttt ettt et bbb e bene s 18,733 27,669
Cost Of bUSINESS ACQUITE .......cecverrevereereeerireese et see e st e rrrbebeste e e er e vansiese e sebenns 183,665 168,110
Reinsurance receivables..... ..o et 409,620 392,659
GOOAWLL....c. ettt et skt s s ne s bt s sn s st e b e sesnrras 93,929 93,929
OHRET @SSEES .. .evvererireereieesesrreeeetetrees s et eseesaeessnresesoteseesastessamaseesnesssasnnsnesssassneeesans 176,170 163,371
Assets held in Separate aCCOUNLT ..........cceevrieerieeeentrte e e sesne 92,661 73.153

TOtA] ASSELS....cveteriieeeci ettt et st $4,177,532 3,734,942

Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity:

Future policy benefits:

e e et er et e § 246,634 § 229,743

Disability and aCCident...........ccecevreereeeeieenreneneeenneriniereeere st s sresnenas 439,158 390,717
Unpaid claims and claim expenses:

LR ettt ekt s ene e naeeen 47,395 40,627

Disability and @acCident ..........ccoceeveccreirrireetrie ittt e et 189,740 175,271

CASUAIY ..ottt s st et sa e e e e s e st e sraere e e s aesbaesatesnneenteans 572,690 534,856
Policyholder account Dalances...........cccevruiiciinerirecinner e erereeseessesssnenesesaenees 961,356 909,961
COrPOTALE EDL....c.ecuiieiiiieiietetee ettt ettt ettt st b e b e b 143,750 118,139
Advances from Federal Home Loan Bank...........cc.cccoovivvevernecne e 150,789 207,990
Other liabilities and policyholder funds.........c.cocoevevmrnivnrennininrceecnnee e 492,117 346,900
Liabilities related to Separate @CCOUNL.........c..oceveeererierercreeneiererteese e ee e e ses v 79.413 63.033

TOtal LHADIHEES ...c.eereveuireee ettt sttt ev e sssnes e sn s 3.323.042 3,017,237
Company-obligated mandatorily redeemable capital securities of subsidiaries........ 56,050 36.050
Shareholders’ equity:

Preferred Stock, $.01 par; 10,000,000 shares authorized.............ccoevervrrereecnnnnn. - -

Class A Common Stock, $.01 par; 40,000,000 shares authorized,;

29,457,024 and 18,927,855 shares issued and outstanding, respectively....... 295 189
Class B Common Stock, $.01 par; 20,000,000 shares authorized;

4,177,357 and 3,194,905 shares issued and outstanding, respectively........... 42 32
Additional paid-in capital......c.cconiiiiiiinniiiie s 383,573 373,356
Accumulated other comprehensive INCOME .........ccovvveeeervcinienceeinenecee e 52,428 30,003
RetainNed €AIMINES ......cvuvvivevreeeieeeceeece ettt b bbb s s bne 421,080 329,574
Treasury stock, at cost; 2,560,035 and 1,505,290 shares of T oo e

Class A Common Stock, respectively ........ccoceeineiinininninceseee (58,978) (51.499)

Total shareholders’ eqUItY.........cccoevevireriiriicerree e 798.440 681,655

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity...........ccccoverrrierrcerncenerrieneens $4,177,532  § 3,734,942

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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DELPHI FINANCIAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(Dollars in Thousands)

Accumulated
Other
Class A Class B Additional Comprehensive
Common Common Paid-in (Loss) Retained Treasury
Stock Stock Capital Income Earnings Stock Total
Balance, January 1, 2001 ............ $ 168 § 48 $366,834 §(53,622) $274,060 $ (49295) $538.193
Net INCOME .....cvvvvveeeeeeetrieereenne, - - - - 6,505 - 6,505
Other comprehensive income:
Decrease in net unrealized
depreciation on investments. - - - 42,637 - - 42,637
Comprehensive income............... 49,142
Issuance of stock, exercise of
stock options and share
CONVEISIONS.......eeveerrvreeeanrennanns 10 @) 2,551 - - - 2,554
Acquisition of treasury stock....... - - - - - (2,204) (2,204)
Cash dividends .........cooeeevvenennen.. - - - - (5.691) - (5.691)
Balance, December 31,2001... § 178 § 41  $369,385 $ (10,985) $274,874 $ (51,499) $ 581,994
Net income .........cceeeervvererereerenns - - - - 60,652 - 60,652
Other comprehensive income:
Increase in net unrealized
appreciation on investments. - - - 44,557 - - 44,557
Net unrealized loss on cash
flow hedge.......ccoevvcrnernnnnne - - - (3,290) - - (3,290)
Minimum pension liability
adjustment.........cceeervveneenennn - - - (279) - - (279
Comprehensive income............... 101,640
Issuance of stock, exercise of
stock options and share
CONVETSIONS....cccuviemrreenererireennes 11 ¢)] 3,971 - - - 3,973
Cash dividends ........ccoceeverervneennen. - - - - (5.952) - (5.952)
Balance, December 31,2002... $ 189 § 32 $373,356 §$ 30,003 $329,574 $(51,499) $681,655
Net ICOME ...uceeeureerririreecaecennns - - - - 98,916 - 98,916
Other compréhensive income:
Increase in net unrealized
appreciation on investments. - - - 26,395 - - 26,395
Increase in net loss on cash flow
hedge......ccocvvvvrnrnereiierenenns - - - (4,106) - - (4,106)
Net change in minimum pension
liability adjustment............... - - - 136 - - 136
Comprehensive income................ 121,341
Issuance of stock, exercise of
stock options and share
CONVETISIONS......covererereecrarrennns 8 4) 8,865 - - - 8,869
Stock-based compensation .......... - - 1,465 - - - 1,465
Acquisition of treasury stock....... - - - - - (7,479) (7,479)
Cash dividends ..........ccccevrnnnnn. - - - - (7,410) - (7,410)
Three-for-two stock split............. 98 14 (113) - - - (D
Balance, December 31,2003... § 295 § 42 $383573 § 52428 $421.080 $ (58.978) $ 798440
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DELPHI FINANCIAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Dollars in Thousands)

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001

Operating activities:
INELIICOME ....oieeieieiciieicererneeie et e e ir e e esb et ereraressessestesses e ssessensessas $ 98916 $ 60,652 $ 6,505
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided
by operating activities: :

Change in policy liabilities and policyholder accounts.................. 177,282 107,359 105,904
Net change in reinsurance receivables and payables ............c........ {21,336) (8,599) 39,670
Amortization, principally the cost of business acquired
ANd INVESTMEILS ..ocveeiiiiiieeie e e eetie ettt s saeesstsesrressnneesbese e 41,184 29,768 19,153
Deferred costs of business acquired.........coceevvevreinricnnienieneieniennns (76,836) (68,725) (51,096)
Net realized (gains) losses on investments .............coeevevveereeenennn (12,724) 28,469 70,289
Loss (gain) on extinguishment of debt and capital securities......... - 332 (11,456)
Net change in trading account SECUrities.......coovvvmreernernreeeennens (5,821) 5,170 30,085
Net change in federal income tax liability .........cccooevvveeiennrcnrenenn, 20,720 25,955 12,846
OHET .ot ertre st et sbe e b e s e e st ss e esaesseseensnees 16,110 28.162 6.772
Net cash provided by operating activities..........c.coevivvnneniiinens 237.495 208,543 228.672
Investing activities:
Purchases of investments and loans made...........cccooveeeceieeeinveennnen. (1,845,331) (1,137,062) (967,272)
Sales of investments and receipts from repayment of loans............... 1,372,088 753,801 884,993
Maturities of INVESIMENTS......coveievveeeeire ettt e e v e eesenes 147,428 183,050 87,077
Net change in short-term INVEStMENts ...........ceceeeveererieencenernnnceneens 90,373  (111,926) (49,062)
Business acqUISITIONS ........ccocvevriiriiiieeneentce s - - (2,613)
Change in deposit in separate account ............cccoveeen. rereriere s eranees (3.128) 202 (184)
Net cash used by investing activities..........oeceverccerenrrinccncenenn (238,570) (311,935) (47.061)
Financing activities:
Deposits to policyholder accounts ..........c.oeeerrieerenrenreneinnnnrcnene 106,986 140,336 94,922
Withdrawals from policyholder accounts..........oecvevenicrennninneeen (88,081) (56,104) (62,733)
Proceeds from issuance of 2033 Senior NoteS......cccovevevveevveicreennnin. 139,222 - -
Borrowings under revolving credit facilities...........ccoovvevcerencncrennnnn 34,000 49,000 102,000
Principal payments under revolving credit facilities...........c.cocvonencee. (71,000) (37,000) (227,000)
Repayments or repurchase of other corporate debt..........c....oceeeee. (81,150) (19,874) (17,284)
Proceeds from issuance of 2003 Capital Securities .........c.ccooveereeeennn. 19,399 - -
Repurchase of Capital Securities .........cc.cocccvviiiniinnnncec - - (51,329)
Change in liability for Federal Home Loan Bank advances............... (57,000) 45,000 13,500
Change in liability for securities sold under agreements
10 TEPUICHASE. ... eirecriieieee ettt e s - - (29,008)
Other financing activities .....coceoveeieeieeceinnerree e (10.237) (1.979) (5.341)
Net cash (used) provided by financing activities..........c...cce.e.... (7.861) 119379 (182,273)
(Decrease) increase in Cash .........coeovvveiricneenninineec e (8,936) 15,987 (662)
Cash at beginning of Year.........ccccvcevvecivirvinnienre e 27.669 11,682 12,344
Cash at end Of Year .......ccovvviveeiieeirrcese e $ 18733 $§ 27669 § 11,682

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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DELPHI FINANCIAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2003

Note A — Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Principles of Consolidation. The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Delphi Financial Group, Inc.
(“DFG”) and all of its wholly-owned subsidiaries, including, among others, Reliance Standard Life Insurance Company
(“RSLIC”), Safety National Casualty Corporation (“SNCC”), First Reliance Standard Life Insurance Company
(“FRSLIC”), Reliance Standard Life Insurance Company of Texas (“RSLIC-Texas”), Safety First Insurance Company
(“SFIC”), SIG Holdings, Inc. (“SIG”) and Matrix Absence Management, Inc. (“Matrix”). The term “Company” shall
refer herein collectively to DFG and its subsidiaries, unless the context indicates otherwise. All significant intercompany
accounts and transactions have been eliminated. Certain reclassifications have been made in the 2002 and 2001
consolidated financial statements to conform with the 2003 presentation. As of December 31, 2003, Mr. Robert
Rosenkranz, Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer of DFG, by means of beneficial ownership of
the corporate general partner of Rosenkranz & Company and direct or beneficial ownership, had the power to vote all of
the outstanding shares of Class B Common Stock, which represents 49.9% of the voting power of the Company’s common
stock.

Nature of Operations. The Company manages all aspects of employee absence to enhance the productivity of its clients
and provides the related insurance coverages: short-term and long-term disability, primary and excess workers’
compensation, group life and travel accident. The Company’s asset accumulation business emphasizes fixed annuity
products. The Company offers its products and services in all fifty states and the District of Columbia. The Company’s
two reportable segments are group employee benefit products and asset accumulation products. The Company’s
reportable segments are strategic operating divisions that offer distinct types of products with different marketing
strategies. The Company evaluates the performance of its segments on the basis of net income excluding realized
investment gains and losses and gains and losses on extinguishment of debt and capital securities and before interest and
income tax expense. The accounting policies of the Company’s segments are the same as those used in the consolidated
financial statements.

Use of Estimates. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Investments. Fixed maturity securities available for sale are carried at fair value with unrealized appreciation and
depreciation included as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income or loss, net of the related income tax
expense or benefit and the related adjustment to cost of business acquired. Short-term investments are carried at fair
value. Other investments consist primarily of equity securities, balances with independent investment managers, trading
account securities, mortgage loans, and amounts receivable from investment sales. Equity securities are carried at fair
value with unrealized appreciation and depreciation included as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income
or loss, net of the related income tax expense or benefit. Balances with independent investment managers principally
represent investments in limited partnerships and are reflected on the equity method, with earnings included in net
investment income. Trading account securities consist primarily of equity securities and are carried at fair value with
unrealized appreciation and depreciation included in net investment income. Dividend income and realized gains and
losses from trading account securities are also included in net investment income. Mortgage loans are carried at unpaid
principal balances, including any unamortized premium or discount. Net realized investment gains and losses on
investment sales are determined under the specific identification method and are included in income. Declines in the fair
value of investments which are considered to be other than temporary are reported as realized losses. The Company
evaluates, among other things, the financial position and prospects of the issuer, conditions in the issuer’s industry and
geographic area, liquidity of the investment, changes in the amount or timing of expected future cash flows from the
investment, and recent downgrades of the issuer by a rating agency to determine if and when a decline in the fair value of
an investment below amortized cost is other than temporary. The length of time and extent to which the fair value of the
investment is lower than amortized cost and the Company’s ability and intent to retain the investment to allow for any
anticipated recovery in the investment’s fair value are also considered.
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DELPHI FINANCIAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (Continued)
December 31, 2003

Note A — Summmary of Significant Accounting Policies — (Continued)

Cost of Business Acquired. Costs relating to the acquisition of new insurance business, such as commissions, certain costs
of policy issuance and underwriting and certain sales office expenses, are deferred when incurred. For certain annuity
products, these costs are amortized. over the anticipated lives of the policies in relation to the present value of estimated
gross profits from such policies’ surrender charges and mortality, investment and expense margins. Deferred acquisition
costs for life, disability and accident products are amortized over the anticipated premium-paying period of the related
policies in proportion to the ratio of the present value of annual expected premium income to the present value of the total
expected premium income. Deferred acquisition costs for casualty insurance products are amortized over the period in
which the related premium is earned. The present value of estimated future profits (“PVFP”),-which was recorded in
connection with the acquisition of RSLIC and FRSLIC in 1987, is included in cost of business acquired. The PVFP
related to annuities is subject to accrual of interest on the unamortized balance at the credited rate and amortization is a
constant percentage of the present value of estimated future gross profits on the business. Amortization of the PVFP for
group life and disability insurance is at the discount rate established at the time of the acquisition. The unamortized
balance of cost of business acquired related to certain asset accumulation products is also adjusted for the impact on
estimated future gross profits as if net unrealized appreciation and depreciation on available for sale securities had been
realized at the balance sheet date. The impact of this adjustment, net of the related income tax expense or benefit, is
included in net unrealized appreciation and depreciation as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income or
loss.

Receivables from Reinsurers. Receivables from reinsurers for future policy benefits, unpaid claims and claim expenses
and policyholder account balances are estimated in a manner consistent with the related liabilities associated with the
reinsured policies.

Goodwill. Since January 1, 2002, goodwill and intangible assets deemed to have indefinite lives are no longer amortized
over a pre-determined period, but are required to be periodically reviewed for impairment. Other intangible assets with
finite lives continue to be amortized over their useful lives.  Any impairment losses will be reflected within operating
results in the income statement. The impairment test is performed annually unless events suggest an impairment may
have occurred in the interim. Based on these tests, the Company determined that no impairment of goodwill had occurred
during the year ended December 31, 2003. See Note I to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Separate Account. The separate account assets and liabilities represent funds invested in a separately administered
variable life insurance product for which the policyholder, rather than the Company, bears the investment risk. The excess
of separate account assets over the related liabilities represents the Company’s deposit in the separate account, which is
maintained to support the operation of the separate account program. The Company receives a proportionate share of the
income or loss of the assets of the separate account; income is generally reinvested in the separate account.

Future Policy Benefits. The liabilities for future policy benefits for traditional nonparticipating business, excluding
annuity business, have been computed using a net level method. Mortality, morbidity and other assumptions are based
either on the Company’s past experience or various actuarial tables, modified as necessary for possible variations.
Changes in these assumptions could result in changes in these liabilities.

Unpaid Claims and Claim Expenses. The liability for unpaid claims and claim expenses includes amounts determined on
an individual basis for reported losses and estimates of incurred but not reported losses developed on the basis of past
experience. The methods of making these estimates and establishing the resulting reserves are continually reviewed and
updated, with any resulting adjustments reflected in earnings currently. At December 31, 2003, disability and excess
workers’ compensation reserves with a carrying value of $645.6 million have been discounted at a weighted average rate
of 5.4%, with the rates ranging from 3.7% to 7.5%.
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Policyholder Account Balances. Policyholder account balances are comprised of the Company’s reserves for interest-
sensitive insurance products, including annuities. Reserves for annuity products are equal to the policyholders’ aggregate
accumulated value.

Income Taxes. The Company files a life/non-life consolidated federal tax return, pursuant to an election made with the
2001 tax return. RSLIC-Texas and RSLIC are taxed as life insurance companies and comprise the life subgroup. The
non-life subgroup includes DFG, SNCC, FRSLIC, SFIC and the non-insurance subsidiaries of the Company. The
Company computes a balance sheet amount for deferred income taxes, which is included in other assets or other liabilities,
at the rates expected to be in effect when the underlying differences will be reported in the Company’s income tax returns.

Premium Recognition. The Company’s group insurance products consist primarily of short-duration contracts, and,
accordingly, premiums for these products are reported as earned over the contract period. Deposits for asset accumulation
products are recorded as liabilities rather than as premiums, since these products generally do not involve mortality or
morbidity risk.

(Loss) gain on extinguishment of debt and capital securities. As of January 1, 2003, the Company adopted Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 145, “Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and 62, Amendment of
FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections.” SFAS No. 145 rescinded SFAS No. 4, which required all gains or
losses from extinguishment of debt to be aggregated and classified as an extraordinary item, net of the related income tax
effect. Under SFAS No. 145, gains or losses from extinguishment of debt are classified as income or loss from operations
in the income statement. Prior year financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the requirements of SFAS
No. 145. In addition, in computing diluted earnings per share for 2001, equivalent shares attributable to in-the-money
stock options, which totaled 0.8 million, were considered in the calculation of per share amounts since the reclassification
of the gain on extinguishment of debt resulted in income from continuing operations.

Stock Options. Prior to the second quarter of 2003, the Company accounted for stock options according to Accounting
Principles Board Opinion (“APB”) No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and related interpretations. The
Company’s stock option plans are more fully described in Note O. All options granted prior to 2003 had an intrinsic value
of zero on the date of grant under APB No. 25, and, therefore, no stock-based employee compensation expense was
recognized in the Company’s financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2002 and 200}. During the second
quarter of 2003, the Company adopted, effective January 1, 2003, the fair value recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123,
“Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation.” Under the prospective method provisions of SFAS No. 148, “Accounting
for Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and Disclosure,” the recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123 will be applied
to all option awards granted, modified, or settled after January 1, 2003. The expense related to stock-based compensation
included in the determination of the Company’s net income for 2003 is less than if these provisions had been applied to all
awards granted since the original January 1, 1995 effective date of SFAS No. 123. The following table illustrates the
effect on net income and earnings per share as if the Company had begun to apply the fair value recognition provisions of
SFAS No. 123 to stock-based employee compensation as of its original effective date:
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Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
(dollars in thousands, except per share data)
Net income, as reported...........ooevevriiernicrieinnnne e $ 98916 § 60,652 § 6,505
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense included
in reported net income, net of related tax effects ........ccocvevenennn. 1,218 - -

Deduct: Stock-based employee compensation expense
determined under fair value based method for all awards,

net of related tax effectS........ccoeevevivervninecncrn s (2,229) (2.462) (2.539)
Pro forma net iNCOMmE ........ccovvvvevriceveeneneenc e oo ree e $ 97,905 $ 58190 § 3966
Earnings per share:

Basic, @S TEPOMEd.......c.covevierererirererenierersserscsinires e vessssssesens b 3.17 $ 1.95 $ 0.21

Basic, pro forma ..........cccoeerncrnecenccer e 3.14 1.87 0.13

Diluted, as reported.........oooiiiiieeercce e $ 3.09 £ 1.90 $ 0.21

Diluted, pro forma .......cccooeceeinnnrnccncci s 3.03 1.81 0.12

The weighted average per share fair value used to calculate compensation expense for 2003 and pro forma compensation
expense for 2002 and 2001 was $7.85, $8.81 and $7.91, respectively. These fair values were estimated at the grant date
using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following assumptions: risk-free interest rates ranging from 2.3%
to 5.0%, volatility factors of the expected market price of the Company’s common stock ranging from 28% to 33%,
expected lives of the options of five years and dividend yields ranging from 0.6% to 0.8%.

Variable Interest Entities. As of July 1, 2003, the Company adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation
(“FIN”) No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities,” which provides new criteria for determining whether
consolidation accounting is required for a variable interest entity (“VIE”). FIN 46 under certain circumstances requires
consolidation of a VIE’s assets, liabilities and resuits of operations, with a minority interest recorded for the ownership
share applicable to other investors. Where consolidation is required, additional disclosures may be required. The
adoption of FIN 46 did not have a material effect on the financial position or results of operations of the Company.

Statements of Cash Flows. The Company uses short-term, highly liquid debt instruments purchased with maturities of
three months or less as part of its investment management program and, as such, classifies these investments under the
caption “short-term investments” in its Consolidated Balance Sheets and Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

In July 2003, the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants issued Statement of Position (“SOP”) No. 03-1,
“Accounting and Reporting by Insurance Enterprises for Certain Nontraditional Long-Duration Contracts and for Separate
Accounts.” SOP No. 03-1 is required to be adopted for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2003 and, therefore, the
Company adopted the new requirements effective January 1, 2004. Prior to SOP No. 03-1, the Company has been
required to report the aggregate of all separate account assets as a single caption on its balance sheet, which has been titled
“Assets held in separate account.” SOP 03-1 requires that the Company allocate its proportionate interest in the separate
account’s assets to the corresponding captions in the Company’s balance sheet. At December 31, 2003, the Company’s
proportionate interest in the separate account’s assets was $13.2 million. SOP No. 03-1 also provides specific guidance
for accounting for certain nontraditional long-duration insurance contracts. Nontraditional long-duration insurance
contracts are annuity and life products which combine fixed and variable features and that are not covered by specific
accounting guidance in SFAS No. 60, “Accounting and Reporting by Insurance Enterprises,” or SFAS No. 97,
*Accounting and Reporting by Insurance Enterprises for Certain Long-Duration Contracts and for Realized Gains and
Losses from the Sale of Investments.” The Company offers nontraditional long-duration insurance contracts such as
annuity products with a market value adjustment feature and first year bonus interest rates. The adoption of SOP No. 03-1
will not have a material effect on the financial position or results of operations of the Company.
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In December 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board revised FIN 46. The revised interpretation changed the
conceptual framework for determining if an entity holds a controlling interest in a VIE and will require the Company to
deconsolidate its subsidiaries that hold junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures of the Company. See Note K to
the Consolidated Financial Statements. Therefore, the Company will present in its consolidated financial statements the
junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures as a liability and its interest in the subsidiaries that hold these
debentures as a component of other assets. The Company is required to adopt the provisions of the revised FIN 46 that
are applicable to the Company at the end of the first reporting period that ends after March 15, 2004. The adoption of the
revised FIN 46 will not have a material effect on the financial position, results of operations or compliance with the debt
covenants of the Company.

Note B ~ Acquisitions
The consideration for the 1998 acquisition of Matrix included contingent consideration of up to $5.2 million in cash if
Matrix’s earmnings met specified targets subsequent to the acquisition. Matrix met all of the specified targets, and

accordingly, the Company paid the remaining $2.6 million of contingent consideration during 2001, which was included
in goodwill. See Note I to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Note C — Investments

The amortized cost and fair value of investments in fixed maturity securities available for sale are as follows:

December 31, 2003
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
(dollars in thousands)
Mortgage-backed securities ...........cccecvcvevermrcrernnne. $ 628,987 $ 16,860 $ (2,547) $ 643,300
Corporate SECUTILIES ....oveveerrererereriereerecrre i 1,269,537 81,929 (9,330) 1,342,136
U.S. Treasury and other U.S. Government
guaranteed SECUTIties ........cvevveevereeereerenercee s 380,139 5,318 (40) 385,417
Obligations of U.S. states, municipalities and
political subdivisions.........ceceeeeeverivenccc e, 472,218 21.760 (2.786) 491,192
Total fixed maturity securities ............c......... $ 2,750,881 § 125867 § (14.703) §$ 2.862.045
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December 31, 2002
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
(dollars in thousands)
Mortgage-backed SeCurities.........cocovveueevencrcvcnenenene $ 596,861 § 35659 $ (4,187) § 628,333
Corporate SECUIItIES .....ooveruerveererirrierceeeneerserennsenens 1,141,540 38,267 (27,018) 1,152,789
U.S. Treasury and other U.S. Government
guaranteed SECUTtIes ....oovvveevveerveeeieerirreerienens 266,333 10,143 (493) 275,983
Obligations of U.S. states, municipalities and
political subdiviSions.........ccoveverervrevesereennrerennnen 424.921 17,057 (3.454) 438.524
Total fixed maturity securities ...........c....c.c.. $2429655 § 101,126 § (35,152) $ 2495629

The amortized cost and fair value of fixed maturity securities available for sale at December 31, 2003, by contractual
maturity are shown below. Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because issuers may have the right
to call or prepay obligations, with or without prepayment penalties.

Amortized Fair

Cost Value

(dollars in thousands)
Mortgage-backed SECUTIIES .......c.covreeerueeireeiieiii e $ 628987 § 643,300

Other securities:
LeSS than OIE YEAT ....ccvvvreeeieeieeeieetietceer e e ee e e e e et sra e eve e sre s e easaenne 54,544 55,296
Greater than 1, UP t0 5 YEAIS.....coviiieririciiiiite e 695,609 730,584
Greater than 5, UP t0 10 YEATS......coccoceveiriinrereciniesct e s s e e sereaenras 712,385 754,073
Greater than 10 YEarS.........ovvecieeeee et eer e s e sresrretaerae e s eraesneenes 659,356 678.792
TOTAL....octieece ettt e et e e b et bbb $2.750,881 $ 2,862,045
Net investment income was attributable to the following:
Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001

(doliars in thousands)
Gross investment income:

Fixed maturity SECUIILIES. ....covvereeeeiererrrereeieteece et eees e sieeneen $ 169,457 $ 167,109 $ 158,065
OUNET ...ttt ettt ea et s e b et b eren 46.019 11,130 15311
215,476 178,239 173,376

Less: INVeStment €XPENSES .......covevericerererreererierinieeeierecree oo eeens 29,110 16,203 15.867

$ 186366 § 162,036 § 157,509

Net realized investment gains (losses) arose from the following:

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
(dollars in thousands)
Fixed maturity SECUTItIES .......ccoovvviriecrerceie et $ 11,857 $ (15,668) $ (67,647)
EQUItY SECUTHES. ...oveveeeeeereietecreecrerin e ere e et 867 (12,024) (843)
Other INVESMENLS ...c.vvvveeeeirieicieitiecrreeeeeeeesee s stesstessereeeseesnnesssteests - 7D (1,799)

$ 12724 $ (28469) $ (70,289)
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Proceeds from sales of fixed maturity securities during 2003, 2002 and 2001 were $853.1 million, $518.6 million and
$551.4 million, respectively. Gross gains of $29.1 million, $32.0 million and $17.3 million and gross losses of $3.4
million, $4.3 million and $6.7 million, respectively, were realized on those sales. In 2003, 2002, and 2001, the net gains
(losses) realized on fixed maturity securities also include a provision for the other than temporary decline in the value of
certain securities of $13.0 million, $43.3 million and $78.3 million, respectively. In 2003, 2002 and 2001, losses on
equity securities include a provision for the other than temporary decline in the value of certain securities of $0, $10.8
million and $1.0 miltion, respectively.

The following table shows the gross unrealized losses and fair value of fixed maturity securities available for sale,
aggregated by investment category and length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss
position, at December 31, 2003.

Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total
Gross Gross Gross
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses

Mortgage-backed securities.........cocoerrene $196,573 $§ (2,443) § 6,183 $ (104)  $202,756 $§ (2,547)
Corporate securities 88,950 (1,969) 79,445 (7,361) 168,395 (9,330)
U.S. Treasury & other U.S. Government

guaranteed SeCUITties.......ccecvrrrrervenene 242,848 40) - - 242,848 (40)
Obligations of U.S. states, municipalities

& political subdiviSions ...........ccceeeeene 17.264 (259) 11.930 (2.527) 29.194 (2.786)

Total fixed maturity securities.......... $545635 $§ (4711) $97.558 8 (9.992) $643,193 § (14,703)

The Company regularly evaluates its investment portfolio for factors that may indicate that a decline in the fair value of an
investment is other than temporary. The gross unrealized losses in the table above are attributable to over two hundred
fixed maturity security positions with no unrealized loss attributable to any one security exceeding $1.6 million.
Approximately 52% of the aggregate gross unrealized losses relate to fixed maturity security positions as to which such
losses represent 10% or less of the amortized cost for the applicable security. Unrealized losses attributable to investment
grade fixed maturity securities as determined by nationally recognized statistical rating organizations comprised 69% of
the aggregate gross unrealized losses. Unrealized losses attributable to non-investment grade fixed maturity securities
comprised 31% of the aggregate gross unrealized losses. For non-investment grade fixed maturity securities, management
evaluated the financial position and prospects of the issuers, conditions in the issuers’ industries and geographic areas, and
liquidity of the investments. Based on an evaluation of these factors and the other factors described in Note A to the
Consolidated Financial Statements and the Company’s ability and intent to retain the investments to allow for any
anticipated recovery in the investments’ fair value, management believes that the unrealized losses in the table above are

temporary.

The Company, at times, enters into futures and option contracts and interest rate swap agreements in connection with its
investment strategy in order to profit from short-term differences in price. These positions are carried at fair value with
gains and losses included in income. The Company recognized net investment losses of $3.7 million in 2003 related to
these instruments. The Company had no outstanding futures and option contracts and interest rate swap agreements
related to its investment strategy at December 31, 2003. The Company, at times, may also invest in non-dollar
denominated fixed maturity securities that expose it to fluctuations in foreign currency rates, and, therefore, may hedge
such exposure by using currency forward contracts. The Company had no material outstanding currency forward contracts
at December 31, 2003,
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The change in unrealized appreciation and depreciation on investments, primarily fixed maturity securities, is included as
a component of accumulated other comprehensive income. See Note M to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
Unrealized (losses) gains on trading securities included in net investment income totaled $(0.7) million, $1.0 million and
$4.8 million for 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Bonds and short-term investments with amortized costs of $63.1 million and $57.1 million at December 31, 2003 and
2002, respectively, are on deposit with various states’ insurance departments in compliance with statutory requirements.
Additionally, certain assets of the Company are restricted under the terms of annuity reinsurance agreements. These
agreements provide for the distribution of assets to the reinsured companies covered under the agreements prior to any
general distribution to policyholders in the event of the Company’s insolvency or bankruptcy. The amount of assets
restricted for this purpose was $68.1 million and $68.8 million at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

At December 31, 2003 and 2002, approximately 42% of the Company’s total invested assets were comprised of corporate
fixed maturity securities, which are diversified across economic sectors and industry classes. Mortgage-backed securities
comprised 20% and 22% of the Company’s total invested assets at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The
Company’s mortgage-backed securities are diversified with respect to size and geographic distribution of the underlying
mortgage loans. The Company also invests in certain non-investment grade securities as determined by nationally
recognized statistical rating organizations. Non-investment grade securities included in fixed maturity securities had fair
values of $200.5 million and $172.3 million at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Non-investment grade
securities constituted 6.3% and 6.1% of total invested assets at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Summarized aggregate unaudited financial information for the entities in which the balances with independent investment
managers have been invested is shown below: ' -

December 31,

2003 2002
(dollars in thousands)
AASSEES oovvetieiitetee et ettt et e sr e et e r e bbb b e R etk e et te $ 7,164,143 $ 2925280
LABDILIES .vvivecverrietine sttt e e et e e e s $ 756,054 $ 410,060
Partners’ capital.......ccoiireiii s 6.408,089 2,515,220
Total liabilities and partners’ capital.........cccceoceeierieiinienrene e, $ 7,164,143 $ 2925280
NELINCOME ......oviieieiteieiiieer ettt e e st sbe et s e et sesresseseseeee e seebasseseenssbeseessarence $ 1525819 $ 180,722

The fair value of the Company’s investment in the securities of any one issuer or securities backed by a single poo} of
assets, excluding U.S. Government obligations, whose value represented 10% or more of shareholders’ equity at
December 31, 2003 was as follows: Bankers Trust Corporation Secured Portfolio Notes, Series 1998-1 - $117.6 million.
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The following table provides a reconciliation of the beginning and ending disability, accident and casualty future policy

benefits and unpaid claims and claim expenses:
Year Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
(dollars in thousands)

Balance at beginning of year, net of reinsurance. ...........c.cccecercrvcrereennn. $ 862,355 § 801,225 $ 657,565
Add provisions for claims and claim expenses incurred, net
of reinsurance, occurring during:

CUITENE YEAT ..vevvvvveerereereieirieereeetestesreese e aereesaeesseessenssesnsesorarnnesnses 305,463 280,657 243,306

PriOr YEAIS.....cieiirieieetire ettt ee s ene e st e sa s e 6,401 1,331 6,538
Incurred claims and claim expenses during the current

year, net Of FEINSUTANCE .....c.ocvvveereeeriine e 311.864 281,988 249,844

Deduct claims and claim expenses paid, net of reinsurance,
occurring during:

CUITEINE YEAT .....eveeeirenreeeeieeterseesrersaereteseesaraestsesreesanesseeneessnssssessees 69,351 71,545 56,625
PrIOE YEAIS.....ooiiveiiriieicrren et 155.848 149.313 49,559
225,199 220.858 106,184
Balance at end of year, net of reinsurance..........ccocoeecerenienccenininceen. 949,020 862,355 801,225
Reinsurance receivables at end of year. .......cocovvvvneeecnecencneeniieecenne 252,568 238.489 221.448
Balance at end of year, gross of reinsurance..........cccocvecevrerenennenn $1,201.588  $£1,100,844  §$1,022,673
Balance Sheets:
Future policy benefits:
Disability and accident.........o..ccceveiiviereeeniniiceceeseie s $ 439,158 $ 390,717
Unpaid claims and claim expenses:
Disability and accident.........ccooerrerirevnirnrrcecereer e 189,740 175,271
L0 111 -1 U UV 572,690 534.856

$1,201,588  $1,100,844

The provision for claims and claim expenses in 2001 includes a charge of $44.3 million for reserve strengthening
primarily related to an unusually high number of large losses in the Company’s excess workers’ compensation business.
Included in this charge is an addition to excess workers’ compensation case reserves of $9.0 million and losses incurred
but not reported of $24.0 million. This charge also includes reported workers’ compensation losses of $6.3 million and a
$5.0 million addition to long-term disability incurred but not reported reserves attributable to the terrorist attacks on the
World Trade Center.

In 2003 and 2002, the change in the provision for claims and claim expenses incurred in prior years reflects the accretion
of discounted reserves offset by favorable claims development. In 2001, the change in the provision for claims and claim
expenses incurred in prior years reflects the accretion of discounted reserves and unfavorable claims development. The
Company’s insurance policies do not provide for the retrospective adjustment of premiums based on claim experience.
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In December 2002, the Company entered into a $150.0 million revolving credit facility with a group of lenders comprised
of major banking institutions (the “Credit Agreement”), which replaced the existing $140.0 million revolving credit
facilities scheduled to expire in April 2003. The Company had outstanding borrowings of $0 and $37.0 million under the
Credit Agreement at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The borrowings under the Credit Agreement accrue
interest at floating rates, which are indexed to various market interest indices, and non-use fees are charged on unused
portions of the commitments. The final maturity of the Credit Agreement is December 16, 2006. As a result of the May
2003 issuance of the $143.8 million of 8.00% Senior Notes due 2033 (the “2033 Senior Notes™), under the terms of the
Company’s Credit Agreement, the maximum amount of borrowings available to the Company thereunder was reduced
from $150.0 million to $100.0 million and the facility was converted to an unsecured facility, with collateral being
released to the Company. The debt is subject to certain restrictions and financial covenants considered ordinary for this
type of credit agreement. They include, among others, the maintenance of certain financial ratios, minimum statutory
surplus and risk-based capital requirements for RSLIC and SNCC, and certain investment, indebtedness, dividend and
stock repurchase limitations. As of December 31, 2003, the Company was in compliance in all material respects with the
restrictions and covenants in the Credit Agreement.

- On May 20, 2003, the Company issued $143.8 million of the 2033 Senior Notes in a public offering. The proceeds from
the 2033 Senior Notes were used to repay the outstanding borrowings under the Company’s Credit Agreement and to
repay in full the principal amount of $66.5 million of existing senior notes at their maturity on October 1, 2003. The 2033
Senior Notes, which were issued at par value, will mature on May 15, 2033 and are redeemable at par at the option of the
Company, in whole or in part, at any time on or after May 15, 2008. The 2033 Senior Notes are not redeemable at the
option of any holder of the notes prior to maturity nor are they entitled to any sinking fund redemptions. Interest on the
2033 Senior Notes is payable quarterly on February 15, May 15, August 15 and November 15 of each year. The 2033
Senior Notes are senior unsecured obligations of the Company and, as such, are effectively subordinated to all claims of
secured creditors of the Company and its subsidiaries and to claims of unsecured creditors of the Company’s subsidiaries,
including the insurance subsidiaries’ obligations to policyholders. The 2033 Senior Notes were issued in denominations
of $25 and multiples of $25 and are listed on the New York Stock Exchange. As of December 31, 2003, the Company
was in compliance in all material respects with the terms of the related indenture.

On October 1, 2003, the Company repaid in full the principal amount of $66.5 million of the existing 8.00% senior notes
at their maturity (the “Matured Senior Notes”). At various times during the second quarter of 2002, the Company
repurchased $10.5 million aggregate principal amount of the Matured Senior Notes and recognized a loss on
extinguishment of debt of $0.3 million, in connection with these repurchases. In June 2001, the Company repurchased
$8.0 million principal amount of the Matured Senior Notes and recognized a loss on extinguishment of debt of $0.2
million in cornection with this repurchase.

To mitigate the risk of interest rates rising before the issuance of the 2033 Senior Notes could be completed, the Company
entered into a treasury rate lock agreement in September 2002, with a notional amount of $150.0 million, and an
anticipated debt term of 10 years. The Company paid $13.8 million upon the issuance of the 2033 Senior Notes in May
2003 to settle the treasury rate lock agreement. This transaction was accounted for as a cash flow hedge under the
provisions of SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.” Accordingly, $12.1
million of the loss on the treasury rate lock agreement was recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income and is
being amortized into interest expense ratably over 10 years. The Company will amortize $1.2 million of such $12.1
million loss into interest expense over the next twelve months. The remaining $1.7 million of loss on the treasury rate
lock agreement was deemed ineffective and, therefore, was recognized as a reduction of net investment income during the
second quarter of 2003. At December 31, 2003, the net loss on the treasury rate lock agreement included in accumulated
other comprehensive income was $7.4 million, net of an income tax benefit of $4.0 million. At December 31, 2002, the
net unrealized loss on the treasury rate lock agreement included in accumulated other comprehensive income was $3.3
million, net of an income tax benefit of $1.8 million.

In May 2003, the Company made the final $9.0 million principal payment on the $45.0 million of SIG’s 8.5% senior
secured notes (the “SIG Senior Notes™), which the Company had assumed in 1996.
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Note E — Corporate Debt— (Continued)

The Company also repaid in full the $5.7 million principal amount due on the 8.00% subordinated notes in June 2003 (the
“Subordinated Notes”), which the Company had issued in conjunction with the acquisition of Matrix.

Interest paid by the Company on its corporate debt totaled $12.9 million, $8.9 million and $12.2 million during 2003,
2002 and 2001, respectively.

Note F — Advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank

The Company, through its insurance subsidiaries, maintains a program in which various investments are financed using
advances from the Federal Home Loan Banks of Pittsburgh, Dallas and Des Moines (collectively, the “FHLB”). At
December 31, 2003 and 2002, advances from the FHLB, including accrued interest, totaled $150.8 million and $208.0
million, respectively. Interest expense on the advances is included as an offset to investment income on the financed
securities. The average interest rate on the outstanding advances was 6.6% and 5.9% at December 31, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. The advances of $150.0 million, which were obtained at a fixed rate, have a weighted average term of 6.4
years at December 31, 2003. These advances are collateralized by fixed maturity securities with a fair value of $161.7
million.

Note G —~ Income Taxes

Income tax expense (benefit) is reconciled to the amount computed by applying the statutory federal income tax rate to
income before income tax expense (benefit):

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
(dollars in thousands)
Federal income tax expense at Statutory rate ..........oceeeevervecrereeenians $ 50225 $ 30,199 $ 1,894
Tax-exempt income and dividends received deduction ..................... (6,324) (6,206) (5,104)
OHREE ..ottt et e resn e s et st sarere st are et e eane 695 1,638 2,112

S 44596 3 25631 S (109

All of the Company’s current and deferred income tax expense (benefit) is due to federal income taxes as opposed to state
income taxes.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined based on the difference between the book basis and tax basis of assets
and liabilities using tax rates in effect for the year in which the differences are expected to reverse. The components of the
net deferred tax liability are as follows:

December 31,
2003 2002
(dollars in thousands)
Cost Of BUSINESS ACQUITEd ......eceivvreietieeieeeriececre et et eet e e steebesseet s s eraeetesaesenssensnens $ 62,241 $ 54,777
Future policy benefits and unpaid claims and claim eXpenses ............cccccvvvrrrsrrereennns 41,711 35,860
INVESHITIEIIES ....eeeei ittt ettt e e s bee e e r e e s ertr e e e et neeanbbesesbeaeesssaesnsbaessessnnens 25,708 13,110
OBHET ..ottt ettt et e et ettt et ss e e ebe st etesaeseetaebe st aae s et ebessessabe st ssaabeas et nabesesrsanenan 10,116 9,302
Gross deferred tax Habilities ......cc.oceeoeivrceiinicn e e e 139.776 113,049
Future policy benefits and unpaid claims and claim eXpenses ...........ccoveverrereneereeseneenne (9,551 (8,303)
Other Habilties.......occeii ettt er e et a et e sba st e aresbee e e ae (6,570) (6,570)
Cost of business acquired and Other .........c..coceviiririiniinee e (12,824) (9,924)
Net operating 10ss carryforwards .........ccoccocvirrmiiiicmniicrinrieeie e srvevceearoesesirisneee (13,736) (11,261)
Minimum tax credit CArTyIOrWArdS.........ccccovvereiniieceirteierere et sre s se e saes seene - (580)
Gro5S AefeITE tAX @SSEIS....vveueivireeriire e e aerietreessrteseesbes e seeeass s sasbesreesssteresssesaeasasasen (42.681) (36.638)
Net deferred tax Hability ......c..cooviiieiinicereireiseeere et s e annn § 97,095 $§ 76411
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Current tax expense (benefit), deferred tax expense (benefit), current tax liability (recoverable) and income taxes paid and
refunded are as follows:

As of or for the Year Ended
December 31,
2003 2002 2001
(dollars in thousands)
Current tax expense (benefit) .........ccccerverrevriererrrnrinieereneeeieesessveeeens $ 34544 § (5579 $ 20,690
Deferred tax expense (benefit) ........cccceeoevenniiiiiininiieccnreee s 10,052 31,210 (21,788)
Current tax liability (recoverable) .........occvivreevcnernnirrec i 817 (11,292) (6,286)
Income taxes Paid........c.ecevvevueriiinierenrenieere et e s 21,800 17,765 23,074
Income taX TETUNAS .......vevieeeeiieiie ettt s a e - 19,031 37,785

At December 31, 2003, DFG, SNCC and the other non-life insurance subsidiaries have net operating loss carryforwards of
$39.2 million, which will expire in 2021. Tax years through 1996 are closed to further assessment by the Internal
Revenue Service (“IRS”). The IRS has completed the fieldwork for its examination of the 1997 through 2002 tax years,
and the proposed adjustments have not had a material impact on the consolidated financial position, liquidity, or results of
operations of the Company. Management believes any future adjustments that may result from IRS examinations of tax
returns will not have a material impact on the consolidated financial position, liquidity, or results of operations of the
Company.

Note H — Present Value of Future Profits

A summary of the activity related to the PVFP asset, which is included in cost of business acquired on the consolidated
balance sheet, is shown below:

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
(dollars in thousands)

Balance at beginning of YEar..........coecceecrineiniiienenceicre e $ 11,198 $§ 13,693 § 15,703
Interest accrued........ccccoviririeieceeie e e 189 182 287
AMOTEIZALION ....veveveeecrerirererirrensee et sssssese et ttsernsnessbesesararssananens (2.300) (2.677) _(2.297)

Balance at end of Year.......coocoveveeiinniiicnieccreee e § 9087 § 11,198 § 13693

An estimate of the percentage of the December 31, 2003 PVFP balance to be amortized over each of the next five years is
as follows: 2004 -23.2%, 2005 —23.3%, 2006 —23.4%, 2007 — 17.5% and 2008 — 2.6%.

Note I — Goodwill

At January 1, 2002, unamortized goodwill of $60.9 million was attributable to the acquisition of SNCC, whose operations
are included in the group employee benefits segment, and $33.0 million was attributable to the acquisition of Matrix,
whose operations do not meet the quantitative threshold for reportable segments and, therefore, are reported in the “other”
segment.
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The following table provides a reconciliation of reported net income to adjusted net income and the related earnings per
share data for the year ended December 31, 2001 as if the provisions of SFAS No. 142 related to goodwill had been
adopted as of January 1, 2001 (dollars in thousands, except per share data):

2001
Net INCOME, 88 TEPOITEA.....cveoirrreerreirieiriete i eee st eestressaassesessesassssesesesansassssasessssassesessrsesassssaserssons $ 6,505
Add back: g00dWill AMOTHIZALION ......cc.coieriiiiriieiet e ettt ettt aestess e ree e saseseanresreeren 3.198
Adjusted NEL INCOTNE ......ceiiiiiiiiirieit it ettt e se et e s b e s e e sea st s e e besertaraees $§ 9703
Basic resulits per share of common stock:
Net iNCOME, BS TEPOITEd .veveieiiiiiieeerciteeree st ere e e et eressresesss s ae st et tetssssseseesesesbesessetennnsennas A 0.21
Add back: go0odWill AMOMIZALION. .........ceveriireirrrte et sa st st e s enetas s s seras 0.10
AdJusted NETINCOME .....o.eiiiiiiiiiiiii ittt sttt e e st e b e ssn s sae s e ssa e sanenreenans 3 0.31
Diluted results per share of common stock:
Net INCOME, @S TEPOTLEA .......vviireiireeeenreeereeenie et sese st rr st stssese s b ass s s e srnresas e sesansassasessseetssans $ 0.21
Add back: 200dWill AMOMHZALION . ........ccooverereeriererere e rtre st sserasssesssessserarsssssessassasessns 0.10
Adjusted NEL INCOME ......c.ciriiiiiiiiie it e re s e e sce e s s e re e $ 031

Note J — Fair Values of Financial Instruments

The fair values of the Company’s financial instruments are shown below. Because fair values for all balance sheet items
are not required to be disclosed by SFAS No. 107, “Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments,” the aggregate
fair value amounts presented below do not necessarily represent the underlying value of the Company.

December 31,

2003 2002
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Value Value Value Value
(dollars in thousands)
Assets:
Fixed maturity securities, available for sale............... $ 2,862,045 $ 2,862,045 § 2,495,629 $ 2,495,629
Short-term INVEStMENtS .........ccvovvecevviieererrenvesresesenns 114,752 114,752 204,890 204,890
Other INVESHMENLS ......cceevvevveeeerererereesreesreseeeseesseveseees 225,957 225,957 115,532 115,532
Assets held in separate account ..........coveveeveerienereenens 92,661 92,661 73,153 73,153
Liabilities:
Policyholder account balances.........c..c.cccvvricreeceenene 896,526 888,183 847,125 852,227
Corporate debt.......ccovrverrerirneitceere e 143,750 153,123 118,139 120,094
Advances from Federal Home Loan Bank................. 150,789 167,014 207,990 228,847
Liabilities related to separate account............c.coceuen. 79,413 79,413 63,033 63,033
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The fair values for fixed maturity securities and short-term investments have been obtained from broker-dealers, nationally
recognized statistical organizations and, in the case of certain structured notes, by reference to the fair values of the
underlying investments. Securities acquired through private placements in the Company’s fixed maturity portfolio that are
not actively traded in a liquid market and do not have other mechanisms for their sale totaled $19.7 million and $67.6
million at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The Company estimates the fair value of these securities primarily
by comparison to similar securities with quoted market prices. If quotes are not available on similar securities, the
Company estimates fair value based on recent purchases or sales of similar securities or other internally prepared
valuations. Key assumptions used in this process include the level of risk-free interest rates, risk premiums, and
performance ‘of underlying collateral, if applicable. All such investments are classified as available for sale. The
Company’s ability to liquidate these investments in a timely manner, if necessary, may be adversely impacted by the lack
of an actively traded market. Historicaily, the Company has not realized amounts on dispositions of non-marketable
investments materially in excess of the gain or loss amounts estimated by the Company under this valuation
methodology. The Company believes that its estimates reasonably reflect the fair values of these securities; however, had
there been an active market for these securities during the applicable reporting periods, the market prices may have been
materially different than the amounts reported. The carrying values for all other invested assets approximate fair values
based on the nature of the investments. The carrying values of separate account assets and liabilities are equal to fair
value. '

Policyholder account balances are net of reinsurance receivables and the carrying values have been decreased for related
acquisition costs of $34.7 million and $38.1 million at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Fair values for
policyholder account balances were determined by deducting an estimate of the future profits to be realized from the
business, discounted at a current interest rate, from the adjusted carrying values.

The Company believes the fair value of its variable rate long-term debt and variable rate advances from the FHLB are
equal to their carrying value. The Company pays variable rates of interest on this debt and these FHLB advances, which
reflect changed market conditions since the time the terms were negotiated. The fair values of the 2033 Senior Notes, the
Matured Senior Notes, the SIG Senior Notes and the Subordinated Notes are based on the expected cash flows discounted
to net present value. The fair values for fixed rate advances from the FHLB were calculated using discounted cash flow
analyses based on the interest rates for the advances at the balance sheet date.

Note K — Company-Obligated Mandatorily Redeemable Capital Securities of Subsidiaries

In 1997, Delphi Funding L.L.C. (“Delphi Funding”), a subsidiary of the Company, issued $100.0 million liquidation
amount of 9.31% Capital Securities, Series A (the “Capital Securities”) in a public offering. During 2001, the Company
repurchased $64.0 million liquidation amount of the Capital Securities in the open market. The Company recognized a
gain on extinguishment of the capital securities of $11.7 million, in connection with these repurchases. In connection with
the issuance of the Capital Securities and the related purchase by the Company of all of the common limited liability
company interests in Delphi Funding, the Company issued to Delphi Funding $103.1 million principal amount of 9.31%
junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures, Series A, due 2027 (the “Junior Debentures”). Interest on the Junior
Debentures is payable semiannually, but may, subject to certain exceptions, be deferred at any time or from time to time
for a period not exceeding five years with respect to each deferral period, in which event dividends on the Capital
Securities will also be deferred and the Company will not be permitted to pay cash dividends or make payments on any
junior indebtedness. No interest payments on the Junior Debentures have been deferred since their issuance. The
distribution and other payment dates on the Capital Securities correspond to the interest and other payment dates on the
Junior Debentures. The Junior Debentures are not redeemable prior to March 25, 2007, but the Company has the right to
dissolve Delphi Funding at any time and distribute the Junior Debentures to the holders of the Capital Securities. Pursuant
to the related transaction documents, the Company has, on a subordinated basis, guaranteed all payments due on the
Capital Securities.
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On May 15, 2003, Delphi Financial Statutory Trust I (the “Trust”), a recently—created Connecticut statutory trust and
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, issued $20.0 million liquidation amount of Floating Rate Capital Securities (the
“2003 Capital Securities”) in a private placement transaction. In connection with the issuance of the 2003 Capital
Securities and the related purchase by the Company of all of the common securities of the Trust (the “2003 Common
Securities” and, collectively with the 2003 Capital Securities, the “Trust Securities”), the Company issued $20.6 million
principal amount of floating rate junior subordinated deferrable interest debentures, due 2033 (the “2003 Junior
Debentures™).

Interest on the 2003 Junior Debentures is payable quarterly on February 15, May 15, August 15 and November 15 of each
year. The interest rate on the 2003 Junior Debentures resets quarterly to a rate equal to the London interbank offered
interest rate for three-month U.S. dollar deposits, plus 4.10% (not to exceed 12.50%). The interest rate was 5.41% for the
period from May 15, 2003 through August 15, 2003, 5.23% for the period from August 16, 2003 through November 15,
2003, and 5.28% for the period from November 16, 2003 through February 15, 2004. The distribution and other payment
dates on the Trust Securities correspond to the interest and other payment dates on the 2003 Junior Debentures. The 2003
Junior Debentures are unsecured and subordinated in right of payment to all of the Company’s existing and future senior
indebtedness. Beginning in May 2008, the Company will have the right to redeem the 2003 Junior Debentures, in whole
or in part, at a price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the debentures, plus accrued and unpaid interest to the date

of redemption.

Dividends paid by the Company’s subsidiaries on the outstanding Company-obligated mandatorily redeemable capital
securities totaled $3.9 million, $3.4 million and $7.2 million during 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Note L - Shareholders’ Equity and Restrictions

The holders of the Company’s Class A Common Stock are entitled to one vote per share, and the holders of the
Company’s Class B Common Stock are entitled to the number of votes per share equal to the lesser of (1) the number of
votes such that the aggregate of all outstanding shares of Class B Common Stock will be entitled to cast 49.9% of all votes
represented by the aggregate of all outstanding shares of Class A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock or (2) ten
votes per share. On November 21, 2003, the Company’s Board of Directors declared a 3-for-2 common stock split
effected in the form of a 50% stock dividend, which was distributed on December 22, 2003 to stockholders of record on
December 8, 2003. A total of 11,211,435 shares of common stock were issued in connection with the split, and the
aggregate amount of $0.1 million, equal to the par value of the common stock issued, was reclassified from additional
paid-in capital to common stock. The stated par value of each share remained at $0.01. Results per share and applicable
share amounts for prior periods have been restated to reflect the stock split.

In 2001, the Company’s Board of Directors approved the initiation of a quarterly cash dividend, payable on the
Company’s outstanding Class A and Class B Common Stock. The quarterly cash dividend was $0.05 per share during
2001 and 2002. In the fourth quarter of 2003, the Company’s Board of Directors approved an increase in the Company’s
quarterly cash dividend to $0.08 per share. During 2003, 2002 and 2001, the Company paid cash dividends on its capital
stock in the amounts of $7.4 million, $6.0 million and $5.7 million, respectively. Under the Credit Agreement, cash
dividends on, together with any repurchases or redemptions by the Company of, its capital stock, may not, during any
fiscal year, exceed 5% of the Company’s Consolidated Equity (as defined in the Credit Agreement) as of the end of the
preceding fiscal year, with unused amounts carrying over to subsequent fiscal years. The aggregate limitation for 2004 on
dividend payments and/or repurchases or redemptions of its capital stock by the Company will be equal to $90.2 million.
The Credit Agreement also permits additional repurchases by the Company of its capital stock in an aggregate amount of
up to $12.5 million over the term of the Credit Agreement.

The Company’s life insurance subsidiaries had consolidated statutory capital and surplus of $293.8 million and $257.2
million at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Consolidated statutory net income for the Company’s life insurance
subsidiaries was $24.8 million, $29.5 million and $2.2 million, in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The consolidated
statutory net income for the Company’s life insurance subsidiaries for 2003, 2002, and 2001 includes a charge of $16.0
million, $17.4 million and $39.9 million, respectively, for the other than temporary decline in the value of certain
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securities. The Company’s casualty insurance subsidiary had statutory capital and surplus of $252.2 million and $212.7
million at December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively, and statutory net income (loss) of $30.2 million, $15.2 million and
$(10.7) million in 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. The consolidated statutory net loss in 2001 for the Company’s
casualty insurance subsidiary includes a charge for reserve strengthening of $29.9 million, net of taxes, primarily related
to an unusually high number of large losses in the Company’s excess workers’ compensation business, including losses
attributable to the terrorist attacks on the World Trade Center. Payment of dividends by the Company’s insurance
subsidiaries is regulated by insurance laws and is permitted based on, among other things, the level of prior-year statutory
surplus and net income. The Company’s insurance subsidiaries will be permitted to make dividend payments totaling
$54.0 million during 2004 without prior regulatory approval.

Class A Common Stock from time to time on the open market. At December 31, 2003, 1.1 million shares remained
authorized for future purchases. During 2003, 2002 and 2001, the Company purchased 0.3 million, 0 and 0.1 million
shares, respectively, of its Class A Common Stock for a total cost of $7.5 million, $0 and $2.2 million, respectively, for a
volume weighted average price of $24.75 per share, $0 per share, and $21.03 per share, respectively.

The following table provides a reconciliation of beginning and ending shares:
Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
(shares in thousands)

Class A Common Stock:

Beginning balance ...........ccccvveiiiniieniiiiie 18,928 17,763 16,845
Issuance of stock, exercise of stock options and
conversion Of Shares........cocvveeeveeriereevene v 710 1,165 918
Three-for-two stock split........cooveiiiiiiinniic e, 9,819 - -
Ending balance .........ccoueveiriniencrnmiicene e 29.457 18,928 17,763
Class B Common Stock:

Beginning balance ............ccoveeverireineicereeneeneet e 3,195 4,133 4,839
Conversion Of SNATES ........cccvierieeiciiinii e e e sebeeseens 410) (938) (706)
Three-for-two stock Split......ccoveeiernnnieriicecnce e 1,392 - -

Ending balance ...l 4,177 3,195 4,133
Class A Treasury Stock:

Beginning balance ............ccccceervinrenennn et e 1,505 1,505 1,435
Acquisition of treasury StocK.........c.ccceververerrvrcrrincinienrcne e 202 - 70
Three-for-two stock split........c.ccocniimciiiiininiiiie e 853 - -

Ending balance ..........ccooveeeiiieniinieicienece e 2,560 1,505 1,505
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The components of other comprehensive (loss) income are as follows:

Net
Unrealized
Appreciation
{Depreciation) Net Minimum
on Available Loss on Pension
for Sale Cash Flow Liability
Securities Hedge Adjustment Total
(dollars in thousands)
Balance, January 1, 2001 ..o rerriinnn $ (53622) $ - 3 - $ (53.,622)
Unrealized depreciation on available for sale securities (1,886) - - (1,886)
Reclassification adjustment for losses included in
net inCome P, 44,523 - - 44,523
Net change in unrealized depreciation on
INVESIMENLS ....vrreveveiriee et 42.637 - - 42.637
Balance, December 31, 2001.......c..cccoeeveeuinnnne $ (10985) §$ - $ - $ (10,983)
Unrealized appreciation on available for sale securities 26,556 - - 26,556
Reclassification adjustment for losses included in net
income @ . 18,001 - - 18,001
Net change in unrealized appreciation on
INVESHIMENIES L...vveecciieeeceie e eses e resesnr e s errearen s 44,557 - - 44,557
Net unrealized loss on cash flow hedge @................... - (3,290) - (3,290)
Minimum pension liability adjustment ... - - (279) (279)
Balance, December 31, 2002.......c.ccovvvimrenenenns $ 33,572 $ (3290) $ 2799 §$ 30,003
Unrealized appreciation on available for sale securities M 35,186 - - 35,186
Reclassification adjustment for gains included in net
INCOME @ ..ot e (8.791) - - (8.791)
Net change in unrealized appreciation on
INVESTMENLS ..oeeteiiiiieirec e eee s eeee e sbeee e e raen e 26,395 - - 26.395
Net loss on cash flow hedge®........cccooovvorrruerrinnnnnne. - (5,671) - (5,671)
Reclassification adjustment for losses included
in 0et INCOME™ ..o - _ 1.565 - 1.565
Increase in net loss on cash flow hedge..............c....... - (4,106) - (4.106)
Net change in minimum pension liability adjustment ‘¥ - - 136 136
Balance, December 31,2003.........cccccveeeevinnne $ 59967 $ (7.396) §$ (143) § 52428

(1) Net of an income tax (benefit) expense of $(1.0) million, $14.3 million and $18.9 million for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2002 and
2003, respectively. Also, net of related adjustment to cost of business acquired of $(4.1) million, $(23.8) million and $(5.5) million for the
years ended December 31, 2001, 2002 and 2003, respectively.

(2) Net of an income tax benefit (expense) of $24.0 million, $9.7 million and $(4.7) million for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2002 and
2003, respectively.

(3) Net of an income tax benefit of $1.8 million and $3.0 million for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2003, respectively.
(4) Net of an income tax (benefit) expense of $(0.1) million and $0.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2003, respectively.

(5) Net of an income tax benefit of $0.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2003.
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Total rental expense for operating leases, principally for administrative and sales office space, was $7.8 million, $7.7
million and $6.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively. As of December 31,
2003, future net minimum rental payments under non-cancelable operating leases were approximately $54.6 million,
payable as follows: 2004 - $12.0 million, 2005 - $11.5 million, 2006 - $10.4 million, 2007 - $9.7 million, 2008 - $8.6
million and $2.4 million thereafter.

In the course of its business, the Company is a party to litigation and other proceedings, primarily involving its insurance
operations. In some cases, these proceedings entail claims against the Company for punitive damages and similar types of
relief. The ultimate disposition of such pending litigation and proceedings is not expected to have a material adverse
effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position. In addition, incident to its discontinued products, the Company
is currently a party to two separate arbitrations arising out of two accident and health reinsurance arrangements in which it
and other companies formerly were participating reinsurers. At issue in both arbitrations, among other things, is whether
certain reinsurance risks were validly ceded to the Company. The hearings in these arbitrations are scheduled to be held
in the current year. While management believes that in both cases the Company has substantial legal grounds for avoiding
the reinsurance risks at issue, it is not at this time possible to predict the ultimate outcome of these arbitrations, nor is it
feasible to provide reasonable ranges of potential losses. In the opinion of management, such arbitrations, when
ultimately resolved, will not individually or collectively have a material adverse effect on the Company's consolidated
financial position.

Note O — Stock Options

Under the terms of the Company’s employee stock option plans and outside directors’ stock option plan, a total of
5,775,000 shares of Class A Common Stock have been reserved for issuance. The exercise price for options granted
under these plans is the fair market value of the underlying stock as of the date of the grant and the maximum term of an
option is ten years.

In 2003, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a long-term incentive and share award plan for the granting of
restricted_shares, restricted share.units- {the receipt of shares-or-cash- at-the-end-of the-specified-deferral-period);-other
share-based awards, or options to purchase shares of Class A Common Stock to employees and other individuals who, in
the judgment of the Stock Option and Compensation Committee of the Company’s Board of Directors (the “Committee”),
can make substantial contributions to the long-term profitability and the value of the Company, its subsidiaries or affiliates
(the “2003 Employee Option Plan”). Under the terms of the 2003 Employee Option Plan, a total of 1,500,000 shares of
Class A Common Stock have been reserved for issuance. Awards of restricted shares and restricted share units are subject
to restrictions on transferability and other restrictions, if any, as the Committee may impose. The Committee may
determine that an award of restricted shares or restricted share units or an other share-based award to be granted under this
plan qualifies as qualified performance-based compensation. The grant, vesting, and/or settlement of this type of
performance-based award is contingent upon achievement of pre-established performance objectives, which may vary
from individual to individual and based on performance criteria as the Committee may deem appropriate. The exercise
price of options granted under this plan is determined by the Committee provided that the exercise price may not be less
than the fair market value of the underlying stock as of the date of the grant. The maximum term of an option is ten years.

In May 2003, the Company granted performance-contingent incentive options to purchase 225,000 shares of the
Company’s Class A Common Stock to each of the five members of executive management of SNCC, for a total of
1,125,000 options, under the 2003 Employee Option Plan. The options, which have a ten-year term and whose exercise
price is equal to the fair market value of the underlying stock on the grant date, will become exercisable only to the extent
that SIG, SNCC’s parent company, meets specified cumulative financial performance targets for the three or five fiscal
year periods beginning with 2003; otherwise, such options will be forfeited. 112,500 of each executive’s options will
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become exercisable if SIG’s aggregate consolidated Pre-Tax Operating Income, as defined and computed under the
related option agreements (“PTOI”), for the three year performance period is at least $216.7 million; otherwise, a reduced
number of such options will become exercisable to the extent that PTOI for such period exceeds $196.1 million,
determined by interpolating between zero and 112,500 according to where the PTOI amount falls in the range between
$196.1 million and $216.7 miilion. 225,000 of each executive’s options {minus the number of any options that become
exercisable for the three year performance period) will become exercisable if SIG’s aggregate PTOI for the five year
performance period is at least $429.]1 million; otherwise, a reduced number of such options will become exercisable to the
extent that PTOI for such period exceeds $380.1 million, determined by interpolating between zero and 225,000
according to where the PTOI amount falls in the range between $380.1 million and $429.1 million.

Also in 2003, the Committee amended and restated the long-term performance-based incentive plan for the Company’s
chief executive officer (the “Amended Performance Plan”). Under the terms of the Amended Performance Plan, the
Committee has the authority to grant awards annually as deemed appropriate, to determine-the number of shares subject to
any award and to interpret the plan. The Amended Performance Plan provides for the award of up to 238,482 shares
measured by reference to Stock Units, plus the Carryover Award Amount, as then in effect, per year over a ten-year term.
A Stock Unit consists of restricted or deferred shares of the Company’s Class B Common Stock, each of which individual
shares represent one Stock Unit, and options to purchase shares of Class B Common Stock represent one-third of one
Stock Unit. The Carryover Award Amount consists of 476,964 restricted or deferred shares and options to purchase
1,430,886 shares of Class B Common Stock, representing the number of shares as to which awards were available but not
granted under the predecessor plan for the performance period consisting of the 1999 through 2002 calendar years, and all
or a portion of the Carryover Award Amount may be applied to increase the award amount for any calendar year of the
Plan, with the Carryover Award Amount to be decreased by any portions applied for purposes of future calendar years of
the Plan. The restricted or deferred shares may not be sold or otherwise disposed of until the earliest of the individual’s
retirement, disability or death or a change of ownership of the Company. The exercise price of the options awarded under
the Amended Performance Plan is the fair market value of the underlying stock as of the date of the grant and the
maximum term of the options is ten years. The options become exercisable 30 days following the date of grant. Under
the predecessor plan, 357,723 deferred shares and 1,073,166 options were granted to the Company’s chief executive
officer prior to 1999. No deferred shares or options were awarded for the years ended December 31, 2001 or 2002. No
compensation expense related to the predecessor plan was recognized for the years ended December 31, 2001 or 2002.
The Committee awarded the Company’s chief executive officer 67,010 deferred shares under the Amended Performance
Plan in February 2004 based on his performance during 2003. The Company recognized $2.6 million of compensation
expense in 2003 related to this award.

Option activity with respect to the above plans was as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
Number  Average Number Average Number Average
of Exercise of Exercise of Exercise
Options Price Options Price Options Price
Options outstanding, beginning of year...... 3,765,159  $21.69 3,827,609 $21.45 3,871,425 $21.55
Options granted..........cccooveeccrnrererenienas 1,250,050 28.73 114,615 27.14 226,191 23.67
Options forfeited ........cocoovveeicnvniiinenns (39,419) 26.41 (41,308) 25.26 (195,024) 24.01
Options expired........ccoceeeveeevrroencenennes (5,961) 37.58 (31,368) 22.54 (51,310) 28.65
Options exercised.......ceoeveveerierniniennas (286.762) 18.39 _ (104,389) 17.13 (23,673) 22.83
Options outstanding, end of year................ 4,683,067 23.70 _3,765.159 21.69 _3,827,609 2145
Exercisable options, end of year ................ 3,140,626 21.91 3,152,793 21.55 2,942,022 21.33
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Information about options outstanding at December 31, 2003 was as follows:

Qutstanding Exercisable

Number Average  Average Number Average

Range of of Remaining Exercise of Exercise
Exercise Prices Options Life Price Options Price
$000 - $9.06.. e 183,276 1.4 § 883 183,276 § 8.83
$14.47 - B21.55. e 2,087,713 5.3 19.84 1,886,357 19.81
$22.00 - $32.53. e 2,387,223 7.4 28.07 1,050,306 27.66
$34.42 - 83758 24,855 5.3 37.05 20,687 37.58
4,683,067 6.2 $ 2370 3,140626 § 2191

During 1996, the Company assumed 6.0 million SIG stock options (the “SIG Options”) in connection with SIG’s merger
into the Company (the “SIG Merger”). Upon the exercise of the SIG Options, the holder is entitled to receive (i) .2099 of
a share of the Company’s Class A Common Stock for each SIG Option; plus (ii) an additional number of shares of the
Company’s Class A Common Stock equal to the quotient of (a) $1.90 multiplied by the number of SIG Options being
exercised increased by an interest component from the time of the SIG Merger to the exercise date, divided by (b) the
average closing share price for the Company’s Class A Common Stock for the ten days prior to the exercise date. The
SIG Options were granted annually from 1992 to 1996, have an exercise price of $0.02 and each grant vests over five
years beginning in the fourth year after the grant date. All of the SIG Options expire on October 1, 2006. As of
December 31, 2003, the weighted average contractual life of the outstanding SIG Options was 2.8 years.

Activity with respect to the outstanding SIG Options was as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
Number Equivalent Number Equivalent Number Equivalent
of SIG Class A of SIG Class A of SIG Class A

Options Shares Options Shares Options Shares
SIG Options - beginning of year .......... 696,154 232,500 1,223,606 396,933 1,895,352 581,317
Options exercised .......ccccevvvvrreevrennns (334,560) 104,707 (511,261) 172,779 (671,746) 234,300
Options expired ......ccccvevvvvercverrennns (4.415) - (16,191) - - -
SIG Options - end of year .................... 357,179 107,045 696,154 232,500 _1,223.606 396,933

Exercisable SIG Options - end of year 301,493 91,360 475,976 163,996 649,719 210,766
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Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
(dotlars in thousands, except per share data)

Numerator:

NEL INCOIMIE ....eureerieerieterieceesre et et steets e sessesreseest et eseste st ssnesasserearaneasaens 598916 $60,652 3§ 6,505
Denominator (restated to reflect the 3-for-2 common stock split): .....................

Weighted average common shares outstanding ...........cccocovvvvevereerenrnneccenene 31,208 31,139 30,848

Effect of dilutive SECUTITIES.....covriereeerririececeieentire et eveeees 815 748 781
Weighted average common shares outstanding, assuming dilution ............... 32,023 31,887 31,629

Basic results per share of common stock:
NELINCOIME .ecoviviiiecetrteereteresrerrie e st s sens et ses et esnsssesesaasasassseres $§ 317 § 195 § 021

Diluted results per share of common stock:
NELINCOME .onenveerviereertrireeerererviec sttt stereess st ss e se e nass e rerananseseseenen $§ 300 $§ 190 §$_ 021

Note Q — Reinsurance

The Company assumes and cedes reinsurance from and to other insurers and reinsurers. The Company uses reinsurance to
limit its maximum loss, provide greater diversification of risk and in connection with the exiting of certain lines of
business. Reinsurance coverages are tailored to the specific risk characteristics of each type of product and the
Company’s retained amount varies by type of coverage. Generally, group life, disability and accident policies are
reinsured on a coinsurance and risk premium basis. Property and casualty policies are reinsured on an excess of loss, per
risk basis under general reinsurance agreements, or, in some instances, on an individual risk basis. Indemnity reinsurance
treaties do not provide absolute protection to the Company since the ceding insurer remains responsible for policy claims
to the extent that the reinsurer fails to pay such claims. To reduce this risk, the Company monitors the financial position
of its reinsurers, including, among other things, the companies’ financial ratings, and in certain cases receives collateral
security from the reinsurer. Also, certain of the Company’s reinsurance agreements require the reinsurer to set up security
arrangements for the Company’s benefit in the event of certain ratings downgrades. As of December 31, 2003, all of the
Company’s significant reinsurers were either rated “A-" (Excellent) or higher by A.M. Best Company.

In October 2001, Oracle Reinsurance Company Ltd. (“Oracle Re”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Delphi International
Ltd. (“Delphi International”), and the Company consummated the commutation of various reinsurance agreements which
the Company had previously entered into with Oracle Re. Oracle Re paid approximately $84.0 million to the Company,
net of $11.5 million, which had been held by the Company, related to the reserves ceded to Oracle Re under such
agreements. These transactions did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial position,
liquidity, or net income. In furtherance of the commutation of the reinsurance agreements, the Company agreed to waive a
portion of the amounts due to the Company under certain subordinated notes issued by Delphi International. As
a result of this waiver, the Company recognized a pre-tax loss of $7.5 million in 2001 for the other than temporary decline
in the value of these notes. In March 2002, Delphi International repaid the adjusted amounts due under the subordinated
‘notes and the Company did not realize any significant additional loss in connection with such repayment.
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A summary of reinsurance activity follows:

Premium income assumed.........cccoovvornriemevienireeie et sireesanee s
Premium income ceded ..........oouoieiniiiiiriieceen e
Benefits, claims and interest credited ceded.........ccocevivreevrireirveennnnne

Note R — Segment Information

Revenues:

Group employee benefit products.........o.coeevvecicieniieeccirceenenene
Asset accumulation Products ..........cecevcecveverrinineveneseernneeens
Other (oot ess s

Net realized investment gains (I0SSES) ....ocvvvrrrvrerriniecveeersenienicnieans
(Loss) gain on extinguishment of debt and capital securities.........

Operating income®®:

Group employee benefit products..........cccceceveriirivvce v
Asset accumulation Products .......ccoeveeveiveiirceniereeeee e
Oher Dot

Net realized investment gains (10SS€S) .....ccocevvviveincririricce e
(Loss) gain on extinguishment of debt and capital securities.........

Net investment income®

Group employee benefit products..........coceevevevevieenenecerenererennnns
Asset accumulation products .........cceeeveveereeereereeecene et
Other O ..o

Amortization of cost of business required:

Group employee benefit products...........ccoveeevnrinenncnnenee e
Asset accumulation products ........c.coveeinevererierinneiieee e

Segment assets®™:

Group employee benefit products.........cccccevrienriveecinneseneee
Asset accumulation products ..........cccocveveieieeerinecieeieccr e
Other!™ et
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Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
(dollars in thousands)

$ 16,660 8§ 38172 $ 23,099
100,678 109,198 126,698
132,788 134,875 150,885

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
(dollars in thousands)

$ 796,374 $§ 698,396 $§ 570,852

82,555 70,109 72,746
26,524 21,388 21,115
905,453 789,893 664,713

12,724 (28,469) (70,289)
- (332) 11,456

18,177 3§ 761,092 $ 605880
$ 140,118 § 122,726 § 72,961

16,569 10,129 13,434
(7.812) (5,390) (4.743)

148,875 127,465 81,652
12,724 (28,469) (70,289)

- (332) 11.456

$ 161,599 § 98664 3§ 22819

$ 100,338 § 89,897 § 82,858
78,397 67,464 69,658
7,631 4,675 4,993

$ 186366 § 162,036 § 157,509

$ SLiI00 § 41,608 $ 30415
4,664 4.134 4,285
$ 55764 § 45742 § 34700

$2,391,010  $2,101,836  $1,882,009
1,661,860 1,496,343 1,326,428
124,662 136,763 127,709

$4,177,532  $3,734942  $3.336,146
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Note R — Segment Information — (Continued)

(1) Consists of operations that do not meet the quantitative thresholds for determining reportable segments and includes integrated disability and
absence management services and certain corporate activities.

(2) Results for 2001 reflect the reserve strengthening. See Note D to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

(3) Net investment income includes income earned on the assets of the insurance companies as well as on the assets of the holding company and
is allocated among business lines in proportion to average reserves and the capital placed at risk for each segment. Segment assets include
assets of the insurance companies as well as the assets of the holding company, which are allocated across business lines in proportion to
average reserves and the capital placed at risk for each segment.

{4) Operating income for group employee benefits and other operations includes amortization of goodwill of $1.8 mitlion and $1.4 million,
respectively, in 2001,
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Amount
Shown in
Amortized Fair Balance
Type of Investment Cost Value Sheet
Fixed maturity securities available for sale:
U.S. Government backed mortgage-backed securities......... 374,559 $ 382,495 $ 382493
Other mortgage-backed securities..........ccoveeeieereiicnnnnns 254,428 260,805 260,805
U.S. Treasury and other U.S. Government
guaranteed SECUIes .......coccvveerericreiieeiie et 380,139 385,417 385,417
Obligations of U.S. states, municipalities and
political SuUbdiViSIONS.........cicemirirriicicee 472,218 491,192 491,192
Corporate SECUIIS ......ouevrerreiniirisiiiiieie s 1,269,537 1,342,136 1,342,136
Total fixed maturity SECUFIti€S. .....ceeovrveeriiirrerirereerenes 2,750.881 2.862,045 2,862,045
Equity securities:
COMMON SEOCKS ...vvieviiereiireereerereeesreeeeeseissesessresvereseenenns 21,361 22,091 22,091
Non-redeemable preferred StoCkS.......cccovvrevcrrrernvrieceeninees 13.168 14,403 14,403
Total equity SECUTTLIES ...eoovervieiirieiiriecrt e 34,529 36.494 36,494
Short-term iNVESHMENTS.....coeevveciieriies e ee st s eee e 114,752 114,752 114,752
Other INVESIMENLS.......cvuoverererereceeereresenesseresessiesisssseneserssosens 186286 -~ __— 189.463 —_ — 189.463 -
Total INVESIMENTS .......ooveiireerieeeeeeere e e saee s $ 3.086,448 $ 3202754 § 3202754
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CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT
DELPHI FINANCIAL GROUP, INC. (PARENT COMPANY)
BALANCE SHEETS
(Dollars in Thousands)

December 31,

2003 2002
Assets:
Fixed maturity securities, available for sale..........ccocoeviiiviciiiiini e § 12,898 $ -
SHOIT-EITI INVESHTIETIES ....uverviaeerierieeteriesie et eestebeerievaestesaetesseeseasresseseesressasseasesseesens 14,749 4,107
Other INVESIEA ESSELS ...oeveevviiericieerireeeeveente e erse st e restsebe s et eseesbaseesaesreerestsesessranss 1,260 181
Investment in operating SUbSIAIATIES. .........ccovreoerreiirirniceeie e cees e snisesereessoves 977,654 831,150
Investment in investment SUbSIAIATIES ........ccceviiieiiinieneeere et 22,322 53,646
Investment in subsidiaries holding junior subordinated debt of the Company ....... 3,712 3,093
00T 1 DO OO SO OO AU SO OSSO SUU OO PURO 587 641
Amounts due from SUbSIAIAries ........ccoerecerreceieriene e 22,168 -
OB @SSEES..uuiiereiieeriiriiir e e e reeree e et e re s st s e e ens e beeba e beestee ebaesaneseessneessensnereesrennn 31,972 24,007
TOTAL @SSEES...vivvecriecreecriiterte s st s e e e te s ee e r e besne e e ebsseae et b e anbeenbesareannestean $1,087,322 § 916,825
Liabilities:
COTPOTALE AEDL.......ouoiieviieice ettt ettt e et s ete et s enaetesr e s b e seennesene $ 143,750 $ 109,111
Junior subordinated debentures payable to subsidiaries ............ccocevererrrereennnnen. 59,762 39,143
Amounts due t0 SUDSIAIATIES ......oovuviiviiieiiic ettt et re e ares - 10,597
OthEr HaDilItIeS ..o evveeeee e ste s ettt ss s e ete e saesneebeses e sesesesees 85,370 76,319
' 288.882 235.170
Shareholders’ Equity:
Class A COMMON StOCK ......oieiieriieneiie et a e e e sre s ereesaenens 295 189
Class B CommOmn StOCK .......coovviieicieviece st eesiesn e evesssesass s e esessnessenneseens 42 32
Additional paid-in capital ... 383,573 373,356
Accumulated other comprehensive income ... 52,428 30,003
Retained BAIMINGS ......cooiereiiericiitirieee e ciete et sa et esaes s st essa s seente s ssessenees 421,080 329,574
TTEASUTY STOCK ...ttt ettt ettt st be e s (58.978) (51.499)
798.440 681,655
Total liabilities and shareholders’” equity ......ccoveveeieeiiiereeciee e, $1.087322 § 916,825

See notes to condensed financial statements.
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CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT (Continued)
DELPHI FINANCIAL GROUP, INC. (PARENT COMPANY)
STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(Dollars in Thousands)

See notes to condensed financial statements.
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Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
Revenue:
Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiaries..........ccccovvrceirerenene $ 124,155 $ 91,303 § 5116
Dividends from operating subsidiaries ..........ococccvvveinenrerencnenenn, 2,600 13,800 31,600
Dividends from investment subsidiaries...........c.cooovveverrevenrnrerserreane 47,340 - -
Dividends from subsidiaries holding junior subordinated debt
Of the COMPANY .....oovevreeirerieevieictce e 309 288 288
Other (1088) INCOME ...c...ovicviiiiiecrcerre e e (5,498) (1,653) 136
Realized investment gains (I0SSES) ....c.occevvvivivicirincecniinini e, 1,375 200 (21,853)
(Loss) gain on extinguishment of debt .........cccoeceveervcnninieninrenncns - (332) 11,456
170.281 103.606 26,743
Expenses:
OPEratiNg EXPENSES.....c.vevererrarniarrrsesasseressesasansssisancssesssaesessasrasesesaseseass 6,958 2,598 1,436
IRLErest EXPENSE ....cocvvviiiciiiii i 19,811 14,725 19,900
26,769 17,323 21,336
Income before income tax expense (benefit) ........ccoovvvverrnennn, 143,512 86,283 5,407
Income tax expense (benefit) .........ceceevninniisininenin e 44.596 25,631 - (1.098) -
NELINCOIMIE .....ovvivierieireeirereetei e st e st rabesee b e e st reas et eeraenre st e e ereenas $ 98916 §_ 60652 § 6,505
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DELPHI FINANCIAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT (Continued)
DELPHI FINANCIAL GROUP, INC. (PARENT COMPANY)
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Dollars in Thousands)

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001

Operating activities:
NEt INCOME.....vovieeeiriiriireree sttt eee et ssensseabane s $ 98916 $ 60652 § 6,505
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidiaries....................... (69,765) (63,915) (6,316)
Change in other assets and other liabilities .........c.ccoeeeeenrneen 2,022 (29,153) 3,341
Change in current and deferred income taxes............coceevereennn. 10,984 15,995 8,275
Amortization, principally of investments and debt
ISSUANCE COSES ..uvvivrrrerereerreeerirereieresrreesestreeseesscseenseeecrnsennnes 1,103 (290) 868
Net realized (gains) losses on investments ..........c.ccoevveveeneneene (1,375) (200) 21,853
Loss (gain) on extinguishment of debt .........coocoveviviennrinnnnene, - 332 (11,456)
Change in amounts due from/to subsidiaries...........cccoervrvreeee. (32.765) 18.134 148.444
Net cash provided by operating activities............c.ceeeeene 9,120 1.555 171,514
Investing activities:
Purchases of investments and loans made ........cc.ccooeevienvivereinene (58,523) (14,348) (1,195)
Sales of investments and receipts from repayment of loans........... 45,624 - 35,378
Maturities of INVESTMENLS. .....c.oocceriineiirr et et 2,379 15,024 400
Net change in short-term investments.........ccooeeverveenceneenencnnens (10,637) (742) (3,354)
Purchases of investments in subsidiaries ..........c..ccocoovvnennienies (20.002) - (2.613)
Net cash (used) provided by investing activities...........c.coecerereennn. (41.159) (66) 28.616
Financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance of 2033 Senior NOtes........cocveeeveeirveecnnnn. 139,222 - -
Proceeds from issuance of 2003 Junior Debentures....................... 20,018 - -
Borrowings under revolving credit facilities .......c..c.cccceneiencnens 34,000 49,000 102,000
Principal payments under revolving credit facilities...................... (71,000} (37,000) (227,000)
Repayments or repurchase of other corporate debt.............c........ (72,150) (10,874) (8,284)
Repurchase of junior subordinated debentures payable to
Delphi Funding L.L.C. ..c..coooiiiiniiiiineii et - - (51,329)
Change in liability for securities sold under agreements to
TEPUICRASE ...ttt ettt srae e s e et eaee - (10,571)
Other financing aCtiVIties.........covevvocrrriervorrovcorerererinnncisineecirenneaes (18,105) (1,979 (5.341)
Net cash provided (used) by financing activities ................ 31,985 (853) _ (200.525)
(Decrease) increase in Cash .......ccveevvererveerecrsiececiccrecrrsce e (54) 636 (395)
Cash at beginning of Year.......ccccvverirrierricinrcenenrcree s 641 5 400
Cash atend of YEar........ccocooveumveeeeeceeceeeeeercvete et h) 587 § 641 $_ 5

See notes to condensed financial statements.
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SCHEDULE 1I (Continued)

DELPHI FINANCIAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT (Continued)
DELPHI FINANCIAL GROUP, INC. (PARENT COMPANY)
NOTES TO CONDENSED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The accompanying condensed financial statements should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial
statements and related notes of Delphi Financial Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries.

The Company received cash dividends from subsidiaries of $50.2 million, $13.3 millioen and $32.7 million in 2003, 2002
and 2001, respectively.
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SCHEDULE 111

DELPHI FINANCIAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
SUPPLEMENTARY INSURANCE INFORMATION

(Dollars in Thousands)
Future Policy
Benefits and
Costof  Unpaid Claim Policyholder
Business and Claim Unearned Account
Acquired Expenses Premiums Balances
2003
Group employee benefits products............. $ 148,990 $1,339,382 § 74,067 $ -
Asset accumulation products............c..o..... 34,675 74,801 - 929,922
OthET oo - 81.434 - 31,434
TOtah e $ 183,665 $1,495.617 74,0 $ 961356
2002
Group employee benefits products............. $ 130,050 $1,214,399 $ 48,171 $ -
Asset accumulation products............c......... 38,060 72,043 - 878,820
Other oot e - 84,772 - 31.141
Total..eiivicieeee e $ 168,110 $1,371,214 § 48,171 $ 909,961
2001
Group employee benefits products............. $ 113,554  $1,122,338 $§ 44655 $ -
Asset accumulation products..............c...... 55,340 70,003 - 786,214
OUREE vt v - 87.311 - 31.329
Total....oooe e $ 168,894 $1,279.652 $ 44,655 $ 817,543
Benefits,
Claims and  Amortization
Premium Net Interest of Cost of Other
and Fee Investment  Credited to Business Operating
Income Income ®  Policyholders _Acquired Expenses
2003
Group employee benefits products............. $ 696,036 $ 100,338 $ 474,747 $ 51,100 $ 130,409
Asset accumulation products......c..c.ecuee. 4,158 78,397 54,841 4,664 6,481
OLhEr ..o 18.893 7.631 1,037 - 33.299
Total .o $_719,087 $§ 186,366 $ 530,625 §_ 55764 $ 170,189
2002
Group employee benefits products............. $ 608499 § 89,8907 § 420992 $ 41,608 § 113,070
Asset accumulation products........c.c..cene.. 2,645 67,464 49,464 4,134 6,382
Other oot s 16,713 4,675 1,528 - 25.250
Total....oooieeeeieeeeee e $ 627,857 $ 162.036 $ 471,984 $ 45742 $ 144702
2001
Group employee benefits products............. $ 487,994 $ 82,858 $ 365,811 $ 30,415 $ 101,665
Asset accumulation products...........cc.c.c... 3,088 69,658 49,455 4,285 5,572
Other oo s 16,122 4,993 1,730 - 24,128
TOtAl.ooeeceieeieeeceeeee e $ 507204 $ 157509 § 416,996 $ 34700 $§ 131365

(1) Net written premiums for casualty insurance products totaled $194.8 mitlion, $162.6 million and $105.5 million for the years ended December
31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

{2) Net investment income includes income earned on the assets of the insurance companies as well as on the assets of the holding company and is
allocated among business lines in proportion to average reserves and the capital placed at risk for each segment.

(3) Other operating expenses include commissions.
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SCHEDULE 1V

DELPHI FINANCIAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

Life insurance in force as of
December 31, 2003..............

Year ended December 31, 2003:
Premium and fee income:
Life insurance and annuity
Accident and health insurance

Total premium and fee income..

Life insurance in force as of
December 31, 2002..............

Year ended December 31, 2002:
Premium and fee income:
Life insurance and annuity
Accident and health insurance

Total premium and fee income...

Life insurance in force as of
December 31, 2001..............

Year ended December 31, 2001:
Premium and fee income:

Life insurance and annuity
Accident and health insurance

Total premium and fee income..

REINSURANCE
(Dollars in Thousands)
Percentage
Ceded to Assumed of Amount
Gross Other from Other Net Assumed
Amount Companies Companies Amount to Net

$110,759.243 11,017,535 § 34,150 $ 99,775,858 -%
$ 274892 § 27,100 § 1,122 § 248914 -%
334,989 55,988 1,601 280,602 1%
177,118 17,590 14,007 173,535 8%

16,036 - - 16,036

$ 803035 § 100678 §$ 16,730 $ 719,087
$95624554 § 7,219,005 $ 36,403 §$ 88441952 -%
$ 238020 $ 24364 $ 1,029 $§ 214,685 -%
292,323 48,725 2,146 245,744 1%
153,654 36,109 35,179 152,724 23 %

14,704 - - 14,704

$ 698701 $§ 109,198 $ 38354 § 627857
$79302,191 $ 6077095 § 38,101 3,263,197 -%
$ 194851 §$ 21,828 § 3420 $ 176,443 2%
251,132 44,597 9,317 215,852 4%
150,684 60,273 10,362 100,773 10 %

14,136 - - 14,136

S 610803 $ 126,698 § 23,099 $ 507,204
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SCHEDULE VI

DELPHI FINANCIAL GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION CONCERNING
PROPERTY-CASUALTY INSURANCE OPERATIONS
(Dollars in Thousands)

December 31,

2003 2002
Deferred policy acqUiSition COSES ......eerevurerreeraenrirr oo serrereesrere e $ 9828 $ 6,99
Reserves for unpaid claims and claim expenses V.........cc...ccocoomvcerrennrnnnns 572,690 534,856
Discount, if any, deducted from above @.........cocoovooirevvvrieeeenscenrieeires 265,100 241,688
Unearned PremilMS .......ceeviieiiieeeirieiieieieeiee e ees e svesereaesreevesresasernenaessesnes 67,649 43,904
Year Ended December 31,
2003 2002 2001
Eamed premiums ........ccocvvieveieeennvenieenisreis e sercereneens $ 173,535 $ 152,724 $ 100,773
Net investment iNCOME...........coveververveeererireseereereres s 42,614 42,602 38,641
Claims and claim expenses incurred related to:
Current Year ..o 82,372 82,197 73,782
Prior years . ... 20,541 15,869 13,896
Amortization of deferred policy acquisition costs........... 22,272 16,190 8,094
Paid claims and claim adjustment expenses “................ 62,400 72,869 (23,758)
Net Premiums WEEI ....covevvevercercre e 194,752 162,559 105,511

M

@
(&)

)

Claims and claim expenses for 2001 include a charge for reserve strengthening of $39.3 million primarily related to an unusually high number of
large losses in the Company’s excess workers’ compensation business. See Note D to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Based on interest rates ranging from 3.7% to 7.5%.

In 2003 and 2002, the claims and claim expenses incurred related to prior years reflect accretion of discounted reserves offset by favorable claims
development. In 2001, the claims and claim expenses incurred related to prior years reflect the accretion of discounted reserves and unfavorable
claims development.

In 2001, the paid claims and claim adjustment expenses reflect the Company’s receipt of $74.3 million related to the commutation of the
reinsurance agreements with Oracle Re.

-76-




Board of Directors

Robert Rosenkranz

Chairman of the Board, President
and Chief Executive Officer
Delphi Financial Group, Inc.

Lawrence E. Daurelle

President and Chief Executive Officer

Reliance Standard Life
Insurance Company
Edward A. Fox
Chairman of the Board
SLM Corporation

Van D. Greenfield
Managing Member
Blue River Capital L.L.C.

Harold F. Iig
Chairman of the Board
Safety National Casualty Corp.

Donald A. Sherman
Chairman and

James N. Meehan
Retired Managing Director

Bank of America Chief Executive Officer
Waterfield Mortgage Company, Inc.
Philip R. O°’Connor Robert M. Smith, Jr.

Executive Vice President
Delphi Financial Group, Inc.

Vice President
Constellation New Energy, Inc.

Corporate Information

Corporate Headquarters

1105 North Market Street, Suite 1230

PO. Box 8985
Wilmington, DE 19899

(302) 478-5142 » (302) 427-7663 Fax

Registrar and Stock Transfer Agent

Wachovia Bank, N.A.
Corporate Trust Department - 1153

1525 West W.T. Harris Boulevard, 3C3

Charlotte, NC 28288-1153
(800) 829-8432

Annual Meeting

Wednesday, May 5, 2004, at 10:00ax

University Club

One West 54th Street
New York, NY 10019

Independent Accountants

Ernst & Young LLP

Two Commerce Square, Suite 4000

2001 Market Street

Philadelphia, PA 19103

Investor Relations

Delphi Financial Group, Inc.

153 East 531rd Street

New York, NY 10022

(212) 303-4349 » (212) 319-6171 Fax
invrel@dlfi.com

www.delphifin.com

Trading Market

New York Stock Exchange
Common Stock Symbol: DFG
30-Year Senior Notes Symbol: DFY

Principal Subsidiaries

Delphi Capital Management, Inc.
153 East 53rd Street
New York, NY 10022

(212) 838-7000 +(212) 838-7598 Fax « DELPHI@dlfi.com

Reliance Standard Life Insurance Company

Two Commerce Square
2001 Market Street, Suite 1500
Philadelphia, PA 19103-7090

(800) 351-7500 * (267) 256-3556 Fax » RSLIC@rsli.com

www.rsli.com

Safety National Casualty Corporation

2043 Woodland Parkway, Suite 200

St. Louis, MO 63146

(888) 995-5300 « (314) 995-3843 Fax » SNCC@sncc.com
WWW.SNCe.com

Matrix Absence Management, Inc.

5225 Hellyer Avenue, Suite 210

San Jose, CA 95138-1001

(408) 360-8370 « (408) 360-9441 Fax » Webmaster@matrixcos.com
WWW.matrixcos.com

Principal Officers

Delphi Financial Group, Inc.

Robert Rosenkranz
Chairman of the Board, President
and Chief Executive Officer

Thomas W. Burghart
Vice President and Treasurer

Chad W. Coulter

Vice President, Secretary and
General Counsel

Linda Eike

Assistant Secretary

Bernard J. Kilkelly

Vice President, Investor Relations

Robert M. Smith, Jr.
Executive Vice President

Reliance Standard Life
Insurance Company

Charles P. O’Brien

Chairman Emeritus

Lawrence E. Daurelle

President and Chief Executive Officer

Thomas W. Burghart
Vice President and Treasurer

Warren M. Cohen

Vice President, Actuarial

Chad W. Coulter

Vice President, General Counsel and
Assistant Secretary

Charles T. Denaro

Assistant Vice President, Secretary and
Deputy General Counsel
Christopher A. Fazzini

Senior Vice President,

Sales and Marketing

Dan R. Green
Vice President, Underwriting

Frank W. Newdeck
Vice President, Information Services

Debra G. Staples
Vice President, Claims Administration

Matrix Absence
Management, Inc.

Safety National
Casualty Corporation
Ivars Zvirbulis

President and Chief Operating Officer

Michael W. Fredericksen
Treasurer

B. K. Werner
Chairman Emeritus

Harold F. lig
Chairman of the Board

Terrence T. Schoeninger
President and Chief Executive Officer

John P. Csik
Vice President of Finance

Suzanne Wilson
Vice President, Administration,
Human Resources and Secretary

Duane A. Hercules
Executive Vice President and Treasurer

Eugene R. Maier

Vice President,

Workers' Compensation Underwriting
Jeffrey W. Otto

Senior Vice President,

General Counsel and Secretary

Stuart M. Presson
Senior Vice President, Marketing

Carleton S. Reynolds, 1T
Vice President,
Workers ' Compensation Claims

Gerald R. Scott
Executive Vice President

Mark A. Wilhelm
Executive Vice President




DELPHI

Financial Group,Inc.

www.delphifin.com

DFG
[LISTED

NYSE.




